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1               P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

2                           9:43 a.m.

3             MR. SPRANCE:  Good morning, I'm

4 Bill Sprance, the designated Federal Official

5 for the Response Systems Panel and this

6 meeting of the Victim Services Subcommittee is

7 now open.  I'd like to turn things over to

8 Terri Saunders, the Deputy Staff Director for

9 the Response Systems Panel.

10             MS. SAUNDERS:  Thank you, Bill.

11 Just a brief introduction.  We have this

12 morning a panel of sexual assault survivors

13 who have very graciously agreed to come and

14 speak to the subcommittee about their

15 experiences following their sexual assault,

16 the services they received, some of those

17 sorts of things.

18             I just want to talk -- give you a

19 few basics about how we're going to conduct

20 this session.  As you'll notice, the members

21 have name tags in front of them and they are

22 identified by their initials and that's -- we
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1 would ask that all of the subcommittee members

2 refer to them by their initials.  We're trying

3 to give them some measure of anonymity in this

4 proceeding as it's not open to the public or

5 the press.  And we do, of course, have the

6 session being transcribed and the

7 transcription will go up on our website as all

8 of our other subcommittee transcripts do, but

9 this will give them some measure of anonymity,

10 to be referred to by their initials rather

11 than by their names.

12             Additionally, everyone has agreed

13 that we may refer to the service that they are

14 in, for example, the Army or the Air Force,

15 but we will not be identifying what base they

16 are at either.  And I think it goes without

17 saying, but I'll say it anyway, that we're

18 here not to discuss the facts that actually

19 occurred during their sexual assaults itself. 

20 But really, we're the Victims Services

21 Subcommittee.  This is the Victims Services

22 Subcommittee.  It's really to talk about what
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1 happened afterward, the services they

2 received, you know, how they were cared for

3 going through the court-martial process or

4 just following their reports of sexual

5 assault.

6             So is there anything else I've

7 forgotten?

8             Oh, very good, thank you.  We

9 also, each of our four survivors here has

10 brought someone to support them.  In a couple

11 of cases, we have a Special Victim Counsel --

12 two Special Victim Counsel, a Sexual Assault

13 Response Coordinator, and I think, you know,

14 just someone to support them while they are

15 here.  So, you know, they have agreed to, you

16 know, take questions if you have them.  So I

17 think that covers the basics.  And I don't

18 know if any of you have short opening

19 statement that you wanted to make, so please

20 feel free.  We'll start at the end here with

21 Ms. EM.  Is that right?

22             MS. EM:  Yes, Elysha Morrow.
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1             MS. SAUNDERS:  Okay.

2             MS. EM:  Good morning.

3             When I first enlisted in the Coast

4 Guard, I had great faith in our military.  I

5 chose the Coast Guard because it was presented

6 to me as the professional branch. 

7             I'd given no thought to the state

8 of sexual assault harassment in the military,

9 because like most young men and women that

10 enlist, an enemy in the ranks was the last

11 thing I had on my mind.  However, what I found

12 on the other side of the dotted line was far

13 from what I had imagined.  Within the first

14 week of reporting to basic training, I was

15 chosen by the lead company commander to be on

16 his nightly cleaning detail, which he referred

17 to as a special job.

18             This duty consisted of cleaning

19 the lead company commander's office after the

20 other recruits had retired to their racks for

21 the evening.   I was also told along with this

22 job came special perks, which included being
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1 allowed to speak to him in a relaxed

2 environment, and being his buddy.  The

3 condition to these perks, as he said, was that

4 I was never allowed to speak to my fellow

5 recruits about what occurred in his office.

6             It took little time to realize

7 that my cleaning duties were not the only

8 thing that he had on his mind.  Within the

9 first ten minutes of being in his office for

10 reporting to my first cleaning detail, he

11 inquired about my relationship status and

12 began questioning me about what my fiancé

13 thought about my joining the Coast Guard.

14             While it struck me as somewhat odd

15 that he had such an interest in my personal

16 life, I answered his questions.  As the days

17 progressed, he began making comments of a

18 sexual nature that eventually became worse, so

19 blatant that I became convinced that I would

20 eventually be sexually assaulted.  In addition

21 to this stressful situation, my shipmates

22 began to notice and comment on the special, as
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1 he said, albeit unwanted attention that I was

2 receiving from our lead company commander.

3             He would skip over me for

4 inspections and for disciplinary action that

5 all other recruits received.  I was not the

6 only one.  After one particular night of him

7 making yet another advance, I had done my best

8 keeping him at bay.  Seemingly discouraged for

9 the moment, he chose another recruit, blonde

10 hair, blue eyes, 5' 3" the following night to

11 clean a vacant office on another floor.

12             Comparing experiences later, we

13 realized that the behaviors we had encountered

14 from him were nearly identical, but stayed

15 silent out of fear for what would happen if we

16 spoke up.  The following year, we met another

17 recruit who had had the same experience as us

18 with the same company commander and made a

19 report to Coast Guard Investigative Services.

20             In the investigation that ensued,

21 it was determined that not only was there an

22 additional victim, but that her abuse had gone
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1 far beyond the scope of the harassment that we

2 had endured.  This recruit was sexually

3 assaulted on multiple occasions and like us,

4 had feared the repercussions of speaking out.

5             When court-martialed, it was

6 revealed that while awaiting trial, our

7 perpetrator had been allowed to stand watch in

8 the Junior Enlisted Bar for training personnel

9 at Training Center Petaluma, and was part of

10 the MWR scheduling events and outings for

11 students at the training center.

12 After the court-martial, he was charged with

13 and pled guilty to multiple counts of

14 maltreatment, adultery and failure to obey an

15 order, but was unable to be tried for sexual

16 assault because of the specifications of UCMJ

17 Article 120.  He was sentenced to one year

18 confinement and a bad conduct discharge and

19 was released after only serving nine months.

20             It is difficult for many to

21 understand why we didn't come forward sooner. 

22 I likely would have once felt the same way,
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1 but then I lived through it.  I never

2 understood the meaning of the word hopeless

3 until I went to Cape May.  In boot camp, you

4 are taught blind obedience to every order as

5 your only option.  Saying no did not exist. 

6 There was no one to reach out to.  We were

7 told that dialing 9-1-1 rang into the base

8 fire department, where he undoubtedly had

9 friends working.

10             He taught our sexual harassment

11 class and we were given instructions to report

12 to him if we had any issues.  Once being told

13 by him if you ever have an issue, come to me

14 because no one messes with my recruits.  I had

15 even seen our Chaplain chatting and laughing

16 with our perpetrator on several occasions.  He

17 had even taken God away from us.

18             In the world of boot camp, there

19 was no safety net, no way to know that if you

20 spoke up it was going to be okay, no way to

21 know that the person you dared to tell isn't

22 going to be the perpetrator's friend, or his
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1 wife's best friend.  Most people have given up

2 everything to join the military.  I had sold

3 almost all of my earthly possessions, given up

4 my job and completely hit the reset button on

5 my life.  Not making it out of Cape May was

6 simply not an option.

7             And when you finally do make it

8 out, the last thing you want to do is revisit

9 the experiences that you went through with

10 coming forward.  The only thing you want to do

11 is move on and forget it happened.  But you

12 can't forget.  Once you have to look into the

13 face of a fellow service member and tell them

14 that you're sorry they were raped because you

15 were too afraid to come forward, it doesn't go

16 away.  I go back to Cape May every day.  After

17 the court-martial, I found myself in such a

18 tailspin the I began to feel like maybe it

19 would be easier if I wasn't around and began

20 to have suicidal thoughts.  I was totally

21 numb, deeply depressed and didn't know where

22 to turn.
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1             I finally reached out to the MST

2 coordinator at my local VA hospital and over

3 the course of several months in therapy was

4 diagnosed with PTSD based on my experience.

5 It has been, and continues to be a difficult

6 road.  The only thing that has kept me going

7 is my hope for change, and I do believe that

8 we can make it better for our soldiers,

9 sailors, airmen and Marines.  They have enough

10 to fear on their own.  Fear in the ranks

11 should not be one of them.

12             COL SCHENCK:  Can I ask a

13 question?

14             CDR KING: Sure.  I'm hoping we can

15 ask questions afterward, but --

16             COL SCHENCK:  Okay.

17             CDR KING:   -- only specific ones

18 right now.

19             COL SCHENCK:  It's just, did I

20 miss the date of the occurrence?

21             MS. EM:  I'm sorry, it was May to

22 July of 2009 was my incident and my shipmate's
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1 incident.  The following case where the

2 recruit where the recruit was sexually

3 assaulted was, I believe October-November time

4 frame of 2009.  And the following victim was

5 sometime in the spring of 2010.  So it was

6 over the course of about a year that all of

7 the incidents occurred.

8             CDR KING:  And then when did the

9 trial occur?

10             MS. EM:  The actual court-martial

11 occurred in September of 2012.  We made our

12 initial report to Coast Guard Investigative

13 Services in, I believe, roughly September of

14 2010 we made the initial report.

15             CDR KING:  If we can move on then

16 to Ms. JP.

17             MS. JP:  Good morning everybody.

18             So for the purposes of this, my

19 name is Ms. JP.  

20             I have served in the military for

21 13 years.  I come from an extremely patriotic

22 family.  My brother is an airman, my sister
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1 spent eight years in the Marine Corps, and my

2 mom spent over 20 in the Army as a soldier.

3 I enlisted into the Army in 2001 at 24 years

4 of age as a dental technician, and in 2008 I

5 commissioned as a Lieutenant into the Medical

6 Service Corps as a 70 Bravo.  Currently, I am

7 a company commander of the Headquarters and

8 Headquarters Company at a base which will not

9 be disclosed.

10             I am thankful very much for this

11 opportunity to come and share my experiences

12 with you today regarding the recent handling

13 of a sexual assault prosecution.  I have,

14 unfortunately, witnessed the handling of a

15 situation before and after the Army's current

16 initiative to combat sexual assault and

17 domestic violence.

18             From my firsthand experience, the

19 prosecution process in regard to the way

20 victims have been treated has drastically

21 improved.  I have reported these drastic

22 improvements to members of my command and



Page 16

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1 expressed my willingness for them to share my

2 experiences in hopes of supporting the current

3 initiative and helping others.

4             I never thought that this report

5 would bring me here today before you. 

6 However, I'm happy to be here as a survivor,

7 as a soldier, and as a Commander to support

8 the continued positive changes.  I have

9 brought with me my Special Victim Counsel,

10 Captain Chris Morrissey.  Captain Morrissey

11 has advised me that although my offender's

12 court-martial is over, the appellate process

13 is not complete so I will limit my testimony

14 today to ensure that I do not complicate any

15 of these proceedings.

16             I am more than willing to answer

17 any of your questions and Capital Morrissey

18 will let us know if there is anything that I

19 am not allowed to discuss.  In order for me to

20 convey the changes I've witnessed through this

21 recent court-martial, I must, unfortunately,

22 describe how I was treated prior to the Army's
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1 current initiative.

2             From 2004 to 2006, I was in a very

3 volatile relationship.  I was physically and

4 sexually assaulted on numerous occasions by

5 another soldier.  The abuser was a Staff

6 Sergeant, later promoted to Sergeant First

7 Class while I was a Sergeant E5 at the time.

8 He was very well respected in our unit by

9 fellow soldiers and our command team, and

10 though I sought help from my command on

11 numerous occasions, my cries for help were

12 deliberately ignored.

13             At one point, I sought out my

14 Command Sergeant Major for help one-on-one in

15 her office, and her response to me was, if you

16 would just listen to him, he would stop

17 hitting you.  At this point, I was living in

18 fear and had absolutely no faith that my

19 command would protect me.  It was not until I

20 was assaulted again while pregnant, as a

21 patient in a hospital bed that he was finally

22 court-martialed.



Page 18

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1             Even at this court-martial, he was

2 only found guilty of throwing a chair at an

3 officer who came to my rescue.  From this

4 proceeding, he was reduced one rank.  At this

5 point, additional reporting seemed senseless.

6 In 2012, I was informed that my abuser was

7 being investigated for offenses arising from

8 physical and sexual assaults against his

9 current wife.

10             It was difficult and terrifying to

11 think of going forward, only to get let down

12 by the system again.  However, knowing in the

13 back of my mind that he was continuing to

14 abuse women, I knew I had to come forward and

15 share.  It was a hard, but the right decision.

16             My experience this time around was

17 completely different and incomparable to the

18 first.  Charges were filed against him to

19 include two previous sexual assaults against

20 me.  He was found guilty and, though years

21 later, he was finally held accountable for his

22 actions.  The offender in this case was
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1 sentenced to demotion to E1, dishonorable

2 discharge, forfeiture of pay and allowances

3 and 25 years confinement.  It is never

4 positive when a person is sent to prison;

5 however, these changes have improved our

6 system and assisted in holding him accountable

7 for these actions.

8             I cannot express to you how much

9 different the atmosphere, the command support,

10 and the available services were between my

11 initial reports and my experience over the

12 past year.  The JAG Corps and the Army need to

13 know that the changes that have been made in

14 policy and services have directly impacted my

15 life and the life of my family.

16             I am finally able to move on from

17 this horrible time in my life, and it is

18 because of the changes that the Army has

19 initiated and their handling of sexual assault

20 and domestic violence crimes.  In 2009, almost

21 five years after I was first assaulted, I

22 finally received the social work services that
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1 put me on the road to recovery.  I was sent to

2 the Warrior Transition Unit and a scrub of my

3 medical record was conducted.  It showed I had

4 been in an abusive relationship.  Due to this,

5 I was required to go to a domestic violence

6 and sexual assault workgroup and attend one-

7 on-one counseling.

8             It was finally at this time that I

9 was able to really feel safe enough to open up

10 about the horrible things that I had been

11 through.  My counselor at  an

12 individual and group therapist, helped me

13 understand that I had nothing to be ashamed

14 of.  After group therapy sessions, I realized

15 that I was not alone, that other women were

16 suffering the same way I was, to include

17 constant fear and unstoppable nightmares.

18             It was the first time that I could

19 really admit to myself that I had post-

20 traumatic stress disorder and I needed help.

21 It was as though a flood of emotion and

22 reality hit me at once, my panic attacks,
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1 anxiety, nightmares, crazy fears, stress, it

2 had all been bottled up, because I needed to

3 be a good mom and I needed to be a good

4 soldier.

5             My psychological well being took

6 the back burner.  I cannot stress enough the

7 change in the quality of counseling I

8 received, and I cannot stress to you enough

9 how important it is for the Army to have

10 qualified, dedicated mental health

11 professionals and social workers available for

12 all of its victims.

13             As I previously mentioned, I was

14 extremely skeptical of the military justice

15 system and the process prior to this court-

16 martial.  However, through my reporting and

17 interviews, for the first time since the mid-

18 2000s, I had hope that I would finally be

19 heard.  The prosecutors were very professional

20 and always very respectful.  Though I had to

21 speak of the horrific details surrounding the

22 crimes, they were delicate in listening and
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1 never made me feel ashamed of the things I had

2 been through.

3             After the Army initiated the

4 Special Victims Counsel program, I was

5 requested and immediately granted an SVC.  He

6 was able to work with me through the entire

7 court-martial process.  He was able to hear

8 the past ten years of my horror, explain the

9 trial process which I was about to go through,

10 and assist me in understanding the complex and

11 incomprehensible rules of the courts.

12             Due to the statute of limitations,

13 I was extremely limited on events I was

14 allowed to discuss during the court-martial. 

15 I was not allowed to discuss any physical

16 abuse, the first court-martial, nor any of the

17 violations to no contact orders that my abuser

18 had been given.  It was very difficult to

19 discuss with the court-martial the sexual

20 assaults without having a frame of reference

21 to any of the physical things I had been

22 through prior to.
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1             Though I was extremely frustrated

2 and let down that the court would not hear my

3 entire story, my SVC was able to shift my

4 focus by thoroughly explaining the evidence

5 rules and allowing me to understand everything

6 I still could discuss.  It is a program that

7 has made a huge difference to me.  I felt

8 incredibly supported that an attorney was

9 assigned just to me, whose only allegiance was

10 my best interest.

11             The best description I can give

12 this is that a court-martial is like a chess

13 game, the defense and the prosecution are the

14 people making the moves, black and white

15 pieces, and the victims are just chess pieces

16 that don't know the overall plan.  The SVC was

17 able to support me while the prosecution and

18 defense were moving their chess pieces. 

19             Though overall, the handling of

20 sexual assault cases in the Army has

21 dramatically improved, there is still room for

22 improvement.  The following recommendations
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1 are based on my personal experiences.  First,

2 after the charges were formally filed, I was

3 assigned a Victim Witness Liaison.  This

4 Victim Witness Liaison was not helpful.  

5             She was not able to offer any

6 meaningful assistance during my process.  The

7 Witness Liaison did not have privilege

8 communication with me, so she could not know

9 the details of the investigation, nor she

10 include herself in them.  I recommend that

11 Victim Witness Liaisons not be a part-time or

12 a collateral duty for people who are not

13 passionate in the job.  Any Army personnel,

14 civilian, or military personnel who work with

15 the victims have to want to be there to help,

16 and must have the best training and resources

17 possible.

18             Second, I recommend that CID

19 institutes a policy to minimize the turnover

20 of agents on sexual assault investigations. 

21 These cases are extremely personal and

22 embarrassing, and they should be limited, and
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1 a priority to limit turnover as much as

2 possible.

3             Finally, I want to discuss

4 training in the Army.  The focus for marketing

5 sexual assault focuses on how it's not

6 important -- it's not acceptable.  I fully

7 agree that it isn't acceptable, however, it is

8 my humble opinion that we also need to

9 publicize that victims should not be ashamed

10 of their abusers actions. 

11             They are survivors.  This was a

12 very hard lesson for me.  It was very

13 difficult to accept that I should not be

14 ashamed of what happened.  It was not my

15 fault.  This is an important message for all

16 victims, especially those victims who have not

17 yet decided to or not to report.

18             In the end, I am a very different

19 person who sits before you today.  I am very

20 glad to hear that experts like yourselves are

21 examining our system and trying to make better

22 changes.  I believe that all of the changes
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1 over the past few years have made a big

2 difference, especially the Special Victims

3 Counsel, and certainly they have changed my

4 experience.  But I think there is still more

5 that needs to be done and I hope the Army can

6 continue to improve, so that nobody else has

7 to experience what I went through.  Thank you.

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

9 Thank you very much.

10             Ms. PC?

11             MS. PC:  Hi, I'm Ms. PC from Air

12 Force.  

13             My assault occurred March 17 of

14 last year.  The perpetrator was somebody I

15 worked with.  We weren't necessarily friends,

16 and he lived directly next door to me.  The

17 restricted report happened about three days

18 after the assault, and the report went

19 unrestricted two weeks after the assault or

20 the restricted report was filed.  The court-

21 martial took place in December, and although

22 there was an additional victim, he was
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1 acquitted of all charges.

2             I do have some recommendations. 

3 While I had filed a restricted report, I was

4 unable to have my room moved due to clauses in

5 it where, if your Command is notified, it

6 automatically becomes unrestricted.  So I

7 lived next to the person that assaulted me for

8 two weeks after.

9             Mental health, I think they should

10 be trained on how to work with sexual assault

11 victims.  After the court-martial, I kind of

12 went, like, on a fast, downward slope and I

13 spent 17 days in a psychiatric hospital

14 afterwards. And I was finally able to get the

15 help I needed.  I got lucky, there was a Major

16 TDY in there that did a prolonged exposure

17 therapy with me, that really helped a lot.

18             Some of the other issues I had, I

19 don't know if that it's something you'll be

20 able to fix, but in my unit where I worked, I

21 mean once the report became unrestricted, they

22 kind of turned into a choosing sides battle. 
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1 I had my food stolen.  I had my wallet stolen. 

2 I had to dig it out of the trash.  It was just

3 overall really bad.  I did have my SVC, he

4 helped a lot in explaining how the court

5 system worked for me.  He talked to my

6 Commander when these events were happening, to

7 kind of get me moved.

8             The court-martial process,

9 realistically, it was kind of like watching

10 Divorce Court, like you go in there and you

11 confuse a situation enough to where there's

12 just a reasonable amount of doubt, then you

13 can get away with anything.

14             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

15 Thank you.

16             MS. PC:  Thank you.

17             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:

18 Thank you.  Mr. IC?

19             MR. IC:  I am Mr. IC.  I actually

20 was assaulted by someone who I thought was a

21 friend.

22             It was one of those things I was
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1 just looking for somebody to hang out with. I

2 met him online.  Then we hung out, I think in

3 the three weeks, I had actually gone, or like

4 within a month, or something had gone to

5 [redacted] with him.   You know, totally

6 trustworthy, a really good person, you know,

7 karaoke --

8             DEAN ANDERSON:  Could I interrupt. 

9 I'm very sorry.  Is it possible to turn up the

10 sound on that side?  My sound on this side is

11 at an all-time high and I wonder if it's

12 possible to, either move the microphone closer

13 to the witnesses, or turn up the volume on

14 that side?

15             MS. SAUNDERS:  We're moving it.

16             DEAN ANDERSON:  Thank you.

17             MR. IC:  Can you hear me now?

18             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes I can, thank

19 you.

20             MR. IC:  Okay, so my experience

21 was with someone who I thought was a friend

22 and basically, we decided to go up to
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1 [redacted] and hang out at the club, got a

2 room.  Everything was, you know, we always

3 split everything 50/50.  So never any hint of

4 any kind of relationship, or anything like

5 that.

6             You know, got a room with two beds

7 in it so it would be separate.  Went to the

8 club, had a great time, ended up just I guess

9 overdoing it with the drinking a little bit.

10 Because, you know, I am a drinker, but I don't

11 drink necessarily that much.  And then I ran

12 out of money, I think, and then so we get to

13 the bar and he paid for a Long Island, which

14 -- I've never had one of those.

15             And then after the club, I wasn't

16 actually, I don't remember actually getting

17 back to the hotel room.  So, yes, then I woke

18 up, and it was basically like a string on a

19 piece of meat was what it felt like.  And I

20 was really confused about like what had

21 happened.  My eyes didn't open.  So that's

22 basically the short story of it.  Finally
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1 when, I don't know how long it was, but I woke

2 up later, and I finally got to the bathroom,

3 because I remembered my way around the room to

4 get to the bathroom.

5             And then when I was done after

6 like waking up, nodding out, waking up again,

7 I finally got back to my bedside and I called

8 9-1-1 because I thought I was going to die,

9 that's how literally bad I felt, just because

10 I'd never had that much to drink, ever.

11             So when I called 9-1-1, they asked

12 if there was, you know, an assault happened or

13 whatever, and I said I think so.    The reason

14 why I remember this is because I heard myself

15 in the courtroom when they played back the

16 tape.  I didn't actually remember saying that

17 at that time because I was so intoxicated. 

18 So, then the ambulance picked me up and the

19 first responders laughed at me because, I mean

20 it was a funny situation, don't get me wrong.

21             Basically, what had happened was

22 is I had semen from my left shoulder all on my
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1 chest.  And then, you know, I didn't realize

2 that all that was there, because I was just

3 trying to function and remember where my

4 clothes were on the other side of the bed, so

5 I could get to the ambulance.  So if I

6 remember correctly, I walked down to the

7 ambulance and I got in.  But then still in and

8 out of consciousness, I got to the VA hospital

9 in [redacted], and they were able to take care

10 of everything.

11             In that process, they actually

12 asked me if I wanted to speak to a SARC or

13 police, you know, whoever.  And I chose a SARC

14 and they were able to get to the hospital, and

15 it was Easter, so it was Easter night -- or

16 Easter morning, sorry.  So, when they got to

17 the hospital, they asked me a couple of

18 questions.  They said I had to, you know, wait

19 until my blood alcohol level had come to a

20 certain level, so they could actually really

21 ask me and questions.

22             Got me to the nurse examiner, it
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1 was great.  We got back to [redacted], which

2 is [redacted] base, and then they had to

3 figure out a way to get me home because at the

4 time, I was still thinking that this is my

5 friend.

6             I didn't have any problem with

7 this, so I didn't have -- my cell phone wasn't

8 charged I believe, so I was just trying to get

9 back to get home with my friend.  And they

10 specified that that wasn't a good idea, so

11 they eventually got me back home. 

12 Unfortunately, trying to coordinate with my

13 SARC, who was also my Victim Advocate behind

14 me.  And the, I guess, Victim Advocate that

15 was currently assigned, for a very brief

16 period my report went unrestricted while I was

17 still in [redacted].

18             So that was a very strange process

19 to figure out, because I just wanted it to be

20 over.  I wanted it to, you know, to file

21 restricted report, and not have to do that. 

22 But then when I got back to my base within
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1 less than 24 hours, I was already in the OSI

2 office and I was talking with the SARC and,

3 you know, all these different things. 

4 Luckily, I had actually met the SARC before

5 and we actually, you know, talked about

6 languages, you know, different things.  So I

7 had a friendly relationship with my SARC.

8             And everyone in my process was

9 able to handle everything in a very

10 professional manner.  So my Commander, my

11 First Shirt, and my SARC, my Victim Witness,

12 like all of them, I still keep in touch with

13 them today, and they're a really great support

14 system and very helpful in my process.

15             I was introduced to the Special

16 Victims lawyer very late, because the process,

17 I had just read about the process and it

18 started, this all happened about two years

19 ago, so it was right when they were sort of

20 spinning up the program.  And at that point,

21 like it was just before trial that I was, I

22 believe it was in December and my trial was in
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1 March or April, that I was actually introduced

2 to my counsel.

3             The process was difficult to

4 comprehend, and it was sort of fed to me in

5 pieces that I could understand, but it was

6 always at a very difficult time for me to

7 actually get through being, you know, to

8 really understand and figure out exactly okay,

9 I have to tell this and then this is what

10 happens with the charges.  And then this is

11 what I have to do in the courtroom and this

12 is, you know.

13             And so it was never, I guess,

14 necessarily explained in the manner I would

15 like to think is, you know, all spread out,

16 laid out before you.  But it wasn't

17 necessarily wrong for them to do that, in my

18 opinion, just because in chunks, it was better

19 than hearing it all at once, and trying to

20 process all that while still trying to deal

21 with the emotions.

22             My case turned out to be
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1 acquitted, but if I -- basically, I came to a

2 point in my life and my faith where I was able

3 to forgive him before I went into the

4 courtroom.  Because if I didn't, then my life

5 would have been a mess, it really would have.

6 And I thank God for my Chaplain and for

7 everyone who has helped me with this process

8 because without them, I wouldn't be able to

9 get through it, because this is definitely

10 something that I would not tell my mother

11 about.  But it is something that I had to go

12 through. 

13             So, yes, with that being said, I

14 knew I had to actually -- because I really

15 wanted to back out, but I knew that I had to

16 go through this process just because I'm not

17 doing this just for me, I'm doing this to make

18 sure that my justice system works.  And I'm

19 doing this to make sure that I am also holding

20 my rapist accountable for his actions under

21 this legal system, so that it works.

22             After that, I was thankful for
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1 everything that everyone did including the

2 defense counsel just because they actually did

3 their job, and it was important to know that

4 this process is there, and it actually, I

5 guess it worked itself out, not necessarily

6 the way I might have wanted it to, but I'm not

7 necessarily upset with the outcome. And it

8 took me about, I don't know, maybe a day or a

9 week, or whatever to come to terms with that. 

10 But that's all I have.

11             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

12 Thank you all.  And first of all, I just want

13 to begin by saying I am so sorry all of this

14 happened to all of you.  It's a horrible --

15             DEAN ANDERSON:  It's hard to hear

16 the comments that are being made right now. 

17 I apologize, but wherever the mike is, it's

18 not making it so clear. So if you could speak

19 up, that'd be great.

20             MS. SAUNDERS:  Why don't we leave

21 it there?

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 
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1 Leave it there and I'll just speak up.  Again,

2 I just want to say I am very, very sorry for

3 what you've all gone through.  You should have

4 been safe in your situations and you were not. 

5 And I just want to say I'm sorry.

6             I also want to say, it's

7 incredibly, incredibly courageous for all of

8 you to come forward.  People can -- people

9 talk about being in a war, you guys have been

10 in a personal war, and against the military. 

11 Not too many people can say that.  So you're

12 incredibly courageous for being here.

13             And I think I can speak for the

14 whole panel and the staff, that we're

15 incredibly proud of you for coming forward. 

16 It shows a sign of true public service that

17 you've come forward, and you're willing to

18 speak about really personal situations in

19 order to help others.  There is no other

20 better public service.  So I just want to

21 thank you again for coming forward.

22             I do have some specific questions. 
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1 A few of you have talked about it almost

2 seemed like there was blurry line between when

3 you went restricted and unrestricted.  Was it

4 unclear to you as to when you could go?

5             I have one more thank you to say,

6 and that is to all of the supporters in the

7 back.  You all have different positions, but

8 you are all turning around the system, and I

9 want to say thank you to all of you for being

10 here in the support of these survivors.

11             But going back to my question, it

12 seemed as though it wasn't clear as to -- or

13 that it wasn't totally your decision to go

14 from unrestricted, I mean from restricted to

15 unrestricted.  Did I hear that wrong?  Or is

16 that -- is there confusion out there as to

17 what one means as compared to another?

18             MS. EM:  I can't say that would

19 really be applicable to my situation.

20             MS. JP:  I filed a restricted

21 report early on and it literally consisted of

22 me telling the doctor that it had happened and
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1 that was it.  I had mentioned it through other

2 people and sought guidance, kind of,

3 throughout the entire process.   The challenge

4 for me, I knew very, like when I filed an

5 unrestricted report, I knew very clearly that

6 that's what I was doing.  In my situation, I

7 had such lack of my command, and I had such

8 lack of support through all of the abuse that

9 I had already been through, I consciously made

10 a decision not to file an unrestricted report

11 until I felt safe enough to do that.

12             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Let

13 me, just a backup question on that one.  You

14 had said at one point that you went and

15 scrubbed your health records.  What does that

16 mean?

17             MS. JP:  So, I was assigned to the 

18 Warrior Transition Battalion.  I got hurt and

19 so I was sent to another unit.  The Warrior

20 Transition Battalion takes the soldiers that

21 have been injured, however they've been

22 injured, in war, or in training exercises and
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1 whatnot, they did a scrub of my record.

2             So they kind of went through and

3 said, oh you've had a hip injury, and you had

4 a shoulder problem, and you were in an abusive

5 relationship, and so they kind of did a line

6 by line like, we're going to make sure that

7 you're taken care of completely as a whole

8 soldier.  So I didn't physically do it, it was

9 the staff at the Warriors Transition --

10             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

11 what does that do, going line by line, that so

12 they say this is your shoulder is because of

13 the domestic violence situation or no?

14             MS. JP:  I got accepted to the WTU

15 because of an injury that I had received at my

16 unit and they just -- they go through to make

17 sure that -- I don't want to give a

18 percentage, but there are a lot of people that

19 go from a Warrior Transition Unit out of 

20 military.

21             It's kind of a transitional unit. 

22 It's people that have gotten hurt and then
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1 they, you know, transition to civilian life. 

2 And so before that happens, they really have

3 to make sure that they've addressed all of the

4 problems that you have.  And so, as soon as I

5 got there, they, within a day, had kind of

6 said, okay, this is where you need to be set

7 up, and these are physical therapy and

8 occupational therapy, and social work

9 services.

10             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

11 Okay.

12             MS. PC:  It was very clear for me. 

13 My case was really recent, so they might have

14 changed a lot of stuff, but it's very clear

15 when you go from restricted to unrestricted. 

16 There's paperwork you have to initial and sign

17 now.  

18             MR. IC:  And as for me, I, my

19 gosh, I wanted to file a restricted report,

20 but it was taken out of my hands before I was

21 even able to really get anything on paper.

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Why
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1 was it taken out of your hands?

2             MR. IC:  The Victim Advocate that

3 was assigned at [redacted] actually was trying

4 to figure out how to get me time off, to take

5 care of the things that needed to be taken

6 care of, and then when, I believe it was my

7 First Shirt was called, and the word victim

8 was mentioned, that made it go unrestricted.

9             MS. PC:  That's one of the clauses

10 on there, on the restricted report, was why I

11 couldn't get my room moved.  If it's mentioned

12 anywhere to your command, it's automatically

13 unrestricted, whether you want it to be or

14 not.

15             COL SCHENCK:  So an inadvertent

16 disclosure of --

17             MR. IC:  Yes.

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

19 Okay.  That's what I was getting to.  That's

20 what I was --

21             So in your case, you mentioned

22 victim, and that automatically made you an
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1 unrestricted report?

2             MR. IC:  Correct.  I had no idea

3 who my Victim Advocate was yet, and so I mean

4 literally, like, I was sobering up at the

5 nurse examiner, and then got to the first SARC

6 in [redacted] and then, you know, she said oh

7 well, this is already all unrestricted and I

8 was thinking I could still file a restricted

9 so I was confused.  And then once I got back

10 to [redacted] and, you know, talked to OSI and

11 everything like that, they were like it's

12 already unrestricted because --

13             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

14 Because you had talked to a SARC?

15             MR. IC:  No, no, no, because my

16 Victim Advocate was trying to get me the time

17 off to talk to all these people, because it

18 happened, you know, it happened on a Saturday

19 night.  So Sunday, getting all the way back

20 four hours away to [redacted], and then

21 talking on Monday when everyone came in, she

22 was trying to make sure that I was taken care



Page 45

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1 of, but in that process, it went unrestricted.

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Excuse me, can I

3 interrupt one second?  I thought we had rules

4 that were --

5             DEAN ANDERSON:  So just to

6 understand, could I jump in --

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  -- but I have the

8 floor.  Excuse me, Liz Holtzman, I have the

9 floor at the moment.  Because this is a

10 technical issue.  I think we had said as

11 ground rules here that the names of the bases

12 would not be disclosed, and so I think that we

13 ought to make some rules here in case there is

14 inadvertent disclosure of any material that's

15 not supposed to be disclosed that it can be

16 stricken from the record.  I don't know how we

17 can do that, but I certainly hope that that

18 can be done.

19             COL SCHENCK:  In other words, the

20 transcript has to be reviewed by one of the

21 staff?

22             MS. SAUNDERS:  Exactly, which when
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1 we get the initial draft of the transcript, we

2 have an attorney go through it, and we could

3 take care of it at that time.

4             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay, I just want

5 to make sure that'd be the case, and I think

6 there might have been an issue with regard to

7 a name early on.  So let's make sure that we

8 protect the identity.

9             CDR KING:  She, we discussed it

10 and she chose to release her name, so --

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay.

12             MS. EM:  I'm a civilian, I don't

13 have the same concern that someone --

14             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay.

15             MS. EM:   -- in the same way.

16             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Thank you.  Okay.

17 Sorry, Dean.  I just wanted to make sure we

18 were protecting the witnesses.

19             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  And

20 I'm just trying to get --

21             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, of course.

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  --
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1 a clear understanding of how you went from

2 unrestricted, I mean from restricted to

3 unrestricted.

4             MS. PC:  When you get a restricted

5 report, when you make an initial report,

6 there's clauses to it almost like, it's a

7 legal document.

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

9 Right.

10             MS. PC:  You initial on each

11 clause, and you sign at the bottom, and you

12 get another piece of paper to go -- well, it's

13 on the same sheet of paper but it's on the

14 back to go unrestricted and you kind of

15 initial, I understand I'm going unrestricted,

16 and you resign it and date it, and then from

17 that point on it starts the whole legal

18 process.

19             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No,

20 I get that part but you said that one of the

21 reasons that you were still living next to

22 your perpetrator was because you had gone
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1 unrestricted.

2             MS. PC:  Oh no, I was still

3 restricted then.  I didn't want to go

4 unrestricted.  One of the main reasons I went

5 unrestricted was to get my room moved.  With

6 a restricted report, one of those clauses is

7 that, if like your chain of command, for

8 example, your First Sergeant finds out, then

9 it kind of kick starts the whole legal process

10 whether you want it to or not.  So I was kind

11 of stuck in this --

12             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  So

13 in order to get your room changed --

14             MS. PC: Yes.

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  --

16 you had to go unrestricted?

17             MS. PC:  Yes.

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

19 Okay.

20             COL SCHENCK:  Did you request to

21 be transferred?  You had said you indicated

22 that you had issues with members of the unit
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1 taking actions against you.  

2             MS. PC:  Yes.

3             COL SCHENCK:  Did you request to

4 be transferred?

5             MS. PC:  I was transferred before

6 the start of the court-martial, but that was

7 maybe six, seven months after the initial

8 assault.  So, I mean I was eventually

9 transferred.

10             COL SCHENCK:  Were you informed by

11 anybody like SVC or SARC, the VA, did anybody

12 inform you that you could request a transfer

13 from the unit?

14             MS. PC:  Oh, you mean the

15 expedited transfer?

16             COL SCHENCK:  Yes.

17             MS. PC:  I was aware that I could

18 transfer, however, I did not want to take this

19 with me to a new base and then have to come

20 back for the court-martial, come back for

21 questioning and so I did eventually transfer. 

22 I just transferred actually.  But --
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1             COL SCHENCK:  How about at the

2 installation?  Nobody offered a transfer

3 within the installation?

4             MS. PC:  I did transfer.  One of

5 the problems I had was early on my Command

6 tried to get him moved to get us separated and

7 no other command on base would take him.  They

8 didn't want to deal with it.  So he ended up

9 still working with me on different shifts.

10             There was a no contact order in

11 place, but I still saw him around.  He was

12 still around.  He lived across the street.

13             So I mean I eventually, I ended up

14 being moved to a smaller weather flight

15 towards the end of this thing and that helped

16 a lot.  But --        

17             COL SCHENCK:  So in the Air Force,

18 did they, and this is just a general question,

19 so in the Air Force, would only you request a

20 transfer?  Could they not have forced him to

21 be transferred?  Do you see what I mean?

22             MS. PC:  No, I don't think they
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1 could force him to transfer.  It's more of

2 like I think it would be taken as a punishment

3 in that case and you can't punish somebody

4 that's found not guilty or not proven guilty.

5             COL SCHENCK:  You can -- I'm a

6 former JAG, you can move someone as long as

7 they're doing a job.  You can't move them from 

8 --

9             MS. PC:  Yes, but they tried to

10 move him but no other Command would take him

11 on.

12             COL SCHENCK:  Would take him, yes,

13 but --

14             MS. PC:  So they ended up moving

15 me.  And that was probably better considering

16 everything that was happening in the squadron. 

17 So they moved me and the other victim.

18             COL SCHENCK:  You all who

19 testified at the court-martial first of all,

20 that is just tremendous that you did that.  I

21 think that is so unbelievably stressful.  The

22 process is unbelievably long.  So as Ms.
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1 Fernandez said, we really respect your courage

2 for that.

3             Did the court allow you to stay in

4 the courtroom throughout the entire court-

5 martial process or were you asked -- you and

6 your victim counsel were --

7             MS. EM:  Well, in our case, we

8 weren't allowed to hear his testimony, which

9 I thought was ironic.  We were allowed to come

10 in once the defense was finished basically

11 with their portion, we came in and did our

12 individual testimony.

13             Once we started speaking, we were

14 allowed to sit in there.  The only part of the

15 process that we got to hear was when he made

16 an unsworn statement, which I'm sure as a JAG,

17 you're familiar with, where basically, what he

18 said couldn't be challenged by the prosecution

19 and so we had to listen to him speak about his

20 great career and how he took care of a special

21 needs child and his three-year-old daughter

22 and his wife and --
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1             COL SCHENCK:  So that was on

2 sentencing.  He had been convicted at that

3 time?

4             MS. EM:  He pled.  Yes, he pled,

5 so that's all we got to hear.  But prior to

6 that, we weren't allowed to be a part of it,

7 no.

8             COL SCHENCK:  Anybody else with a

9 court-martial?

10             MS. JP:  I was not able to.  I

11 wasn't formally excused until it was over.

12             MS. PC:  I was not able to in case

13 I was called back for further questions.

14             MR. IC:  And if I remember

15 correctly, I was actually given a choice and

16 I chose to stay with my victim witness liaison

17 just because it's easier and you're actually

18 able to talk about things that are being said

19 and other stuff that would get me away from

20 the mind set of having to just wait for a very

21 long time until the process was over.

22             COL SCHENCK:  I have one last



Page 54

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1 question.  Ms. JP, you had indicated this

2 victim witness liaison, because I used to be

3 one of those back in the day, did anybody

4 describe to you what the function of the

5 victim witness liaison was and could you tell

6 us what your perception of their

7 responsibilities were?

8             MS. JP:  So, I had the experience

9 of going and kind of saying I've had a

10 horrible experience with family advocacy, I

11 really don't want one.  And it wasn't really

12 kind of a choice, you know.  They said she's

13 yours, here you are.

14             She went with me when I made my

15 CID report and I kind of just said to her

16 point blank, why are you here?  Because, you

17 know, she was playing on the phone.  She

18 really was not attentive to what was going on. 

19 I had questions.

20             It was very stressful, the things

21 -- I mean I was with CID for approximately

22 eight hours.  It was a very long day to talk
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1 about it and then to have to clarify and, you

2 know, to type it all up and she said, well,

3 I'm here for emotional support.

4             COL SCHENCK:  So this was the

5 original report, before --?

6             MS. JP:  No, ma'am.

7             COL SCHENCK:  This was the second

8 one?

9             MS. JP:  This was the second, yes,

10 ma'am.

11             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  And

12 this is the one that went well?

13             MS. JP:  This is the one that went

14 well, yes, ma'am.

15             COL SCHENCK:  Except for that VWL.

16             MS. JP:  There came a point where

17 I guess she left or wasn't employed anymore

18 and I did not inquire further because --

19             COL SCHENCK:  She was a civilian

20 in the JAG office?

21             MS. JP:  She was a civilian that

22 worked, I believe for ACS or family advocacy
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1 who would be a victim witness liaison for the

2 office that I was assigned to.  So I was given

3 her name and number by the JAG office.  But it

4 just, it was confusing to me what her role

5 really was.

6             COL SCHENCK:  Confusing to me,

7 too.  Thank you.

8             DEAN ANDERSON:  Would if have been

9 helpful to have a lawyer involved earlier in

10 any of these processes?

11             MS. EM:  Ours was involved pretty

12 early.  We actually were privileged enough to

13 have the same prosecuting attorney for the

14 whole process which I know lots of times they

15 get changed out pretty frequently.

16             We had one that stayed with us

17 through the whole process for almost two

18 years.  So she was with us for most of it.

19             MS.  JP:  And this is Ms. JP, if I

20 could just clarify your question, are you

21 referring to the special victims counsel?

22             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, I am.
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1             MS. JP:  So, hands down, I believe

2 that if my special victim counsel would have

3 been with me from the beginning, it would have

4 been an easier process.  Unfortunately, the

5 Army did not initiate this program until

6 November 1 of 2013.  So I was given him very

7 late in the game.  We had already kind of been

8 through the Article 32 and all of the

9 proceedings filing up to this point.

10             But my special victim counsel

11 essentially cleared his calendar and said I'm

12 yours for a week.  We have a week to get ready

13 for this, let's get ready.  

14             You know, so I absolutely cannot

15 express to anybody that I will ever talk to

16 how important he was in making sure that I was

17 really kind of able to, you know, deal with

18 what was going on. 

19             And like I said, I cannot come up

20 with a better analogy than it's a chess piece

21 and I really, as a victim, I was one of two

22 victims.  We were kind of just there.  You
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1 know?  And so once the court-martial started,

2 you really don't have any communication with

3 anybody anymore.

4             And so it would have been amazing

5 to have him the whole time but the amount of

6 time I had him, I made the best of what I had.

7             COL SCHENCK:  Did the other victim

8 have a different SVC?

9             MS. JP:  Yes, ma'am, she did.

10             REP. HOLTZMAN:  May I ask some

11 questions please?

12             Mr. IC, was your assailant also a

13 member of the military?

14             MR. IC:  Yes.  Yes.  What made it

15 a little bit strange was that he actually

16 worked in a different area of medical so I

17 wouldn't normally have to, you know, interact

18 with him for anything, any appointments or

19 anything like that on a regular basis.

20             But just the fact that, you know,

21 walking to the clinic somewhere and like hope

22 that I don't pass him or something at any
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1 point was, is still a bit challenging.

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  So you haven't

3 requested or have you requested a transfer?

4             MR. IC:  No, no.

5             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Do you feel you

6 need one?

7             MR. IC:  No, because I've seen him

8 twice and both times, it's just walk by, don't

9 say anything and it was just the department

10 and whatever.

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  And you're

12 satisfied with the counseling you received

13 from the victims counsel, from SARC, from the

14 military?

15             MR. IC:  Yes.  It has, I guess,

16 well, as Ms. JP was also saying, the way that

17 the defense and the prosecution sort of handle

18 you as a witness is not necessarily the way I

19 would have expected it to be just because it's

20 the Air Force trying this person, not you

21 against this person.

22             And that's where the special
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1 victims counsel was actually very helpful

2 because I knew that someone could explain to

3 me what the situation was and could really

4 talk about everything and then speak up on my

5 behalf at the same time.

6             Since it was so early in the

7 program, my special victims counsel was just

8 sort of like the third person in the

9 courtroom.  He wasn't actually able to really

10 speak and/or -- I mean he did, you know, give

11 notes for the Air Force to officers that were

12 actually trying the case to take and go

13 forward with but directly could not actually

14 pursue or examine the witness.

15             DEAN ANDERSON:  In other words,

16 your counsel could not speak in the hearing?

17             MR. IC:  I believe that's correct,

18 yes.

19             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Ms. PC, I'd like

20 to follow-up on your situation.

21             By the way, let me thank everyone

22 for the courage and the stamina to come
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1 forward and we're very grateful.  I'm

2 grateful, so thank you.  I know how difficult

3 it is for each of you and thanks to your

4 support staff, too.

5             DEAN ANDERSON:  Liz, I can't hear

6 you.

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay, I'm just

8 thanking the witnesses.

9             I want to ask --

10             DEAN ANDERSON:  Okay.

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  -- Ms. PC about

12 the issue of retaliation after you made a non-

13 restricted report.  You said people felt they

14 had to choose sides.  

15             Did someone protect you in this

16 process?  Was there someone who could give you

17 help in this process or how did you handle it?

18             MS. PC:  For a while, I just kind

19 of kept it to myself, you know, like the snide

20 comments or whatever, but once like items of

21 mine started to come up missing, I talked to

22 my SVC and he did talk to the first shirt and
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1 the commander on my behalf so that they knew,

2 you know, kind of what was happening.

3             It was kind of hard especially if

4 you're lower ranking to go talk to your

5 commander or your chief and say, hey, you

6 know, I'm being bullied.  It's like high

7 school.

8             So, he talked to them on my behalf

9 and the chief sent out kind of an e-mail about

10 it not identifying me but stating, you know,

11 like this is unacceptable.  Anybody found

12 doing this, you know, and I was moved after

13 that.  So --

14             REP. HOLTZMAN:  So did you feel

15 satisfied that they were standing up for you

16 that they had your back --

17             MS. PC:  I did feel satisfied -

18             REP. HOLTZMAN:   -- at that point?

19             MS. PC:   -- yes.

20             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Could you have

21 been moved before that?

22             MS. PC:  I don't know.  I have no
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1 idea how moving within, not transferring

2 bases, but moving within bases worked.  It had

3 to be somewhere where I could work.  I was

4 training.  I had to work and he had to work.

5             So I think that was the big issue. 

6 Nobody would take him on but then there was -- 

7 the only option was to move me and I think

8 once they found somewhere for me, they moved

9 me.

10             REP. HOLTZMAN:  But it took them

11 six weeks?  Six months?  How long did it take?

12             MS. PC:  About six months.

13             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  To

14 move you?

15             MS. PC:  Yes.

16             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Could that process

17 have been speeded up do you think?

18             MS. PC:  I don't know.

19             REP. HOLTZMAN:  But if you had to

20 say that that's not a satisfactory result?

21             MS. PC:  No, it's not.

22             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay.
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1             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

2 were -- I'm sorry -- you were living across

3 the street from him for six months?

4             MS. PC:  Well, yes, for more than

5 six months like more like nine, even after the

6 court-martial, I lived kind of across the

7 street from him -- so they moved us in dorms.

8 Oh, sorry.

9             COL SCHENCK:  You said you were

10 training and maybe if we kind of understand

11 what your jobs were it might help us to figure

12 out the moving thing.

13             MS. PC:  I'm a weather forecaster.

14             COL SCHENCK:  That's a cool job.

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Are

16 we going to have warm weather soon?

17             MS. PC:  I go to tech school for

18 eight months, I went to tech school with him. 

19 Then we go to one of four places afterwards

20 for two years training.  And the base where I

21 was was my training base.  

22             So we literally worked 24 hours a
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1 day, we work around the clock.  So we rotate

2 shifts.  I was on days, I was on swings, I was

3 on mids, and then back to days every two

4 months, I rotated shifts. 

5             And so there weren't a lot of

6 places where we could work.  We had to have

7 our -- we had to train.  Even though I was at

8 that base, I didn't belong to that base.  I

9 belonged to a completely different base

10 somewhere else because I was a student

11 technically.

12             COL SCHENCK:  Was that the only

13 place they did that training?

14             MS. PC:  No, there's other hubs,

15 as we call them.  There's three more in the

16 United States, they couldn't send me to one

17 overseas.

18             COL SCHENCK:  No, but I was

19 thinking him.

20             REP HOLTZMAN:  Could they have

21 sent you to another?  Yes, could they have

22 sent you to another base?
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1             MS. PC:  I don't know.  I really

2 didn't want to go to another base because

3 where I was, we didn't even forecast for the

4 United States.  So I would have had to go to

5 another base and then literally start all over

6 learning their AOR, learning what kind of

7 weather they had and what kind of planes they

8 had and who does what in order to support

9 them.

10             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay, let me just

11 ask you one other question which has to do

12 with, you mentioned that there was another

13 victim?

14             MS. PC:  Yes, ma'am.

15             REP. HOLTZMAN:  And was that --

16 were the two trials together?

17             MS. PC:  They were combined.

18             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Combined?

19             MS. PC:  Yes.

20             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay.  And is that

21 victim --

22             DEAN ANDERSON:  How effective was
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1 the warning of your officers telling people

2 that their conduct of taking things was

3 unacceptable?

4             MS. PC:  I don't have an answer to

5 that.  I was moved out of the unit afterward,

6 like right after that.  So I don't know how

7 effective it was or would have been.

8             COL SCHENCK:  Do you know when

9 that second report came?  Did that second

10 report come before you went to unrestricted?

11             MS. PC:  It came after.

12             MR. CASSARA:  Ms. EM, I'd like to

13 just -- you're obviously a civilian now.

14             MS. EM:  Yes.

15             MR. CASSARA:  Did you complete

16 your enlistment?

17             MS. EM:  No, I did not.  I took --

18 they had a reduction of force in the Coast

19 Guard in 2010 and just based on the experience

20 that I'd had, I just kind of I was done after

21 that.  So I went through my command.  I didn't

22 tell them why, obviously.
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1             Oh, the perpetrator in our case

2 actually ended up at the unit or at the sister

3 unit that I was at, so boot camp was in New

4 Jersey.  I was in California.  He came there

5 to be part of that training facility.  So by

6 that time I was just so disgusted with it that

7 I only did a 14 month enlistment and got out.

8             MR. CASSARA:  But your experience

9 did not -- I mean you weren't put out because

10 of --

11             MS. EM:  No, no --

12             MR. CASSARA:  -- anything like

13 that --

14             MS. EM:   -- I chose --

15             MR. CASSARA:   -- or any medical

16 issues or anything like that?

17             MS. EM:  No, I did have a medical

18 issue that I was going to be med boarded for

19 but I was advised that, you know --

20             MR. CASSARA:  I just wanted to

21 make sure that you weren't kicked out because

22 of your --
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1             MS. EM:  No, no, I chose to get

2 out.

3             MR. CASSARA:  -- having been a

4 victim.

5             MS. EM:  I chose to.

6             MR. CASSARA:  For the other three

7 of you.  Have you noticed any negative

8 reflection in your careers as a result?  And

9 I realize you're -- some of these are

10 relatively recent and you've -- you look like

11 you're about 12, so --

12             MS. PC:  Thank you.

13             MR. CASSARA:  But I mean, has it

14 negatively affected your career path in any

15 way, starting with you, Ms. JP?

16             MS. JP:  No.  I think after my

17 abuser's first court-martial and he was not

18 found guilty for what he did to me but he was

19 found guilty for --

20             MR. CASSARA:  Throwing a chair.

21             MS. JP:   -- throwing a chair at

22 an officer, it was really kind of that moment
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1 that I was like, if I stay in the Army, I'm

2 going to become an officer, because if he ever

3 hurts me again, he'll actually get in trouble

4 for it.

5             I contemplated getting out for a

6 bit.  I had a very difficult time with my

7 command and wanted to get out because I just

8 really kind of was done, you know.  But it was

9 actually a JAG person that sat me down and

10 said, listen, if you get out, he's going to be

11 the soldier, you're not.  And I was like oh,

12 well, I'm not getting out then.

13             It took about, I don't know,

14 probably less than 30 days until my OCS packet

15 was put together and signed, ready to go.

16             And so I think quite the contrary

17 to what you're saying.  I think that this

18 disgusting situation pushed me forward.  It

19 made me push harder to become better because

20 I didn't -- it was a horrible experience, but

21 it didn't hold me back.

22             MR. CASSARA:  Ms. PC?
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1             MS. PC:  No, I'm still really

2 young in my career.  I've only been in for two

3 and a half years.  

4             That was something that I really

5 worried about, ruining my career before I even

6 kind of got out the gate.  I held off so long

7 and, you know, getting the help I needed that

8 by the time it came around, I literally just

9 crashed. 

10              I talked to a Chaplain, he told

11 me if I didn't get help right now that I would

12 not be around very long.  He took me to the

13 hospital, he sat with me.  I talked to the

14 Major and I was inpatient within maybe like

15 five, six hours I was at the hospital checked

16 in, inpatient.  

17             So I worried about that.  My

18 commander actually came to visit me at the

19 hospital and, you know, I asked him, I was

20 like, am I going to get med boarded?  Is this

21 like, is this going to ruin me?

22             It's something I really worried
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1 about.  So you know, I don't know what this is

2 going to be look like.  I want to be a flight

3 nurse.  I don't know if I can now because I

4 had PTSD and depression so I --

5             MR. CASSARA:  And the fact that he

6 was acquitted, has that negatively changed any

7 of that?  I mean have they said, well

8 obviously, this didn't happen, so now you're

9 not entitled to these services or anything

10 like that or does that status not change?

11             MS. PC:  No, none of that changes.

12             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.

13             MS. PC:  Kind of in my unit it was

14 kind of like, well, he's not guilty so you're

15 a liar but never with my command, just with

16 the other lower ranking airmen.

17             COL SCHENCK:  So you're in a very

18 specialized field and you are probably going

19 to know where this individual is --

20             MS. PC:  Yes.

21             COL SCHENCK:   -- I would imagine? 

22 And I'm wondering, you said you were located
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1 where the accused was located for months

2 after.

3             MS. PC:  That's something I worry

4 about, too, like later on.  My career field is

5 very small, it's very specialized.

6             COL SCHENCK:  Right.

7             MS. PC:  Already, even in my short

8 two years, I have been pretty much with the

9 same people I went to basic training with,

10 I've been with for two years.  

11             And so, you know, I just PCS'd,

12 just got to my new base.  My instructors at

13 tech school are there, so I've got two

14 instructors there, people already know.

15             I'm worried that later on down the

16 road after I finish my enlistment or if I

17 choose to stay in, am I going to end up in

18 another -- our units are very small -- am I

19 going to end up in another unit with this

20 person?  And if so, I can't do anything about

21 it.  I can't have a no contact order in place

22 because I mean he was acquitted.  There's
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1 nothing to accuse him of.

2             COL SCHENCK:  If someone offered

3 you the opportunity to get another military

4 operational skill rather than stay in your

5 specialized field when you go to re-enlist,

6 would you take that opportunity or would you

7 rather stay in what you're in?

8             MS. PC:  I don't know if I would

9 be offered a chance to change my skill.  

10             COL SCHENCK:  But if you could,

11 like if you could?

12             MS. PC:  If I could, depending on

13 what the job I would be taking was, I would. 

14 They don't let a lot of people cross train out

15 of my career field because you can cross train

16 into my career field so --

17             COL SCHENCK:  Right, yours is very

18 hard to get.

19             MS. PC:  Yes.  So --

20             COL SCHENCK:  I was thinking, you

21 know, to avoid him, that's all.

22             MS. PC:  Yes.



Page 75

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, but that's,

2 I think, a very important issue that's raised,

3 which is how you can, even if there's an

4 acquittal, there still needs to be some --

5             COL SCHENCK:  Right.

6             REP. HOLTZMAN:   -- way to --

7 right, some rights and some ways in which

8 people can be protected in that circumstance.

9             COL SCHENCK:  Exactly.

10             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I mean it's quite

11 clear that the military thinks that people are

12 still entitled to health services and mental

13 health services, so there ought to be

14 something that's part of that process.

15             COL SCHENCK:  Because it is not

16 beyond the scope of possibilities when you're

17 in such a specialized field that you would be

18 co-located, you know, if he's seen, even

19 within the command.  And that's something we

20 need to --

21             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Do you see a way -

22 -
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1             DEAN ANDERSON:  Can I jump in and

2 ask a question when the floor is open?

3             MR. IC:  Can I speak really quick?

4             To speak to your situation as

5 well, I know that there are many weather

6 squadrons that are actually on Army posts and

7 they are the Air Force unit on an Army post so

8 that makes it, you know, that much smaller.

9             And then also to speak to the

10 topic of trials.  If there is a way for the

11 military to be a little more educated about

12 exactly what the legal process is and the fact

13 that we have to go to an Article 32 hearing

14 for them to find evidence and then go to trial

15 because I mean I think that would validate all

16 of our experiences a little bit more because

17 if they didn't find anything, then we don't go

18 to trial.

19             But, you know, if you think about

20 all the, I don't know, crime shows and

21 everything else when they just go from the

22 evidence to trial and, you know, they have a
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1 --

2             COL SCHENCK:  Okay, so there is

3 one statutory recent change and I don't know

4 if you think this is positive or negative but,

5 so that Article 32 hearing that you could be

6 ordered to testify at and be cross-examined,

7 that is no longer the case in the military. 

8 Now, it's going to be a probable cause

9 hearing, not an investigation.  

10             And you, as active duty service

11 members will no longer be able to be ordered

12 to testify.  I mean your SVC in the back can

13 correct me, but as I understand it, you can

14 say I don't want to go, and you'd be declared

15 unavailable.  So you would --

16             Now there's a downside because you

17 maybe your first time ever testifying would be

18 at the court-martial and then you're going to

19 get beat up, right.  So there's an upside and

20 downside, but in the past, you could be

21 ordered by the commander to testify which is

22 --
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1             COL HAM:  Dean Schenck, do you see

2 a legal or any legal objection to a military

3 protective order even post-acquittal?

4             COL SCHENCK:  No, I do not. 

5 That's why I think it says --

6             Ms. PC, I think that might be your

7 way to go going forward.  Get with your SVC,

8 tell them that's your big concern.  I never

9 want to see -- I don't want to be on the same

10 post, you know, if I could go to Korea for the

11 rest of my military career I would go because

12 I actually like there, they have nice purses.

13             (Laughter.)

14             REP. HOLTZMAN:  But very bad

15 weather.

16             COL SCHENCK:  But aside from that,

17 your SVC could ensure that you could get that

18 restriction put in place and I believe the

19 commander could do that.  At least in the

20 Army, there's a form the commander can fill

21 out, you know, to ensure that.

22             MS. JP:  Well, so I would love



Page 79

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1 just to share my experience with no contact

2 orders.

3             There were many violations.  The

4 way that my abuser was able to get away with

5 is as soon as the commander changed, it was no

6 longer valid and so that would be the

7 challenge, I think if it was a long-term, put-

8 in-place one.

9             Because, you know, after our

10 court-martial, one of my first questions to

11 Captain Morrissey was can he ever contact me

12 again.  And the challenge is well, who is the

13 commander at the time and it doesn't -- it's

14 not effective lifelong. 

15             And so I think that, in theory,

16 it's a fantastic idea.  The challenge will

17 just be that my abuser, in my experience, and

18 I will only speak about that, is that he was

19 able to kind of get away with doing stuff

20 because once his commander changed, it was no

21 longer legally valid.

22             COL SCHENCK:  So I think with the
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1 special victim counsel, I think that's part of

2 their job.  You need to make sure this guy who

3 was acquitted is not near them.  

4             And I even hate to say it but

5 JAG's kind of scare commanders sometimes.  I

6 was in the Marine Corps, I was a commander and

7 the special victim counsel called me and said

8 you've got a guy in your unit who was

9 acquitted, one of the people that testified

10 against them is here or there, I guarantee

11 that attorney's going to scare that commander.

12       So I think that'll play out because it's

13 all new, the special victims counsel, but you

14 and I will talk about it later.

15             MR. CASSARA:  Well let me sort of

16 piggyback on to that because I think it's a

17 concern for both Ms. PC and Mr. IC.  Can you

18 hear me?

19             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes.

20             MR. CASSARA:  There are very few

21 people usually say they can't hear me.  So

22 that's good.
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1             Obviously, you two are not going

2 to run into the assailant on a professional

3 basis for different reasons.  But the two of

4 you do raise an interesting question. I think

5 that's something that, we as a panel, need to

6 consider which is you're in a very small

7 career field.  I mean I assume that there is

8 a, what do you call it, a detailing office?

9             COL SCHENCK:  Assignments office.

10             MR. CASSARA:  Assignments office,

11 thank you.

12             How do you navigate that without

13 the assignments office knowing the reason why

14 the two of you are not supposed to come -- I'm

15 just throwing this out hypothetically.  I

16 don't know the answer, I think it's something

17 that we need to address or consider as, you

18 know, how do the two of you --

19             Is he -- is the assailant, in your

20 case, in your career field?

21             MR. IC:  No.

22             MR. CASSARA: Okay.  But if he
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1 were, it would be the same problem --

2             MR. IC:  Right.

3             MR. CASSARA:   -- which is how do

4 you go through the next, you know, hopefully,

5 20-something years as an officer, you know,

6 without your assignments or your branch office

7 knowing about what happened.

8             I'm assuming that you don't want

9 to advertise this.

10             MS. PC:  No.

11             MR. CASSARA:  You don't want -- I

12 mean have you given any thought to that?  Have

13 you talked to your SVCs or your victim witness

14 liaisons?  Have, you know?

15             MS. PC:  I have given thought to

16 it.  I didn't know that there was something I

17 could do about it.

18             MR. CASSARA:  Well, we don't

19 either.

20             MS. PC:  So I'd have to talk to --

21             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

22 What are your thoughts?
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1             MS. PC:  Well, there's a no

2 contact order in place currently.  It expires

3 in May, I think.  But another one of those

4 challenges is the commander.  I think the

5 commanders they change every couple of years,

6 right?

7             MR. CASSARA:  Probably.

8             MS. PC:  Yes, they change about

9 every two years, I think.  And I mean I don't

10 know what you can do unless it was signed not

11 by commanders but somebody higher than a

12 commander who doesn't change as often.

13             REP. HOLTZMAN:  You mean like a

14 judge?

15             MS. PC:  It could be, maybe a

16 judge.

17             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Sorry about that.

18             MS. PC:  Or so -- I mean that's

19 the only way I can see these orders being put

20 in place and held for longer periods of time

21 and still be valid.

22             COL SCHENCK:  Well the judges also
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1 change, they rotate through your brigade.

2             MR. IC:  If I can speak really

3 quick.

4             This process really made me aware

5 of leadership changes and how much they affect

6 this process just because right on the cusp of

7 when it happened, I was actually moving, I was

8 transferring intra-base as she did and then

9 luckily, the shirt that I had who was training

10 under the official shirt, we call them

11 undershirts, but he was moving with me so he

12 actually moved with me.

13             But then what is it, having a

14 different commander and then, you know, the

15 shirt that was at the new squadron --

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

17 think a shirt is commander.

18             MR. IC:  No, first sergeant, I'm

19 sorry.

20             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Oh,

21 okay.

22             MR. IC:  Our first sergeant, like
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1 she was aware of everything and then the new

2 shirt who came over from my old unit was

3 already aware of it so that was a good thing.

4             But then now being here, having to

5 possibly tell someone again, luckily this

6 week, my old first sergeant was still there so

7 he was able to facilitate everything.  But if

8 it had been next week, then I would have had

9 to explain the entire situation to a new first

10 sergeant and go through the process again in

11 order to get here today.

12             MS. PC:  If I could piggyback off

13 that.

14             My commander was really helpful in

15 this so before I transferred, you know, he

16 kind of touched base with the new commander I

17 would have.  Unfortunately enough, I got to my

18 base Saturday -- last Saturday.

19             So this Monday, the first day I

20 show up, we got to the first shirt's office,

21 and he's like, all right, we've go to get

22 ready for TDY and you know, we're trying to



Page 86

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1 keep it hush-hush, but I mean there's no --

2 people freak out.  

3             Like in the military, if you hear

4 the word, subcommittee, there's no way I can

5 send an A1C to a subcommittee.  So they're

6 like, well why you going for?  These are other

7 people's money, what are we going to do with

8 this?  How are you  - ?  And so it becomes a

9 challenge when people don't know --

10             MR. CASSARA:  Have them call the

11 colonel.

12             MS. PC:   -- who don't know --

13 that don't even know what you're doing there. 

14 Like you come in, they're like is it a

15 humanitarian transfer, but you don't seem

16 upset, you're not taking care of a sick

17 person.  You're not, you know, you're not

18 doing anything.  

19             Like my orders came in they got

20 the RIC and luckily enough there was one that

21 somebody already knew one of my old

22 instructors and he's like oh this is
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1 humanitarian.  I had him on Facebook so he's

2 like call me.  

3             So, you know, I called him, he's

4 like is there anything I need to know or do

5 you not want to talk about it?  I'm like I

6 don't want to talk about.  He was like, well

7 no matter what, when you come here, you have

8 a clean slate.  

9             But going in there and then having

10 to, you know, kind of get people to do stuff

11 to get you ready to go here, and they have no

12 idea what I'm doing.  They're just like we've

13 got to get her to D.C. we don't know why.  I

14 don't know what's happening.  You're not in

15 trouble are you?  No, I'm not in trouble.

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

17 Well, can we just say thank you again, because

18 we didn't mean to put you through that, all of

19 you.

20             DEAN ANDERSON:  Can I ask a

21 question before we go?  I feel like -- would

22 that be appropriate or is the floor taken by
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1 someone else?

2             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No,

3 go ahead.  Dean, go ahead.

4             DEAN ANDERSON:  Okay.  So, first I

5 just want to say thank you so much to

6 everybody who's on the panel.  I want to just

7 note how extraordinary the psychic and

8 emotional wounds are that each of you have

9 experienced and how valuable it is for us to

10 hear your stories and the ways that you have

11 grappled with your experiences and the ways

12 that the military has helped or failed to help

13 you grapple with those experiences.

14             I want to ask, in particular, IC,

15 if I could, sir, ask you a little bit about

16 the acquittal.  I commend you for the

17 spiritual capacity to forgive your assailant. 

18 And I appreciate that it has helped you heal

19 your own wounds and I think that's

20 extraordinary.

21             And I'm wondering in specific

22 about the acquittal.  If you had to identify
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1 the one or two factors that you think led to

2 acquittal, what factors would those be?

3             MR. IC:  It's probably because,

4 one, technically since I had my eyes closed,

5 I probably wouldn't actually be able to

6 identify the person, too, just because the --

7             I guess the fact that we did come

8 from a public place, I mean I'm not sure, I'm

9 just speculating because I wasn't in the

10 courtroom, but because we came from a public

11 place, someone else could have actually been

12 there with us in the room, even though when I

13 woke up and actually went to the bathroom, I

14 only noticed that there was one person in the

15 room.  So, I yes, I would have --

16             DEAN ANDERSON: Did they do --

17             MR. IC:  I'm sorry, go ahead.

18             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, yes, I was

19 just wondering if they did just like testing

20 on the semen?  

21             MR. IC:  If I remember correctly,

22 I think they did identify that it was his.
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1             DEAN ANDERSON:  Okay, so, I'm

2 sorry, I'm getting a lot of feedback so I

3 apologize at how difficult it is to speak. 

4             It sounds like each one of you

5 wanted to make a restricted report initially? 

6 Is that correct?

7             MR. IC:  That is correct for me,

8 yes.

9             MS. PC:  Yes.

10             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

11 They're both saying yes, Dean.

12             MS. JP:  Yes, that's correct.

13             DEAN ANDERSON:  And yet each of

14 you had this ability to make a restricted

15 report or some of you had this ability to make

16 a restricted report, you did not control that

17 process and it became unrestricted without

18 your consent.  Is that correct?

19             MR. IC:  Yes, for me, IC, yes it

20 did go unrestricted without my consent.

21             DEAN ANDERSON:  And PC, that's

22 true for you as well and EM and JP?



Page 91

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1             MS. PC:  No, ma'am, in my case,

2 while going unrestricted wasn't something I

3 would necessarily do, I had to in order to

4 kind of get something done for me.

5             DEAN ANDERSON:  Right, right.  In

6 order to access certain services that you

7 needed, that's right.

8             I understood your comments,

9 however, to be that had you had a choice, you

10 would have rather have made a restricted

11 report.

12             MS. PC:  I would have rather it

13 stayed restricted.

14             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes.

15             MS. JP:  That's not true for me,

16 JP.  I consciously made a decision to come

17 forward.

18             DEAN ANDERSON:  Right.

19             And EM?

20             MS. EM:  My report was made as a

21 civilian directly to Coast Guard Investigative

22 Services so I can't really say that it's
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1 applicable to me because I was already out of

2 the service.  So --

3             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes.  It's helpful

4 to know, I mean obviously, I assume you would

5 understand that one of the most difficult

6 things we're grappling with is how to maximize

7 autonomy for victims of sexual assault to make

8 decisions about the level of restricted or

9 unrestricted reporting that they engage in,

10 but also to provide them with services that

11 help them to heal.

12             And these are very difficult

13 things.  I can't tell you all how much I

14 appreciate your willingness to come forward

15 and that this is truly a service to your

16 country to come forward in this way.  So I

17 appreciate it.

18             COL SCHENCK:  As far as the

19 courts-martial go, can you tell me if it was

20 jury or a panel or a judge alone trial?

21             MR. IC:  For me it was a jury.

22             MS. PC:  It was jury for me as
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1 well.

2             MS. JP:  Judge alone.

3             MS. EM:  It was a judge.

4             COL SCHENCK:  And PC, if you got

5 to -- to follow up on Dean Anderson's

6 question, as far as the acquittal goes, do you

7 have any idea, did anybody give you a back

8 briefing of what happened in that in

9 courtroom?  What were the causes of the

10 acquittal in that case?

11             MS. PC:  I didn't sit through much

12 of the court-martial, I was there just for my

13 part and then the closing statement.  My SVC

14 might be able to better answer that question.

15             COL SCHENCK:  Any feel on that

16 Captain Selke?

17             CAPT SELKE:  Sure ma'am.  After

18 the court-martial, we did have a back brief

19 with STC and the TC and I think what was

20 unusual in this case is the accused to testify

21 and he gave kind of a full story, fully

22 explaining every fact and I mean I think they
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1 just created a reasonable version of events

2 and her testimony was a reasonable version of

3 events and with that, you know, the --

4             COL SCHENCK:  It's a he-said, she-

5 said and he --

6             REP. HOLTZMAN:  But wasn't there

7 another victim in that trial?

8             CAPT SELKE:  There was, ma'am and

9 he fully explained what happened with her and,

10 you know, so --

11             COL SCHENCK:  Was that good

12 soldier defense evidence, was that presented

13 at that court-martial?

14             CAPT SELKE:  I don't believe so,

15 ma'am.  I can't recall.  I mean I think the

16 feeling --

17             COL SCHENCK:  Do you remember if

18 his chain of command testified for him on his

19 behalf?

20             CAPT SELKE:  No, I don't.

21             COL SCHENCK:  As a defense

22 witness?
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1             CAPT SELKE:  No.

2             MR. CASSARA:  Ms. PC, I think I'm

3 getting a little bit confused, so I just want

4 to make sure, and hopefully you can clarify

5 for me with regards to what services may or

6 may not have been available to you with the

7 unrestricted versus restricted.

8             MS. PC:  With a restricted report,

9 you are entitled to medical care and mental

10 health care, also you get a victim advocate. 

11 I guess it would be like the liaison thing you

12 have, but it's a victim advocate.  That's what

13 you're entitled to with a restricted report.

14             I don't know how often situations

15 like mine happen where you're like directly

16 next door to your -- the person who assaulted

17 you.

18             COL SCHENCK:  One is too many.

19             MS. PC:  But I don't think they

20 have anything to handle that because I know

21 that, in my case, the SARC kind of was trying

22 to figure out how to get me moved without
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1 disclosing what happened and then kick

2 starting the unrestricted process.

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  So

4 you went from being right next to you to being

5 across the street, is that?

6             MS. PC:  He went from being right

7 next to me to -- it was a main street that

8 separated us and a few dormitory buildings in

9 between.  But he was still kind of around.

10             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

11 Yes.

12             MR. CASSARA:  For the three active

13 duty personnel, was the difference between

14 restricted and unrestricted clearly explained

15 to you to where you understood the choice that

16 you had?

17             MS. JP:  Yes.  However --

18             MR. CASSARA:  I can tell there was

19 some hesitance in that yes.

20             MS. JP:  Well, because I think in

21 my case, I really wanted to come forward.  I

22 wanted him to stop hurting me.  I wanted it to
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1 stop.  I just had been through so much other

2 stuff that it couldn't go anywhere and have a

3 positive outcome, in my opinion.

4             The social work services gal that

5 I was working with during the first reporting

6 system was useless.  She didn't really know

7 anything about sexual assault.  She was on

8 like a one year tour kind of to --

9             MR. CASSARA:  Other duties as

10 assigned?

11             MS. JP:  Right and so she -- her

12 speciality wasn't dealing with people like me.

13             When I was able to come forward

14 and talk with the other folks at the social

15 work services that helped me, this was a group

16 specifically for domestic violence and sexual

17 assault and her training was specifically for

18 that.

19             So to answer your question, I

20 think it was very clear to me the difference. 

21 My challenge in my situation was that I wanted 

22 to come forward, I just had zero faith that
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1 that would be supported. 

2             As I, you know, shared before, I

3 had numerous people who I would say hey, I

4 need help and they would say "Oh you wanted a

5 real no contact order? We just told him to

6 leave you alone."  And it was kind of like,

7 I'm begging you to help me.  And I just, it

8 was never followed up.  So I knew the

9 difference but --

10             MR. CASSARA:  Ms. PC?

11             MS. PC:  The difference between

12 restricted and unrestricted, it was clearly

13 outlined to us on the form.  I don't know if

14 the form's changed.

15             MR. CASSARA:  Did you feel that

16 your advocate was pushing you one way or the

17 other?

18             MS. PC:  No, not at all.

19             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.

20             MS. PC:  The SARC and the victim

21 advocate and even the SVCs, they don't say

22 anything to influence your decision.  They
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1 don't try and push you forward or kind of egg

2 you on to do anything, they're just there for

3 support or to explain something to you.

4             MR. CASSARA:  Was your experience

5 the same?

6             MR. IC:  Yes.  With restricted and

7 unrestricted, that is a main point that's

8 always pushed at every, I mean, you know, we

9 get the whole --

10             MS. PC:  The training --

11             MR. IC:   -- oh I'm just sitting

12 here and listening to this, unrestricted,

13 restricted, you know, again about SARC.

14             But yes, it actually, I think that

15 everyone is or at least everyone who goes

16 through the training and goes through it again

17 and again is aware of it.

18             But then again with that same

19 token, it's, you know, sort assumed that once

20 you go through this process and/or make

21 restricted or unrestricted that the legal

22 system will take care of it, these guys will
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1 get out and that's not what I'm hearing.  So 

2 --

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  So,

4 I don't want to put words in your mouth but

5 this is what I'm hearing, that all of you

6 clearly knew restricted from unrestricted.

7             MR. IC:  Yes.

8             MS. PC:  Yes.

9             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

10 But, in order to get some of the things that

11 you needed, you didn't really have a choice. 

12 You -- it wasn't that it was confusing, it was

13 just, if I want this, I'm going to have to go

14 unrestricted.

15             MS. PC:  Yes.

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  And

17 with you, somebody did it accidently for you.

18             MR. IC:  Right. I'm no longer

19 upset with the process but it's just going

20 thought it and having to deal with everything,

21 I mean now, of course, you know, I look back

22 and I'm like, okay, I went through all that,
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1 so this is easy, you know, but yes.

2             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

3 Yes.  Is anybody on the phone?  I'm sorry. 

4 Anybody on the phone?

5             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, Michelle is

6 -- well, I am, too.

7             CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No, do you have

8 any further questions?

9             DEAN ANDERSON:  No.  Now, I wanted

10 to actually ask PC if it felt like -- so it

11 sounds like you were bullied.  And I want to

12 tell you how painful that is and I hear the

13 pain in your voice when you talk about that,

14 people stealing food, stealing your wallet

15 that you had to fish it out of the trash. 

16             Really, it is extremely

17 distressing to hear about the bullying that

18 you suffered as a result of this experience

19 not of your making.

20             And I wanted to know that there is

21 this very interesting moment that you describe

22 where your commanders sent out an email that
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1 said don't bully or this kind of bullying

2 behavior is not acceptable and then you were

3 immediately moved.

4             MS. PC:  Yes.

5             DEAN ANDERSON:  I wonder if that

6 move felt like punishment to you or if it felt

7 like you wanted to see -- unsatisfying because

8 you wanted to see if the commanders could

9 control the bullying behavior or if it felt

10 like -- in other words, emotionally, at lot of

11 the stories that we are hearing are about the

12 emotional reactions, in particular, to the

13 victim services that are provided.  And I

14 wonder, emotionally, how it felt for them to

15 issue the "this is unacceptable email" but

16 then immediately move you.

17             MS. PC:  There are a few things

18 that happened through the start of this whole

19 process.  Kind of from the beginning, when it

20 first went unrestricted, it immediately like

21 went to gossip in a 200 or 300-person

22 squadron.  I mean so my commander was notified
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1 by the SARC and he did a briefing.  He went on

2 to the floor where we work and he told

3 everybody we have got an ongoing

4 investigation; shut your mouth.

5             And I guess it kind of got more

6 quiet from that point on but, of course, it

7 started back up.  

8             In regards to the email, you know

9 I didn't feel like I was being punished.  I

10 understood that it was a really hard situation

11 for everybody involved, not just the victim

12 but also for command, where all your witnesses

13 and your defendant are all in the same

14 squadron.

15             DEAN ANDERSON:  Right.

16             MS. PC:  So, it didn't feel like

17 punishment to me to be moved.  I felt more

18 relaxed where they moved me to.  I didn't have

19 as much work and that was kind of a good and

20 a bad thing for me because once this started,

21 I kind of just threw myself into work like

22 crazy.  That is just how I dealt with it.  And
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1 kind of this spiraling down for me, just kind

2 of having all this free time and I just kind

3 of constantly thought about it, constantly.

4             DEAN ANDERSON:  Well, that is

5 entirely consistent with what EM said of I go

6 back to Cape May every day.  And I know that

7 each of you thinks about these extraordinary

8 and painful experiences, likely on a daily

9 basis.  And I just want to say that we wish

10 you the best and speedy healing from this. 

11 And I hope that you understand that we are

12 listening and we are hearing your pain and we

13 think it is valuable.  And we hope that we can

14 turn some of that pain into something good.

15             MS. PC:  Thank you.

16             MS. JP:  That's why we are here.

17             MS. PC:  I do have another

18 suggestion.

19             CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Sure.

20             MS. PC:  I think that kind of the

21 mental health professionals, I don't know if

22 they are like specifically trained, but it is
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1 very important to get that specialty care,

2 like you were saying.  

3             When I went to mental health, they

4 kind of did not want to talk about it.  I

5 guess maybe they didn't want to upset me more

6 but I kind of never got to get stuff off my

7 chest.  And at some point, I kind of didn't

8 want to because I was aware that like my

9 records could be pulled in the trial, like my

10 mental health records.  And I think that is

11 embarrassing for me to go in there where I am

12 keeping it, I'm bearing straight, I am

13 speaking clearly, and then you pull out this

14 record and he is like yes, well, she sobbed in

15 this record or whatever.  They ended up not

16 using them eventually, but it kind of felt

17 like that to me.

18             So, I kind of feel like I couldn't

19 get the help I needed.  And like I said, I got

20 lucky enough in the end to get a major that

21 kind of knew about prolonged exposure and

22 could help me with my PTSD and the depression
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1 and all of that.  I think that it is really

2 important for them to get some type of

3 training you know, hey, in this situation,

4 maybe this helps; maybe that helps.

5             REP. HOLTZMAN:  So you felt that

6 --

7             JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Well, a well-

8 trained professionally in mental health would

9 have been able to deal with your issues and

10 would have asked you about it.

11             MR. IC:  And also in mental

12 health, just the fact that, I mean I had gone

13 in to see them before about like a few things

14 like minor stuff.  But at the same time, it is

15 like I also knew the process and the fact that

16 they don't have very many people there to deal

17 with everybody.  Like I mean to get an

18 appointment, especially with an actual

19 professional, not just someone who is there to

20 do your initial eval, it is a long time.  It

21 is a long time.

22             MS. PC:  Yes, to piggyback off
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1 that, when I first went to mental health, I

2 did my initials with somebody else.  And then

3 I didn't get an appointment after that.  It

4 took a long time for me to get an appointment.

5             And then eventually my command

6 called up there you know like hey, what the

7 heck is going on.  And then I get an

8 appointment with somebody.  And then after

9 that it was somebody else.  So, I just stopped

10 going completely.

11             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  So,

12 it wasn't consistent.

13             MS. PC:  Yes.

14             JUDGE MARQUARDT:  It sounds like

15 something we can make a recommendation on.

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

17 Yes, absolutely.  Absolutely.

18             Do any of you have anything else? 

19 Is there anything you want us to bring

20 forward?

21             MS. EM:  The one thing I would

22 like to see addressed that we haven't really
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1 gotten to discuss is the training environment,

2 which is more specific to my particular

3 situation that I dealt with.

4             MR. IC:  Do you mind if I went to

5 the restroom?         

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No,

7 go.  Go.

8             MS. EM:  We would like to make

9 sure that we are giving recruits -- you know

10 most recruits are young; they are 18, 19 years

11 old -- a safe reporting route.  And sometimes

12 your chain of command is not the way to go. 

13 So, I don't know what the suggestion would be

14 -- you know what I would suggest. 

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  So

16 in your situations, if I remember your

17 commander -- well, your abuser --

18             MS. EM:  Right.

19             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  --

20 was also like big man on campus.  He seemed to

21 have friends everywhere.

22             MS. EM:  The Coast Guard is so
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1 small, anyone who has ever been in a small

2 unit can attest, I mean everyone knows

3 everyone.  And I lived at Parris Island, at

4 the Marine Recruit Depot, with my brother-in-

5 law, who was the drill instructor.  So, I knew

6 that world and I knew how it operated.  And I

7 knew how on a base like that, everyone knows

8 everyone.  So, my knowledge was almost to my

9 detriment because I knew anybody I tell is

10 going to go and probably tell him first.

11             So, I think if I would have had

12 the opportunity to speak with a civilian that

13 had no connections with the base, you know,

14 some kind -- I don't know.

15             MS. PC:  Are there even SARCs in a

16 training environment?  I don't think there

17 are.

18             MS. EM:  No.  I mean, I will

19 reiterate the fact that my company commander

20 taught my sexual harassment class.  We weren't

21 given an option.  And he did a PowerPoint

22 presentation and stood in front of us and he
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1 taught the class.

2             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Let

3 me ask staff something.  So, there is no SARCs

4 in training?

5             CDR KING:  Maybe we can ask the

6 SARC who is here a little bit about that.

7             MS. SPENCER:  I can't speak for

8 other branches but there are SARCs at

9 Lackland.  And from what I understand, at most

10 of the technical schools they have SARCs. 

11 They have some programs in there where they

12 train special trainees to be --

13             MS. PC:  Oh, yes, in tech schools.

14             MS. SPENCER:  I don't know if all

15 the tech schools have that.  I work in a

16 different command, so I am not quite sure how

17 broad that is in the training.

18             COL HAM:  And Lackland had set up

19 those phones.

20             DEAN ANDERSON:  Can I just jump in

21 and ask about the training for a second, if

22 the floor is not taken?
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1             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Go

2 ahead.

3             DEAN ANDERSON:  So, it sounds as

4 if it is terribly ironic, EM, obviously, that

5 the offender was teaching the sexual assault

6 courses.  Unfortunately, we are seeing

7 routinely that sexual assault prosecutors end

8 up in the press as themselves accused of

9 sexual assault, high-ranking officers do.  It

10 is a painful process to watch unfold in the

11 press on a weekly basis.

12             I will ask a question about the

13 training because I wonder if most of the

14 training focuses on peer-to-peer sexual

15 assault and sexual harassment.

16             There are two really different

17 kinds of sexual assault and sexual harassment

18 it seems that we are dealing with.  One is the

19 peer-to-peer and the question of how

20 bystanders can intervene, in particular on

21 peer-to-peer harassment.  But then there is

22 this other, in some ways more toxic problem of
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1 sexual assault and sexual harassment that uses

2 hierarchy itself, the hierarchy of the

3 military to coerce and control victims.

4             And I wonder if the training

5 sufficiently attends to the possibility that

6 higher ranking members of the military are the

7 ones who are offenders.  I wonder if the

8 training focuses too much on peer-to-peer or

9 if it also now focuses on the fact that it

10 might be your superior officer.

11             MS. EM:  You know it has been

12 quite some time since I was at Cape May, so I

13 can't remember what the PowerPoint actually

14 said.  I do know that it was just a PowerPoint

15 and it was really nothing too -- it didn't

16 stick with you, basically.  There wasn't

17 anything notable about it.

18             I do believe it had more of a

19 peer-to-peer focus, though, versus the you

20 know like she said --

21             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, it is really

22 interesting because the Centers for Disease
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1 Control and the information they have given to

2 the panel and to the subcommittee indicated

3 that there really need to be many more

4 interventions and touches on this with the

5 community before it actually has any kind of

6 deterrent or behavioral change effect.

7             So, the fact that you don't

8 remember what the PowerPoint by the offender

9 said, makes sense and it certainly didn't

10 change his behavior.

11             MS. PC:  If I could intervene.  I

12 am still really young so I remember my

13 training.  It was taught by the instructors. 

14 They kind of just showed us a video but it did

15 focus only on peer-to-peer sexual assault.

16             DEAN ANDERSON:  That is really

17 helpful, JP.  Thank you for your -- I'm sorry

18 that was PC.

19             MS. PC:  Yes, ma'am.

20             DEAN ANDERSON:  Sorry, PC.

21             MR. IC:  And this is also, IC.  In

22 this process, I actually happened upon The
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1 Invisible War.  I didn't watch it at the --

2             MS. PC:  I couldn't watch it.

3             MR. IC:  -- I guess the suggestion

4 of my SARC and she is also my victim advocate

5 now.  But in that it was really interesting to

6 see that it did happen a lot more.  I mean I

7 know it was sort of slanted toward the

8 documentary maker's views.

9             But on the fact of leadership, and

10 that is actually something I want to bring to

11 the subcommittee, is there any way that there

12 can be like a second or third level that we

13 can be notified of to report to, so in case

14 this does happen at the level of I guess base

15 or wing or whatever, if that is the go-to

16 person for the entire base or for your unit or

17 whatever, is there --

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

19 Another level that you could go to.

20             MR. IC:  Yes, either laterally or

21 higher that we can actually address and to

22 talk to someone else about that.
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1             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

2 should have multiple ways of accessing your

3 services.  I mean that is the way it is in

4 theory.  But I guess what we are hearing is

5 one thing is a theory and the other is the

6 practice.

7             MR. IC:  Right.  Because I know

8 for me, Tracey is the one for the base.  But

9 then if something where that particular person 

10 in that seat is the one is convicted or is the

11 one that is doing these things, can there at

12 least either laterally or like I said in a

13 higher capacity be someone that we can go to?

14             MR. CASSARA:  Well isn't the

15 number of the base help line?  I go on a lot

16 of military bases every week and you literally 

17 cannot use the bathroom without seeing a

18 poster for the help line.

19             MS. PC:  If I could intervene. 

20 The day after my assault, I called the hotline

21 and it went to voicemail.

22             MR. CASSARA:  Well, that's
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1 helpful.

2             MS. PC:  And so I am not going to

3 leave a message.

4             (Laughter.)

5             MS. PC:  So, it was a weekend but

6 Monday I ended up calling another hotline at

7 another base that my friend gave me, and then

8 they connected me to my SARC on base.  

9             So, I don't know what happened

10 there but I didn't get anybody when I called

11 the first time.

12             MR. CASSARA:  Were the other three

13 of you aware of the sexual assault hotline?

14             MS. PC:  Yes, they give them out

15 on pens and little dog tags and tee shirts,

16 and towels.

17             MR. CASSARA:  I mean like I said,

18 you literally can't use the bathroom without

19 seeing it.

20             MS. EM:  Not in boot camp.

21             MS. PC:  Yes, I never saw a SARC

22 the entire time.  I was through boot camp when
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1 they first started like finding all the MTIs. 

2 Towards the end of my --

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

4 What is an MTI?

5             MR. CASSARA:  It is a military

6 training instructor.  It is like a drill

7 sergeant, basically.

8             MS. PC:  Yes, when they started

9 doing the whole scandal thing.  So, towards

10 the end of my training, they took us all to

11 the church on base.  They separated females

12 went and then males went.  And that was kind

13 of the first time I ever had really any

14 interaction with a SARC through my whole

15 training.  And that was kind of like when they

16 were arresting all the instructors to figure

17 out what was going on.

18             REP. HOLTZMAN:  And how long was

19 that into your training?

20             MS. PC:  That was towards the -- I

21 graduated maybe a week or two after that.  And

22 our training is two months' long.
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1             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Is there any way

2 that we could find out on training bases the

3 level of access to assistance?

4             COL HAM:  We saw -- well, you saw

5 at Lackland now there is a requirement that

6 training be conducted within 14 days of

7 induction.  I believe that is an NDAA

8 requirement. 

9             And then at Lackland, there were

10 phones that were set up to only access several

11 things.  So the thought was that people

12 wouldn't know what you were calling.  One of

13 them was the SARC.  One of them was the

14 weather.  And there were a couple other lines. 

15 So, they were in multiple places around the --

16             MS. SAUNDERS:  Within the dorms

17 and --

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

19 is that everywhere?

20             COL HAM:  Well, Lackland is the

21 training base for the Air Force.  

22             MS. PC:  That's the only one.
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1             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

2 for everywhere else, I guess, that would be

3 the question is what is the level of access to

4 that kind of service during training.

5             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, what is the

6 access?

7             MS. EM:  I'm so sorry.  With all

8 due respect, two weeks is too long.  Mine took

9 less than five days to start.  And it wouldn't

10 have done any good.  It was already too late

11 at that point.

12             MR. IC:  Actually I was thinking

13 just about that.  Like it could be at least

14 briefed or something at military entrance

15 processing.  Then, --

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

17 That's a good suggestion.

18             COL HAM:  We did hear that was

19 happening with the Air Force but it was having

20 some unintended affects.

21             MS. SAUNDERS:  That was somebody,

22 I think, going through their what they called
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1 the MEPS station, which --

2             COL HAM:  Military Entrance

3 Processing Station.

4             MS. SAUNDERS:  Yes, where you

5 process somebody who is coming into the

6 military.  And I think this person at Lackland

7 saw a lot of posters about sexual assault and

8 she was frightened. 

9             She told us in the meeting how

10 frightened it made her and her view going in,

11 which hadn't previously been her view, which

12 was that the military is full of sexual

13 assaulters and that she had to watch where she

14 was walking.  You know, somebody was ready to

15 assault her anywhere she went.  It gave her

16 that impression, I guess, that one airman's

17 testimony.

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

19 I think the earlier the better.

20             MS. EM:  Well, too, at least in

21 that case there is awareness.  Because the

22 worst part about being in that situation is
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1 that you think that by coming forward you are

2 going to somehow be the only one or that you

3 are going to -- I didn't want to be "that

4 girl" at every base that I went to forth

5 going.  And that is part of the reason I

6 didn't want it to follow me.  I'm sure Ms. PC

7 can attest to how difficult it has been for

8 her.  I wasn't brave enough to go through what

9 she went through.

10             MS. PC:  I can understand how she

11 felt.  After something like this happens to

12 you -- you know these are the people you work

13 with.  You see them every day.  You go to the

14 gym with them.  You PT with them.  You kind of

15 know what they are capable of.  You think you

16 know.

17             But after something like this

18 happens to you, and it is somebody you

19 trusted, it is completely different. 

20 Everywhere I go, I don't size up the women but

21 I have to size up the males.  Like how tall

22 are you?  How big are you?  What are you
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1 capable of?  And it is tiring.

2             Like, I just kind of hole myself

3 up in my room afterwards.  But it so hard. 

4 Like I literally thought something was wrong

5 with me because I talked to people at mental

6 health and I'm like I can't form connections. 

7 I don't know what is wrong with me.  These

8 people are my friends.  I know they are my

9 friends but I don't want to hang out with

10 them.  I mean don't you think I want to want

11 to go do stuff?  But I'm scared.

12             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I'm

13 sorry.

14             MR. CASSARA:  You are going to

15 make a great officer.

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

17 are.

18             (Laughter.)

19             MS. PC:  Thank you.

20             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

21 just want you to bring us warm weather.  I

22 think that should be in your control.
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1             (Laughter.)

2             MS. PC:  I can't control it.  I

3 wish I could.  That would be a great job.

4             (Laughter.)

5             CDR KING:  Ma'am before we are

6 done, can I ask a question on a different

7 topic?

8             At least one of you mentioned at

9 the trial you watched the accused get an

10 unsworn statement.  Is that right?  Okay.  Did

11 all of you testify or give a statement at

12 sentencing in your case? And did you give a

13 sworn statement or an unsworn statement where

14 you were under oath?

15             MS. JP:  So I was, I believe,

16 still under oath.  I don't think I ever was

17 not under oath.  So, I am assuming it was

18 sworn.

19             CDR KING:  So, someone asked you

20 questions --

21             MS. JP:  Yes, ma'am.

22             CDR KING:  -- and you answered



Page 124

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1 those questions.  Okay.

2             COL SCHENCK:  That's a sentencing,

3 you know the bifurcated process, findings --

4 these guys had findings of guilty and now

5 sentencing.  And in sentencing, the accused is

6 allowed to do the unsworn statement.  No one

7 cross-examines him.

8             Witnesses testify under oath.

9             CDR KING:  So you weren't allowed

10 to give an unsworn statement?

11             COL SCHENCK:  She wouldn't have

12 been, no.

13             MS. JP:  I don't believe so but I

14 don't want to get hung up on the technicality

15 of it.

16             COL HAM:  Was there any cross-

17 examination?

18             MS. JP:  They were asked if they

19 had any questions and they declined.

20             COL SCHENCK:  And you got to

21 discuss the impacts on you?

22             MS. JP:  Yes, ma'am.
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1             COL SCHENCK:  Okay.

2             CDR KING:  How about the rest of

3 you?  Did you testify at sentencing?

4             MS. EM:  I did.

5             DEAN ANDERSON:  Does anybody know

6 the reasons for allowing the defendant to do

7 an unsworn statement in a proceeding?

8             COL SCHENCK:  I'm sorry.  I didn't

9 hear the question.

10             CDR KING:  She wants to know the

11 reason for allowing the accused to do an

12 unsworn statement in sentencing.

13             COL SCHENCK:  I know that is the

14 rule within the UCMJ.

15             MR. CASSARA:  I think it is in

16 federal court, too, that you can do an

17 unsworn.  Am I incorrect on that, do you know?

18             CDR KING:  No, they can.

19             MR. CASSARA:  Yes, they can.

20             CDR KING:  I think it is related

21 to a right to allocution, probably, under the

22 Constitution, where the accused has that
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1 right. 

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  But based on what? 

3 Is this in connection with sentencing?

4             CDR KING:  Yes.

5             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Oh, well, that's

6 different.

7             CDR KING:  Yes, it is only in

8 sentencing.  And when there is a jury, ma'am,

9 there is a jury instruction to the members

10 about that they can give it whatever weight

11 they want to, based on the fact that it is

12 unsworn instead of sworn.

13             DEAN ANDERSON:  Well, I didn't

14 understand that it was just at the sentencing.

15             CDR KING:  Yes, ma'am.

16             COL SCHENCK:  So, was there any

17 collateral misconduct issue involved in your

18 cases, maybe under aged drinking, any

19 collateral misconduct.

20             MR. CASSARA:  Do you understand

21 what we mean by collateral misconduct?

22             MS. PC:  No, I had just turned 21. 
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1 So, no.

2             COL SCHENCK:  It was usually the

3 alcohol but it could be anything else.  You

4 know you assaulted the perpetrator.  That

5 would be collateral misconduct.

6             MR. IC:  In my case, like we made

7 sure that were in walking distance to the club

8 so everything was fine, neither one of us had

9 to drive.  And two separate beds and

10 everything.  So, no.

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  PC, can I ask you

12 one other question?

13             MS. PC:  Yes, ma'am.

14             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I understand that

15 you were dissatisfied with the quality of the

16 mental health services provided at the outset.

17             MS. PC:  Yes, ma'am.

18             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Are you satisfied

19 now?  Say on a scale of one to five or one to

20 ten, would you give it a one, being the lowest

21 or a ten being the highest?

22             MS. PC:  Well, my experiences,
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1 well even after, I mean I went to the

2 hospital.

3             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Right.  I am

4 talking about now.

5             MS. PC:  I'm not speaking to them

6 now.  I just got to a new base.

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Oh, okay.  So you

8 can't evaluate it.

9             MS. PC:  Yes, but the Major who

10 helped me, she really, really knew what she

11 was doing.  She saw me every day for a week,

12 every day before she had to go back to her

13 base.  And I had to rewrite the assault.  I

14 had to rewrite it and I had to read it 80

15 times on Monday and 85 times on Tuesday.  And

16 then I had to come in and read it to her 20

17 times out loud, just read it over, and over,

18 and over.

19             And at the end, she made me kind

20 of write a continuation to my story.  What did

21 I want to do, now that this was -- where was

22 I going to go?  You know, what did I want for
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1 my future?  And at then, at the end, we read

2 that.

3             REP. HOLTZMAN:  So, after she

4 left, you were still not sure about the

5 quality then of what you are going to get.

6             MS. PC:  No.

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay, thanks.

8             DEAN ANDERSON:  Was it helpful to

9 read your story aloud 80 times a day for a

10 period of days?

11             MS. PC:  It really was.  With

12 PTSD, one of things that happens to you is

13 avoidance.  So, you will do anything to get

14 out of talking about it, thinking about it. 

15 And you kind of never deal with it. 

16             DEAN ANDERSON:  Right.

17             MS. PC:  Like for me, I just

18 worked really hard and it was always there. 

19 But it really desensitized me to a lot of it. 

20 So, I think it helped a lot.

21             COL SCHENCK:  What's that therapy

22 called?
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1             MS. PC:  Prolonged exposure.

2             COL SCHENCK:  Prolonged exposure. 

3 And they use that with PTSD survivors from the

4 war and they are tying the two together now.

5             MR. CASSARA:  Can I ask a final

6 yes or no question?  This is really just a

7 point of curiosity.  I don't think it really

8 relate to the panel.  But do your parents

9 know?  Yes or no?

10             MS. EM:  Yes.

11             MS. JP:  Yes.

12             MS. PC:  Yes.

13             MR. IC:  No.

14             MR. CASSARA:  No, okay.  I'm not

15 sure why I am curious about that.  But I was

16 just curious.  Because I am a dad.  Yes, that

17 is probably why.

18             MR. IC:  Yes, like it is not

19 necessarily for me being worried about it.  It

20 is for my mother.

21             MR. CASSARA:  Well, sure.  Because

22 you are being a good son.  Understood.
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1             MR. IC:  I have no idea what would

2 happen to the --

3             MR. CASSARA:  Understood.

4             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I'm

5 a mother of a son.

6             MS. PC:  I didn't tell my mom for

7 a long time, until like just before the court-

8 martial.  And like even after, I didn't tell

9 her I went to the hospital.  I mean I just --

10 it was more taxing for me to tell her.  And

11 then she was angry.  She wanted to call and

12 yell at my commander.  So, I mean, I really 

13 I just can't handle it.

14             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

15 needed somebody to take care of you.

16             MS. PC:  Yes.

17             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

18 didn't need to be taking care of somebody

19 else.

20             MS. PC:  Yes.

21             MS. JP:  My mom knew from the

22 beginning. [Personal information redacted] 
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1 And she called me after her initial training

2 and she was crying.  Just really upset and

3 said I am so sorry for not hearing what you

4 said to me.  And so it wasn't until she went

5 through that that she really heard.  She knew

6 the whole time but she didn't hear it until

7 she had that job. 

8             MS. EM:  I called my mom when I

9 got off Base Liberty in boot camp and you can

10 rent a cell phone.  And I called and told her

11 that I was in trouble and that we had a bad

12 situation, which is the worst thing you can do

13 to your mom because you had to march back into

14 that base that night and there was nothing she

15 could do about it.  So, she knew pretty much

16 from the beginning.

17             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

18 Anything else you guys want to tell us?

19             MS. PC:  During the court-martial

20 process, is there a way that they cannot

21 change the senior trial counsels?  Because I

22 had one for my Article 32, and then I had a
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1 completely different one for the court-

2 martial.  So, where I had already explained

3 things and had to go through, I had to do it

4 all over again with a new person.

5             MR. CASSARA:  But let me ask you. 

6 I have done a lot of Air Force cases in the

7 past.  They don't still do circuit trial and

8 circuit defense counsel or do they?

9             CAPT SELKE:  It is essentially the

10 same thing.  They just call it a different

11 name now.

12             MR. CASSARA:  So somebody

13 parachutes in the weekend before trial and

14 tries the case?

15             CAPT SELKE:  That is just the base

16 trial counsel to try the case.

17             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.

18             CAPT SELKE:  But I think we found

19 it helpful to have those that are experienced

20 trial counsels.

21             MR. CASSARA:  Right.

22             CAPT SELKE:  And typically, they
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1 wouldn't show up for an Article 32 hearing but

2 in these kind of cases they do.

3             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.  

4             CAPT SELKE:  And she is just

5 saying that in this instance, we had a

6 different one for the 32 hearing and for the

7 court-martial.  And for continuation sake --

8             MR. CASSARA:  And did you have

9 much contact with your senior trial counsel,

10 the one that actually did try the case in the

11 days and weeks -- because I am telling you ten

12 years ago what was then called the circuit

13 trial counsel would literally fly into town

14 the Friday before a contested member's case

15 and that would be the first time that they met

16 anybody in the case.

17             I mean, did you have contact with

18 the senior trial counsel in the time leading

19 up to the case?

20             MS. PC:  It is kind of the same

21 way you described it.  I met with him a couple

22 of days before to go through --
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1             MR. CASSARA:  Your testimony.

2             MS. PC:  -- everything during the

3 case.  And then again the night before to kind

4 of just go over, see the courtroom, see where

5 I was going to have to be.

6             MR. CASSARA:  And that was the

7 first time you had met them?

8             MS. PC:  It was maybe the second

9 time I had met him.

10             MS. JP:  That was not my

11 experience.

12             MR. CASSARA:  The Army does it

13 very differently.  Again, I don't know where

14 yours was.  I don't want to know.  But in most

15 Army bases, your special victim prosecutor is

16 going to be on base or relatively close

17 thereto and they will be in constant contact

18 with you.  I know the Air Force uses a

19 somewhat different system.

20             Well, thank you much.

21             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  One

22 more time.  Anything else?
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1             MR. CASSARA:  PC, are you going to

2 send us a coin when you get commissioned?

3             MS. PC:  I'll do that.

4             (Laughter.)

5             MR. CASSARA:  We are looking

6 forward to it.

7             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

8 Thank you all again for being so brave.  And

9 thank you for to supporters for coming.

10             CDR KING:  Can we take a break for

11 a little while?

12             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

13 Yes.

14             (Whereupon, at 11:42 a.m., a

15             recess was taken until 12:45 p.m.)

16          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I just

17 thought we should take a few minutes to

18 debrief about the last panel.  I thought they

19 were incredible and amazing and my heart went

20 out to all of them but also full of good

21 information.

22          Anything that folks feel that we
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1 should particularly highlight from that panel?

2          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Well, I liked the

3 idea that those no contact orders terminate at

4 the time that that particular commander leaves

5 the post.  I think something needs to be done

6 about that.

7          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

8 think that's true.

9          DEAN ANDERSON:  It also seems that we

10 need to make a recommendation about the

11 ability of the victim to control the

12 unrestricted nature of the reporting.  

13          And it doesn't seem to me to make any

14 sense if someone gossips to the commander or

15 deliberately tells the commander that suddenly

16 it's shifted inexorably and without the

17 victim's consent to an unrestricted report.

18          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes,

19 the special victims counsel that was

20 supporting the young woman from the Air Force

21 basically said that he's got about 20 people

22 in his case load and a large percentage of
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1 them the same thing has happened.  That sort

2 of inadvertent going from restricted to

3 unrestricted because somebody doesn't

4 understand, you know, something gets out. 

5 Somebody thinks that they can't get some sort

6 of service because they've gone restricted. 

7 So, I think that that really needs to be -- I

8 think the policy is probably fine.  It's more

9 in the implementation.  

10          And something that Colonel Ham said

11 while we were out.  There needs to be some way

12 to kind of take back an inadvertent

13 disclosure.  

14          So, my commander accidentally finds

15 out that I've filed a restricted report. 

16 There's got to be a way to say no, it remains

17 restricted.  It's not just automatically

18 become unrestricted.

19          DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, I completely

20 agree.  I mean, it doesn't -- it is very

21 interesting that a number of folks who wanted

22 to keep their report restricted then had it
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1 involuntarily made an unrestricted report. 

2 Then went on to have acquittals of the

3 defendant. 

4          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I'm

5 not sure one thing had to do with the other.

6          DEAN ANDERSON:  Well, no, no, no. 

7 Just hear me out.  Let me finish my sentence.

8          The interesting thing is that victims

9 are making assessments about the ability to

10 pursue claims effectively in court all the

11 time.  And they may be dissuaded from wanting

12 to pursue an unrestricted report because they

13 don't want to go through the difficulty of

14 that process when they predict that it won't

15 lead to a conviction.

16          So, there's a potential wasting of an

17 extraordinary amount of resources on all sides

18 when a case goes forward that the victim does

19 not want to go forward through the formal

20 criminal justice process when he or she simply

21 wants services. 

22          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes,
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1 no, I agree.

2          CDR KING:  I think the military

3 justice system is getting better about if a

4 victim actually formally said I don't want to

5 go -- I don't want to pursue charges.  I don't

6 want to participate in this that they make a

7 decision not to go forward, at least with that

8 particular victim's case.

9          Some of these may have been a little

10 different because there were two or three

11 different victims in one case.

12          MS. SAUNDERS:  I'll tell you, under

13 the regulations for both DoD and this of

14 course would translate to the services if a

15 victim, you know, perhaps she makes a

16 restricted report and through other means not

17 related to her her commander finds out or the

18 investigators find out.  

19          So they have an investigation going

20 on that is now her statement that she made to

21 that SARC will remain restricted.  And she can

22 elect to not participate in the prosecution or
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1 investigation.  

2          They may certainly, they may choose

3 to continue to investigate.  It does not stop

4 the investigation.  They'll still go out and

5 interview people.  But she does not have to

6 cooperate.  And that's by regulation.

7          REP. HOLTZMAN:  I think there's

8 another issue.

9          DEAN ANDERSON:  I just think that the

10 bullying that PC suffered after the -- as I

11 understand it, the bullying, it wasn't

12 entirely clear on the timing to me at least. 

13 But there was bullying once the word got out. 

14          And the fact that her peers felt that

15 they needed to take sides and that she began

16 to be bullied, that may be independent of

17 whether or not she formally chooses to proceed

18 and cooperate.

19          If word gets out that even if she

20 formally doesn't wish to participate, you

21 know.  If there is a process that proceeds

22 independent of her we've still got that
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1 potential and that problem. 

2          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Can I raise another

3 point related to the issue of restricted and

4 unrestricted? 

5          The question occurs as to what

6 services are available with unrestricted

7 reports.  And the transfer, the question about

8 whether you could have a transfer.

9          COL HAM:  Do you mean restricted

10 report, ma'am?  With a restricted report?

11          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Yes.  I mean if your

12 report -- right.  There are certain services

13 that may not be available to a restricted

14 report.  And so that needs to be clarified,

15 particularly the issue of transfer and being

16 in a proximate location to the alleged

17 assailant.  

18          I don't know what one does about this

19 but somehow there needs to be some way of,

20 even if the victim wants to make a restricted

21 report of at least allowing some kind of

22 protection.  And I don't know how the system
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1 can accommodate that.

2          COL HAM:  Well, the commander will

3 not know anything about the individual.

4          REP. HOLTZMAN:  But is there some way

5 of -- how does this -- I understand.  But I'm

6 trying to say is can there be a way with a

7 restricted report, despite a restricted

8 report, of ensuring that a victim is not going

9 to be further victimized by continued

10 proximity?  Is there some way of providing

11 that service or dealing with that problem?

12          DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, I completely

13 agree that there is and I think that there

14 should be a mechanism by which the command can

15 know of a restricted report and allow a

16 transfer independent of the details of -- and

17 independent of the fact that it remains a

18 restricted report.

19          What I don't understand is the

20 mechanistic thinking by which if a commander

21 hears of even inadvertently an allegation of

22 sexual assault that it inexorably becomes an
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1 unrestricted report.  That's what I don't

2 understand.  

3          It seems to me that command is subtle

4 enough and careful enough to respond

5 appropriately and could ask the first question

6 is this a restricted or an unrestricted

7 report.  And if it's an unrestricted report,

8 well, let's pursue it and investigate.  And if

9 it's a restricted report, okay, then let's try

10 to figure out what services are appropriate

11 and is transfer an appropriate circumstance,

12 or an appropriate thing to do right now.

13          I don't understand why folks who are

14 in command authority cannot hear that

15 something is a restricted report and not take

16 appropriate actions on behalf of the victim. 

17          REP. HOLTZMAN:  I think the answer is

18 generally the concern about retaliation, but

19 I think that the issue here is because -- I

20 mean, you're thinking about the neutral

21 commander.  But the fact is that the commander

22 may be buddies with the assailant.  So then
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1 what happens?  So I think that there's an

2 issue.

3          I mean, I think that has to be

4 addressed.  But I think this question, the

5 question of -- I think these are two really

6 important issues.  How you take back an

7 inadvertent disclosure and how you provide

8 appropriate services even with a restricted

9 report.

10          Whether that means, Dean, as you're

11 suggesting that the commander should know, or

12 what other mechanism there is that somehow

13 needs to be addressed in my opinion.

14          COL HAM:  Do you want to address the

15 -- so the particular service you're focusing

16 on is the ability to receive an expedited

17 transfer with a restricted report.

18          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Right.

19          COL HAM:  Do you want to address at

20 all the potential -- well, I don't know how to

21 say it other than --

22          REP. HOLTZMAN:  -- expedited
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1 transfer.  Maybe it's even just moving within

2 the base immediately.  I don't -- you know. 

3 But whatever locational issues, whatever name

4 you want to give them, but something that's

5 designed --

6          COL HAM:  Right now the DoD policy is

7 as the Dean reflected.  Once the commander

8 knows they have got to report it to the

9 military criminal investigative organization. 

10          And that of course is by statute now

11 in the NDAA.  And that of course is a

12 reflection to the perception that commanders

13 were not acting.  So.

14          DEAN ANDERSON:  But just to jump in

15 on that.  That was based on the historical

16 reality that there was not an opportunity for

17 a restricted report.  

18          As I understand it that preceded the

19 decision to force command to turn the

20 information over to prosecutors or to

21 investigative authority preceded the existence

22 of the possibility of a restricted report.
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1          It seemed to me that it would be

2 perverse to indicate that, well, if the

3 commander might be the buddy buddies with the

4 assailant then we don't want -- then we want

5 to continue with the system that allows the

6 command to involuntarily or inexorably or

7 automatically have to turn over information

8 when we've now shifted to a victim-centered

9 and victim-decisional moment here on the

10 question of who gets to hear about this bad

11 thing that's happened.

12          COL HAM:  That's not correct, ma'am. 

13 The restricted reporting option came into

14 being I think in 2007.  And the requirement to

15 refer every Article 120, every sexual assault

16 allegation to the MCIOs was by Secretary of

17 Defense policy direction and now by the most

18 recent National Defense Authorization Act of

19 2014.

20          DEAN ANDERSON:  Okay, well I

21 appreciate the correction, Colonel Ham.  And

22 I retract the assertion.  I assumed that
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1 logically they must have gone in that

2 sequence.

3          It does seem to me that the existence

4 of the opportunity to restrict reporting, if

5 that provides decisional authority to the

6 victim that that decisional authority is

7 undermined by an automatic requirement of

8 referral of the information if command should

9 inadvertently, especially if command should

10 inadvertently hear -- existence of an

11 allegation, of a restricted report.

12          You know, it undermines the

13 decisional authority of the victim to

14 automatically require the command to turn that

15 information over to investigators.  I think

16 that's what we're grappling with.

17          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

18 think we're not going to come up with a

19 solution right here.  I think this is

20 something that we need to flag as an issue.

21          Given what we heard in testimony and

22 then given what we've heard in the lunchroom
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1 that this is happening then something -- I

2 don't think that we have the wherewithal right

3 now to come up with a solution nor do we have

4 the information.  But it is something that we

5 need to flag as an issue.

6          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  There's another

7 thing too.  I think that they're not provided

8 with legal counsel either.  I think that's

9 critical.

10          COL SCHENCK:  Yes, they are.  They

11 get legal counsel immediately upon reporting,

12 even -- regardless of restricted or

13 unrestricted.

14          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  They do?

15          COL SCHENCK:  Yes.

16          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Okay.

17          REP. HOLTZMAN:  The other issue that

18 I wanted to touch on was the difficulty of

19 accessing mental health services, the long

20 waits.  And then secondly, the fact that

21 victim services hotline is not answered by a

22 human being 24/7.  Those are two.
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1          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  I concur with the

2 mental health, but also the training of these

3 mental health individuals.

4          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Yes.  Right. 

5 Correct.  

6          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

7 Because probably these victims don't want to

8 talk about their mothers.  They want to talk

9 about what happened to them.

10          CDR KING:  Now, when we've been to

11 places we've heard -- we know there's two

12 hotlines.  There's usually a local hotline and

13 then there's a DoD hotline at least.  She

14 didn't say which one it was.

15          MR. CASSARA:  Perhaps we could make a

16 suggestion that --

17          CDR KING:  I would guess it's a base

18 hotline.

19          MR. CASSARA:  I'm sure on a small

20 base they may have one person who answers the

21 hotline.

22          CDR KING:  Right.
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1          MR. CASSARA:  And maybe they're not

2 available 24/7.

3          MS. SAUNDERS:  What we've heard, you

4 know, they have a cell phone and it may be

5 transferred between people.

6          MR. CASSARA:  I was going to say it

7 can't be too difficult in this day and age to

8 have a phone transferred.  If nobody's home

9 that the call is transferred immediately to

10 the national hotline or to somebody else so

11 that at least there's a central repository

12 where somebody can speak to this person and

13 get in touch with the people on base.

14          MS. CARSON:  There is a policy, it's

15 just not being followed.

16          MR. CASSARA:  It's just not working. 

17 Okay.

18          COL SCHENCK:  Because if they use the

19 app, right?  If they had the app it would be

20 --

21          MS. CARSON:  Well, the policy is to

22 call the DoD help line no matter what.  That
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1 is the central point, even if the other bases

2 have --

3          REP. HOLTZMAN:  The policy is for

4 whom to call?

5          MS. CARSON:  The victim.

6          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, I mean, is the

7 victim going to remember which hotline?

8          MS. CARSON:  That's the thing, there

9 are several.  And the victim -- but that's the

10 DoD policy.

11          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  The

12 policy for the victims?  I mean, that sounds

13 counter.

14          MS. CARSON:  And then they are

15 supposed to get directed to a warm handoff to

16 a SARC or victim advocate at their base.  And

17 so the policy wants, it intends for the help

18 line to have the number to call the SARC.  So

19 they can keep calling people till they get

20 somebody at that base.

21          MS. SAUNDERS:  When we were at Fort

22 Hood, for example, we heard from some of the
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1 SARCs.  And one of them mentioned they have

2 their number there on base for people to call. 

3 And they talked about having a cell phone.

4          They said if I'm in the hospital I'm

5 not getting reception on my cell phone.  It's

6 going to drop.  It's going to go to voicemail. 

7 So whether that happened in this case I don't

8 know.

9          MS. CARSON:  So, to have somebody

10 who's a hotline who has access to lots of

11 phone numbers to get somebody up to and

12 including the installation commander. 

13          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  The

14 balance is you don't get -- it rings four

15 times and nobody picks up it automatically

16 starts ringing to another.

17          MR. CASSARA:  Yes, I mean help me, is

18 that the current policy?  That there should be

19 a live human being answering the phone 24/7?

20          MS. CARSON:  There is.  That's the

21 DoD help line.

22          MR. CASSARA:  Well, but again, I
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1 don't want to -- I'm getting confused between

2 the two.

3          MS. CARSON:  Yes.

4          MR. CASSARA:  If one calls, you know,

5 I'll pick a base.  Okay, Fort Bragg, North

6 Carolina.  Okay.  And there's nobody home. 

7 Does it automatically ring forward to the DoD

8 hotline?

9          MS. CARSON:  All services have the

10 same policy and that is they should get a call

11 back in 15 minutes.  So, it is not out of

12 policy for them to ask to leave a message.

13          MR. CASSARA:  I don't -- maybe it's

14 just me but I think the leaving a message is

15 so counterintuitive.

16          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Why shouldn't they

17 call -- everyone should have the same number

18 and then it gets referred.  Instead of calling

19 your base and then having to call the Defense

20 Department, why don't you call the Defense

21 Department, have one number for everybody

22 everywhere.  And then that person can then
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1 find a SARC, find another human being, a warm

2 handoff.  So it's not the responsibility of

3 the victim in a moment of this tremendous

4 emotional crisis to have to figure out who I'm

5 calling, when I'm calling.  That's absurd.

6          MR. CASSARA:  She probably doesn't

7 even remember her phone number at that point.

8          REP. HOLTZMAN:  It's absurd.

9          CDR KING:  Well, and somebody else

10 brought that up somewhere, that the number is

11 just a random number.  I think it was at Fort

12 Hood also.  And they didn't know why it wasn't

13 like some easy to remember thing like --

14          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Like 911.

15          CDR KING:  Yes.

16          MS. CARSON:  DoD SARC.  1-800

17 something, the words.  It's just a number.

18          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, that's a bad

19 idea.  So that should change.  And having a

20 24/7 number which is answered 24/7 should be

21 changed.  That's just ridiculous.

22          MR. CASSARA:  The next thing you know
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1 we'll have "if there was alcohol involved,

2 press 1."

3          (Laughter)

4          MR. CASSARA:  "If this was an

5 acquaintance, press 2."

6          DEAN ANDERSON:  They wouldn't need

7 those parts of the tree.  They would need

8 those parts of the tree.  These all involve

9 alcohol.  

10          MS. SAUNDERS:  So would this then be

11 in lieu of having a base number as well?  Or

12 would it just be one number that's advertised

13 everywhere?

14          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

15 think it's one number and then that number

16 refers to the bases.  But you've got -- that

17 one number can control a 24-hour response, I

18 think.

19          COL SCHENCK:  It's like you want to

20 call Pentagon Federal Credit Union.  They've

21 got that number.  They've got people working

22 all over the country.
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1          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  --

2 different bases, trying to find their number

3 and confusing --

4          COL SCHENCK:  -- call centers.  And

5 then you just, they have the data available

6 where they can then feed into the --

7          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  The

8 irony would be if India was getting our calls.

9          CDR KING:  Is that a recommendation?

10          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes.

11          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Right, now if they

12 can figure out a better way of doing it.  I

13 mean, they have 911 numbers.  I mean, if I

14 dial 911 here in Washington I'm not going to

15 get 911 in New York.  So, I'm not going to

16 tell them technically how to do this.

17          But you need to have one number which

18 is the same number for the U.S.  Everybody can

19 remember it.  Whether it's a, you know, with

20 a live person 24/7.  Whatever way you get

21 there.  And then they figure out --

22          COL HAM:  Okay, court reporter,
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1 everybody.

2          CDR KING:  Oh yes, he's trying to

3 take everybody -- sorry.

4          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

5 Anything else from this panel that we need to

6 highlight?  

7          DEAN ANDERSON:  You know, I would

8 just say that there's the issue of training. 

9 It was particularly disturbing that the

10 trainer of the sexual assault, you know, the

11 person who presented the training was actually

12 someone who was the offender in the first

13 case.  

14          And I think we want to think about

15 training a little differently for both peer-

16 to-peer sexual harassment and sexual assault

17 and superior officers or people who outrank

18 the victim engaging in sexual assault.  To the

19 extent that the training doesn't address that

20 or addresses that only in a cursory fashion I

21 think we want to correct the training in that

22 way.
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1          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

2 Agreed.

3          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  I don't know how

4 you do that.

5          DEAN ANDERSON:  Well, for one thing

6 it's a question of acknowledging its

7 existence.  In acknowledging that, you know,

8 it does seem to me that sexual assault by

9 peers is often a circumstance in which someone

10 is taking advantage of someone's inebriation. 

11 Not always, not always.  But that that's part

12 of what's going on.  And I'm sure that that's

13 a part of the sexual assault training. 

14          What might be difficult to confront

15 but is an undeniable fact is that sexual

16 assault also occurs in conditions in which

17 someone has more power than the other person,

18 and that that person can groom the other

19 person.  

20          Like, hey, you get special benefits

21 by being the evening shift cleaner of the

22 commander's offices.  And the benefits that
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1 you get to speak to me in an informal way, but

2 the condition is that you never can tell

3 anyone.  

4          Clear and obvious grooming for a

5 sexual harassment, sexual assault.  And is

6 something obviously that this commander had

7 done repeatedly.

8          So, talking about power dynamics as

9 part of a problem of sexual assault I think is

10 something that it behooves us and it would

11 behoove the military to confront.

12          CDR KING:  This is Sherry King, Dean

13 Anderson.  Do you remember at Lackland when we

14 had the -- I think you were there that day

15 when we had the trainers come over, and

16 military instructors come over.

17          DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes.

18          CDR KING:  And they were talking

19 about that there was a SARC at every training,

20 or a victim advocate at every training so that

21 someone in boot camp could turn to that

22 person.  Or report to that person.
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1          DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes.

2          CDR KING:  Do you think that -- I

3 mean, I don't know if that's something I

4 assume they're doing at all military training

5 facilities.  Is that something you're talking

6 about addressing?  Or is something different

7 than that even?

8          DEAN ANDERSON:  No, I'm talking about

9 talking about power dynamics and hierarchy as

10 being a part of sexual assault.  That people

11 are groomed for -- that offenders don't look

12 for the strongest person in the room, they

13 look for someone who's vulnerable because they

14 outrank that person, or because that person's

15 drunk, or because there's an opportunity and

16 that person is isolated.

17          I just think that acknowledging the

18 way that hierarchy, talking about sexual

19 assault as an issue that involves hierarchy

20 and power is a way that is something that the

21 military needs to grapple with and can be

22 explicit and talked about in the trainings.
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1          My concern in particular with

2 trainings that don't address circumstances of

3 sexual assault in which an officer or a

4 servicemember who outranks another

5 servicemember and preys upon them.  

6          My concern with not discussing those

7 issues is that when it happens it even more so

8 looks like it's -- the victim internalizes it

9 and thinks it's her fault.  

10          How did I, you know, maybe I was

11 impressed by his, the stars on his shoulder. 

12 Or maybe I was impressed by -- and maybe I

13 asked for this by assuming this role, et

14 cetera, et cetera.  

15          I think without acknowledging this

16 issue it risks victims perceiving themselves

17 as -- perceiving the situation in more

18 complicated and self-recriminating terms.

19          And I think we want to say when

20 someone preys upon someone who they outrank

21 it's as bad as when someone preys upon someone

22 who is drunk.
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1          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, and I think the

2 other thing is what do you do in those

3 circumstances if it's an officer.

4          COL HAM:  And the current training

5 may do that.  We need to check, the staff

6 needs to check it to see and let you know.

7          DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, absolutely.

8          REP. HOLTZMAN:  And the other issue

9 that they raised in connection with training

10 was that there wasn't a SARC at every training

11 facility.  

12          COL HAM:  Which surprised me quite a

13 bit.  Usually they're the people who are doing

14 that training. 

15          CDR KING:  Well, I think that's

16 changed since the incidents at Lackland which

17 were occurring about the time of at least one

18 of the person's incident.

19          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Could we check on

20 that?  I mean, if it --

21          CDR KING:  It would be on Lackland. 

22 Could you check it to make sure that it's --
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1 so that each service.  You're talking about

2 like at the training.  At the initial

3 training.

4          COL HAM:  If there's a SARC available

5 at training.

6          CDR KING:  Sure.

7          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  It was

8 the timing of the training.  A lot of people

9 are now saying -- well, I guess by order it's

10 two weeks in.  But folks were saying it really

11 should be earlier.

12          They said something about like their

13 induction or --

14          MR. CASSARA:  One of the things I

15 asked was the MEPS station it was called,

16 MEPS.  Military Entrance Processing Station. 

17 Thank you.  It's been awhile.

18          With the one -- I forget who raised

19 it.  It was interesting which is that we have

20 had one person testify that she heard that

21 when she got to the MEPS station and was like

22 okay, think I'll go do something else with my
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1 life.

2          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  The

3 problem I have with that testimony, and it's

4 not to --

5          MR. CASSARA:  I mean, that may just

6 be an isolated --

7          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  If

8 you're going into the military with the

9 possibility of going to war.  I mean, so.

10          MR. CASSARA:  Yes.  Well, that --

11 there may be one person who ever acted that

12 way.

13          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

14 mean, that is a reaction.  You don't want to

15 discount that reaction.  But on some level, I

16 mean, there's guns and all sorts of stuff that

17 are --

18          MR. CASSARA:  I would be in favor of

19 making a recommendation that there's some

20 instruction, information, whatever at the MEPS

21 station regarding sexual assault reporting.  

22          But I think the other part of that,
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1 and this has sort of been my question about

2 the whole process is, I think it's also

3 important that there be some instruction

4 information to prevent these incidents. 

5          You know, my overriding concern has

6 been obviously helping victims should, you

7 know, that's what we're here for.  But putting

8 out information that also might stop these

9 incidents would also be a laudable --

10          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes, I

11 think that that is absolutely --

12          MR. CASSARA:  You know, we've talked

13 about the issue of alcohol being available at

14 all hours of the day and night.  You know.  If

15 there was some -- believe me, as one who does

16 this every day there are an awful lot of guys

17 out there, and I've had female-on-female

18 sexual assaults so it ain't just them, who if

19 the message were brought out about the

20 ramifications of this kind of conduct after

21 consuming massive amounts of alcohol were made

22 known would probably have an effect.
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1          CDR KING:  Just to clarify are you

2 still talking about at the MEPS Station?  Or

3 active-duty training now?

4          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

5 think both.

6          MR. CASSARA:  I would think both. 

7 And maybe it's not our purview.

8          MS. SAUNDERS:  I will tell you the

9 Role of the Commander Subcommittee is actually

10 looking at prevention training and things.

11          MR. CASSARA:  Okay.

12          MS. SAUNDERS:  Just exactly like what

13 you're talking about.

14          MR. CASSARA:  Like I say, that may be

15 out of our lane, I don't know.

16          CDR KING:  We can go through --

17          DEAN ANDERSON:  I don't know, I don't

18 think any of that stuff -- I actually very

19 much agree with Bill.  

20          MR. CASSARA:  See, I knew that would

21 happen.  Thanks.

22          DEAN ANDERSON:  Pardon?
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1          MR. CASSARA:  I said I knew that

2 would happen eventually.

3          (Laughter)

4          DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, I agree, Bill. 

5 I think that there needs to be a tremendous

6 focus on prevention and how training happens.

7          And it does seem to me to be within

8 our purview to talk about preventing the

9 existence of victims, not just helping them

10 after the fact.

11          And to the extent that we can engage

12 in preventative work and support the

13 preventative work at the services and enhance

14 it, strengthen it, the preventive work that

15 the services have done, that seems to be

16 something that we should really focus on.

17          MR. CASSARA:  Sherry, would you think

18 that's within our umbrella?  I don't know why

19 I'm looking at you for that answer, but I did.

20          CDR KING:  Well, I think really a lot

21 of it is Role of the Commander because they're

22 responsible for training and they're
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1 responsible for prevention.  That's part of

2 their job. So they should definitely address

3 it and they are.

4          However, as victims services I would

5 think in some way -- you probably don't want

6 it to be the main part of your report, the

7 training and prevention, because we would have

8 to hear all the testimony that they have

9 heard, or review all the testimony and perhaps

10 get more.

11          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Is

12 there a way of recommendation to that

13 subcommittee that they should insert something

14 like this?

15          CDR KING:  We could do that.  And you

16 may have some recommendation as to -- from the

17 victim's perspective that's a little bit

18 different than from the commander's

19 perspective. 

20          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

21 think just what Bill just articulated would be

22 fine.
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1          CDR KING:  Okay.

2          COL HAM:  One thing to consider I'm

3 throwing out if you want to -- if you think it

4 should be considered.

5          Not being an enlisted person, their

6 first couple of weeks in basic training has

7 been described to me numerous times in my role

8 as a prosecutor and defense counsel as, you

9 know, well, one, they don't remember anything. 

10 Because they have requirements to have

11 training in a number of items. 

12          And there used to be a document, you

13 know, the DASH2 or whatever it's called that

14 would reflect.  You know, military justice

15 training was a big one.  What date within 14

16 days they had received their military justice

17 training.  

18          And I can guarantee that 5 years down

19 the line they don't recall any of their

20 training in the first 14 days.

21          One thing that I'm not sure if this

22 subcommittee has heard or if it was another



Page 171

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1 subcommittee.  Actually it was a prep session

2 I believe in August before the subcommittees

3 were formed.  

4          That one of the things the services

5 struggle with is this need for recurrent

6 training.  Because they realize from studies

7 of learning or whatever, effective learning,

8 that it has to be repeated.  And they have to

9 find I think the, quote, "sweet spot" between

10 what's enough and what's too much.  And how

11 often it should be and should not be

12 PowerPoint, it should be interactive, all

13 those kinds of things.  

14          So, some of you may have heard some

15 of that to consider.  And the overall

16 inundation of the new recruit in everything. 

17 They're getting uniforms.  They're getting put

18 in the system.  They're getting ID cards. 

19 They're getting --

20          CDR KING:  Yelled at.

21          COL HAM:  They're getting health --

22 yes -- checks.  They're getting this briefing,
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1 that briefing, the other briefing.

2          CDR KING:  And they're learning to

3 march even.  They can't even walk.

4          COL HAM:  Yes.  And the recurrent

5 nature of what must occur.

6          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  All

7 that said, I think when you walk in the door

8 if somebody says if this happens to you

9 there's these services.  And I may not

10 remember it but maybe Bill remembers it and

11 it's out there at least. 

12          MR. CASSARA:  And if you're told if

13 you get really drunk and you touch somebody

14 inappropriately you're going to be on a sex

15 offender registry for life, you know what?  I

16 think they're going to remember that.  I

17 really do.

18          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes, I

19 do.  I agree.  People remember sex.

20          MR. CASSARA:  Yes.

21          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  They

22 do.



Page 173

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1          MR. CASSARA:  Can we speak here for

2 response?

3          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes,

4 go.

5          MR. CASSARA:  I will tell you the

6 other thing that really struck me is when the

7 one young lady talked about the rapid turnover

8 of the CID agents.  And you know, I wish

9 General McGuire were here.  

10          But obviously that's a CID manpower

11 issue.  But I will tell you that there are

12 commands in which I am dealing with very

13 serious sexual assault allegations and in one

14 of them the agent investigating it has been an

15 agent for less than a year.  

16          And he is I think 16 years old.  He

17 may have turned 17 since the last time I saw

18 him.  I mean.  He's a former enlisted soldier

19 -- well, he is an enlisted soldier, but you

20 know.  Did three years in his regular MOS. 

21 Became a CID agent.  And he is now the law.

22          And no disrespect intended toward
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1 that man, but he doesn't really know a lot. 

2 And he is the lead agent in a very serious

3 sexual assault allegation.

4          And I think if we're going to be

5 providing quality services to victims of

6 sexual assaults their CID agent may be the

7 second person they come into contact with. 

8 And if that person doesn't know what they're

9 doing and doesn't know how to interview the

10 victim of a sexual assault we've lost that

11 person forever probably.

12          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

13 think you're talking about something slightly

14 different.  What you're saying is level of

15 experience.  What I heard them say was --

16          MR. CASSARA:  Was the turnover.

17          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes,

18 turnover.

19          MR. CASSARA:  But I think it's the

20 same thing in the sense that -- the reason why

21 I pointed that example out was because I think

22 that the overarching theme is that the victim
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1 has to have confidence in the CID agent or the

2 OSI agent, whoever that might be.

3          And two reasons why they may not have

4 confidence is because they're turning over

5 every six months to a year.  And also because

6 they're just brand new out of CID school.

7          I realize that's a CID manpower issue

8 but I think that is something that we can

9 possibly address and say, you know.

10          CDR KING:  I know the Comparative

11 Systems Subcommittee has worked really hard on

12 law enforcement and investigations and quality

13 of those investigations.

14          We could make our own recommendation

15 on that, or maybe that's something we want to

16 --

17          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I can

18 give it to them.  Again, I think it's another

19 one where --

20          MR. CASSARA:  As long as there's

21 somebody else covering it.

22          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes.
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1          CDR KING:  Right.

2          MR. CASSARA:  I didn't realize that.

3          CDR KING:  I know for sure they've

4 been working on that a lot.

5          MR. CASSARA:  I didn't realize that. 

6 Okay.

7          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

8 Anything else?  Okay, Sherry.  It's in your

9 hands.

10          CDR KING:  Okay.  So, we worked on

11 making a handout for this possible issues for

12 discussion findings, recommendation for

13 victims services.

14          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Just

15 so folks know process-wise we're going to go

16 till 3:30 on discussion, and then a half hour

17 on process moving forward, and then we go

18 home.  Okay?

19          MR. CASSARA:  I'm here.

20          CDR KING:  We have a lot of stuff to

21 cover in the next few weeks so at least we can

22 start on this.
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1          So, we kind of went through a lot of

2 issues, some that you've discussed before,

3 some that we've heard from witnesses, some

4 that we've gotten from the materials.  And if

5 they're not relevant to you, or you don't

6 think there's an issue, or don't want to

7 discuss them we can move on.  

8          But we thought we would start with

9 the SAPR program and just discuss the overall

10 program, the Sexual Assault and Prevention

11 Response program.

12          It's certainly something that's been

13 developed over the last, what, since 2004 or

14  05.  And so I think they're still working on

15 it.

16          But I don't know if you have any

17 issues or thoughts about the overall

18 effectiveness of the program and if it's a

19 good way to go.

20          I can tell you Julie and I and the

21 rest of the team have been looking a lot at

22 all the instructions.  And some of the
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1 evaluations that we sent you said that the

2 training has wrong information in it, that

3 they weren't giving updated -- information

4 from the updated instructions.  

5          So, I don't know, but I suspect that

6 might be because of the length of time it

7 takes to update the instructions.  We heard

8 something about that at one of the bases, that

9 commanders weren't following the latest

10 policy, the SAPR, SARC or victim advocate.

11          COL SCHENCK:  So it's basically

12 dissemination.

13          CDR KING:  Right.

14          COL SCHENCK:  Because there's such

15 rapid changes.  

16          CDR KING:  Right.

17          MS. SAUNDERS:  So many changes so

18 quickly.

19          COL SCHENCK:  Right, and it doesn't

20 get down to the field level as rapidly as it

21 should.

22          CDR KING:  Right, which was causing
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1 problems for some of the advocates because the

2 commanders weren't involved in it, weren't

3 aware of the newest policies.  And also causes

4 apparently some problems at training the new

5 SARCs because they don't have the latest

6 policies either.

7          COL SCHENCK:  Okay, can I just ask a

8 question?  Going back to effectiveness, when

9 we're talking about effectiveness.  My

10 recommendation would be that we start from

11 that last 2009 DTFSAMS report when we're

12 talking effectiveness.  

13          Because there were findings on

14 effectiveness at that point as a starting

15 point as opposed to going through the history

16 of military sexual assault.  And then go from

17 there.  Otherwise we'll be writing forever.

18          This goes back to when Air Force

19 never had any courts martial and they had the

20 rulings don't matter on sexual assault.

21          MS. CARSON:  Was that universal a

22 desire to do that?
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1          COL SCHENCK:  Does that sound good?

2          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes, I

3 think that's fine.

4          CDR KING:  The next topic we have on

5 here was the selection career track.  Issues

6 regarding who's a SARC, who's selected as a

7 SARC or a SAPR victim advocate, how they're

8 selected.

9          Julie has -- if you look on your

10 spreadsheet Julie has some information on --

11          MS. CARSON:  It's called SARC and

12 SAPR VA Comparison Chart.  It just gives you

13 some of the --

14          CDR KING:  Where is it?

15          MS. CARSON:  It's one of the legal-

16 sized packets.

17          REP. HOLTZMAN:  And what page is it

18 on?

19          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  It's

20 the first page.  Look at the top.

21          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay, thanks.

22          CDR KING:  So, first are the
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1 governing policies.  And that was part of our

2 problem when we were putting this together is

3 just taking information out of those policies

4 because they're very massive and trying to

5 narrow it down so that we could find issues

6 that were easily discussed, could easily be

7 discussed.

8          And so, Julie, just why don't you go

9 over if it's okay a little bit of the ranks of

10 the people and how they're organized and

11 things like that?

12          MS. CARSON:  Okay.

13          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Which document?

14          CDR KING:  Okay.  Ma'am, we sent you

15 an updated version this morning.  It's called

16 SARC and SAPR VA Comparison Chart.

17          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Let me see if I can

18 pull it up.

19          CDR KING:  I think we've sent it

20 about three times actually.  We sent a new

21 copy this morning because Julie rearranged it

22 a little bit and took out some issues.
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1          MS. SAUNDERS:  You may have to page

2 down on your attachments if it's on the

3 computer.

4          CDR KING:  Yes.  

5          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  What is this

6 called?

7          MS. SAUNDERS:  Do you remember what

8 the file name is?

9          MS. CARSON:  It's called

10 SARC_VA_chart_ --

11          COL HAM:  Ma'am, we'll resend it to

12 you separately.

13          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  I've got it.  

14          CDR KING:  Okay.  

15          MS. CARSON:  Okay.  The NDAA and DoD

16 policy does not say anything about victim

17 advocate rank requirements.  So the services

18 have -- you can see what each one is.

19          If you see a GS that means that's a

20 civilian position.  And then these are

21 abbreviated so I can expand on them if you

22 need it or not.
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1          REP. HOLTZMAN:  What page are you on

2 now?

3          MS. CARSON:  The very front.  SAPR VA

4 Rank.  Which you can see --

5          MS. SAUNDERS:  -- charts.  Make sure

6 you have the SARC SAPR VA.

7          MR. CASSARA:  I think it's page 2 on

8 our chart.

9          COL HAM:  Oh, I think you have a new

10 one in here.

11          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes,

12 it's number 2 on our --

13          MS. CARSON:  It's the second block,

14 yes.  It's not page 2.

15          MS. SAUNDERS:  No, it is on page 2

16 for us.

17          CDR KING:  Oh, how did that happen? 

18 I don't know.  Oh well.  

19          MS. CARSON:  Okay, sorry.  I got mis-

20 stapled.  Inexplicably the one that says SAPR

21 VA Rank.  

22          And so you can see the Army, it has
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1 to be at the first lieutenant, chief warrant

2 officer 2 level, or staff sergeant.  The

3 civilians start at GS-9 which is fairly low

4 level for the victim advocates.  

5          For the Air Force it's an O2 level or

6 an E4.  And then for the civilians it's a GS-

7 11 position.  So it's a higher-paying starting

8 position in the Army, for instance.

9          The Navy has no rank requirements for

10 military victim advocates and it's a GS-9

11 requirement for civilians.

12          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  So we

13 have an idea, what's the salary on a GS-9?  Do

14 you know?

15          MR. CASSARA:  Somebody could Google

16 it real quick.  It's available in the public

17 record.

18          CDR KING:  Rachel's going to do it. 

19 We'll be back with you.

20          MS. CARSON:  It's fairly low I think. 

21 And the Coast Guard has no rank requirement. 

22 So basically anybody can be a victim advocate.
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1          MS. SAUNDERS:  -- in the civilian

2 community.  I imagine it's low and it may be

3 higher in the civilian community.

4          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  A GS-

5 11 is probably a relatively --

6          MS. SAUNDERS:  That's a pretty high,

7 that's pretty high there.

8          MS. LANDSEE:  GS-9 is $51,000.

9          MS. SAUNDERS:  Okay.  

10          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  That's

11 not that low.

12          COL HAM:  That's a paralegal sort of

13 rating.

14          CDR KING:  In the civilian world for

15 helping people, for helping professions that's

16 fairly good.  Yes.  I mean that's why we

17 probably have a lot of them applying for jobs

18 as we civilianize them.  Because the pay is

19 regular and the benefits are more than many

20 rape crisis centers and staff.

21          DEAN ANDERSON:  Can I ask just a

22 clarification?  And I apologize that I don't
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1 know the answer to this.

2          But I want to clarify there's a

3 difference between victim advocate and victim

4 witness liaison, is that correct?

5          MS. CARSON:  Yes.

6          DEAN ANDERSON:  Okay.

7          CDR KING:  Victim witness liaisons

8 work primarily through the court system, or

9 they're supposed to be to giving information

10 about the military justice system.

11          DEAN ANDERSON:  And that's the one

12 who was doing her nails or clicking on

13 Facebook or whatever during the -- and not

14 particularly providing emotional support as I

15 understand it.

16          MS. SAUNDERS:  That is exactly what

17 she said.  But I have to wonder if when she

18 was describing what the woman told her as her

19 duties it sounded more like a victim advocate. 

20 Because a victim witness liaison's duties are

21 not there to provide you emotional support. 

22 That would fall more within the victim
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1 advocate.  So, perhaps it was a terminology

2 issue, I don't know.

3          COL HAM:  Yes, the victim witness

4 liaison would typically work in the

5 prosecutor's office arranging travel and

6 providing all the required notifications under

7 the -- what was the DoD policy for military

8 victim rights and now the statutory

9 requirement for Victim Rights Act.  

10          And applies to every victim of every

11 crime, and every witness of every crime, not

12 limited to sexual assault.

13          DEAN ANDERSON:  And victim advocates

14 that we're discussing right now are

15 specialized to sexual assault?

16          MS. CARSON:  These victim advocates. 

17 They're called SAPR victim advocates and they

18 are specifically sexual assault advocates.

19          There are also family advocates, part

20 of the Family Advocacy Program.  Totally

21 separate. 

22          DEAN ANDERSON:  I guess I'm
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1 wondering, given limited resources I guess I'm

2 wondering why we need three, as I understand

3 it three, possibly four people attending to

4 the victim.  

5          There's the counsel, victims counsel

6 which sounds invaluable.  There's the SAPR and

7 then there's the victim advocate.  And then

8 there's the victim witness liaison.

9          Now, the victim witness liaison is

10 not specific to the sexual assault

11 circumstance, but even so it does seem like

12 we're still left with three people who are --

13          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Hey,

14 Meg.

15          MS. GARVIN:  Hi, everybody.

16          COL HAM:  In fact, the survivor who

17 discussed that was a domestic violence

18 survivor.  So, she would -- should have been

19 dealing with the Family Advocacy Program

20 victim advocate.

21          And you heard from them, Dean

22 Anderson, last time, the whole Family Advocacy
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1 Program and why they were separate from the

2 sexual assault program.  You're certainly open

3 to considering whether they should be.

4          DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes.

5          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  I think that we

6 ought to make sure that these people are at an

7 appropriate level and they're comparable among

8 the services.

9          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Okay,

10 just for clarification's sake.  The SARCs

11 supervise the victim advocates.  The

12 prosecutor supervises the victim witness.  And

13 the special victims counsel reports to?

14          CDR KING:  Their own special --

15          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Their

16 own chain of command.  Except in the Army.

17          So this is where, Michelle, I see the

18 issue is also the coordination of what's being

19 given.  You may have too many cooks in the

20 broth here.

21          DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, that's what I'm

22 wondering.  And not that -- yes, right.  
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1          I mean, I think there have been some

2 questions in my mind about the usefulness of

3 victim advocates or victim witness liaisons. 

4 I certainly understand now that they report to

5 different bodies.  

6          But I guess I'm just wondering in

7 light of the fact that many of these programs

8 have already come to the fore recently, that

9 we're in difficult funding times.  

10          And the fact that these are, you

11 know, the services are looking to cut back on

12 various kinds of funding.  And these services

13 may compete with other legitimate goals that

14 the military has.  Obviously it is a zero sum

15 game in terms of finances. 

16          And I guess I'm just wondering where,

17 just for the purposes of recommendations in

18 our own minds where we may be able to trim and

19 make more uniform the services that are

20 available.  Even if those services are

21 slightly less than the most robust and fullest

22 panoply of services that are available at the
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1 height of scrutiny which is right now.

2          COL SCHENCK:  Okay, so let me just

3 talk a little bit about how it works, for the

4 Army anyway.

5          The SARC is at the installation

6 level.  There is one or two people at best. 

7 So when we went to Fort Hood, I don't know if

8 those of you who were there, you remember. 

9 There were two individuals.  There was a SARC

10 and maybe a deputy SARC.

11          And then all of the other individuals

12 in that room were victim advocates.  That was

13 an additional duty.  That is not their primary

14 function.

15          So you had one guy who had --

16 remember the guy with five daughters or

17 whatever?  He probably was an infantry guy. 

18 The other guy was a tanker.  These people do

19 real jobs for the Army and as an additional

20 duty they act as victim advocates.  They get

21 trained.

22          One of the complaints at Fort Hood
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1 was it wasn't a real job.  They would transfer

2 and it might adversely impact their promotion

3 as opposed to being an equal opportunity

4 officer which is a primary job and that's your

5 whole function.  Even if you did infantry

6 originally, you're EO when you get coded EO.

7          The victim witness liaison is in the

8 JAG office because in the old days that's who

9 we had.  The victim witness liaison would

10 schedule witnesses, maybe pay them -- in the

11 old days we would get them like $10 to appear. 

12 All victims, not, like Colonel Ham said, not

13 just sexual assault victims, all victims.  

14          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

15 They're kind of paralegals in many ways,

16 aren't they?

17          COL SCHENCK:  Yes, right.  Right,

18 they would be paralegals or junior captains in

19 the JAG Corps who are administrative law

20 attorneys.  They would pull them in to do this

21 additional function.

22          This other thing, this special
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1 victims counsel, the Army, unlike the Air

2 Force anyway, the Army, it's an additional

3 duty.  It is not their primary job.  And the

4 lawyers are doing usually legal assistance and

5 they advise sexual assault victims.

6          Their boss is the staff judge

7 advocate, the lawyer at the installation.  But

8 if they have special victims counsel issues

9 and questions they call Colonel McKee who

10 oversees these additional duties.  

11          So that's just my description as I

12 understand it.

13          CDR KING:  And Bette Stebbins, I

14 pulled up her testimony that we had.  She was

15 describing DoD standards for victim assistance

16 services in the military.  So the overall

17 policy.

18          And this doesn't address the victim

19 witness liaison but she said they have four

20 victim assistance-related programs through the

21 Department of Defense.  And this is when she

22 testified on November 7.
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1          She said there's a family advocacy

2 program.  So they have advocates.  And from

3 our chart we noted that they're all civilian

4 advocates and from what they told us.

5          Then we have the Sexual Assault and

6 Prevention Office, the SAPRO office.  They

7 handle the sexual assault victims.  They have

8 the SARCs who some are civilians, some are

9 military.  And they also have victim

10 advocates, some of whom now are civilians and

11 some who are military.  And the military ones

12 generally are part-time I believe. 

13          And then they have the Victim Witness

14 Assistance program that handle all victims of

15 crime.  And apparently that falls under this

16 also. 

17          And then they have the Military Equal

18 Opportunity Office which is what you were

19 talking about.

20          COL SCHENCK:  So, these SARCs have

21 databases at each installation.  When we did

22 the DTFSAMS we went to the SARC's office and
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1 we would look at those databases to see how

2 they were tracking all these reports.

3          And the victim advocates are embedded

4 in the unit.  So, at the Army level it was a

5 platoon victim advocate.  And what, 30, 40

6 people assigned.  They all knew who the victim

7 advocate was and they would, if they wanted to

8 make an initial report.

9          And those are now deployed, there are

10 deployed victim advocates and deployed SARCs

11 out there in the Army unit. 

12          So, from my perspective as far as

13 absorbing functions I don't think we should be

14 so forthright as to make a recommendation that

15 says you guys need to combine these jobs. 

16          I think the recommendation would be

17 that hey, there seems to be some overlap with

18 these functions, the victim witness liaison. 

19 And you know, maybe they should look at

20 combining those functions.

21          I think DTFSAMS recommended changing

22 terminology because the services were all
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1 different.  

2          MR. CASSARA:  And I think part of

3 that, you know, we've been involved in this

4 for, what, eight or nine months now and we're

5 still confused by some of the terminology. 

6 You can imagine the victim who's received a

7 few weeks of training, and then is sexual

8 assaulted, and the is told you have a SAPR, a

9 SARC, a VA VWL, you know. 

10          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Is

11 there any way that we could, our

12 recommendation would be an evaluation of the

13 VA SAPRO and special victims counsel?  And the

14 evaluation would be is there overlap.

15          I mean, I can't tell you if it should

16 be a GS-9 or a GS-11.  I just can't.  I'm not

17 in that position. 

18          CDR KING:  Well, and how about if

19 some of them are uniformed or not uniformed.

20          COL SCHENCK:  Right.  And the size of

21 your installation is really an important

22 factor to consider.  Fort Hood has a
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1 tremendous amount.  Fort Bragg, a number of

2 increased reports.  

3          But you go to Fort Rucker you've

4 probably got a couple of, well, they're

5 aviators so I don't want to go there.  But you

6 know what I'm saying, the size of your

7 installation.

8          The other issue that's clear is who

9 gets services from different services.  So,

10 victims, all victims get a victim counsel in

11 the Marine Corps.  Am I right?  I mean, this

12 is just my memory.  All victims get victim

13 counsel in the Marine Corps.

14          But not all victims get -- just

15 sexual assault victims get it.  And then of

16 course the stovepiping issue.  And then, you

17 know, yada yada yada.

18          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I know

19 that this sounds like a punt, but it's not a

20 punt.  I mean, this really needs to be

21 evaluated.  We're not in a position from a few

22 pieces of testimony to be able to answer all
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1 the questions which, Sherry, I think are very

2 good questions.  But those are the basis of

3 your evaluation. 

4          And I would add into it what's the

5 confusion in addition to these questions

6 between all three, four.  

7          I don't see -- even though it's got

8 the name "victim" in there I don't see the

9 victim witness people as really being -- I see

10 them as a paralegal that gets you your $10

11 check if you testified that day.  They're not

12 going to sit down and say you need mental help

13 and here it is.  

14          So it's really those three.  What's

15 the overlap and then what's the, you know,

16 should it be civilian, should it not be

17 civilian.  Should there be -- what's the right

18 balance.  And hand that over to somebody that

19 can do a thorough evaluation. 

20          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  I agree with that. 

21 I think that that's what our recommendation

22 ought to be.



Page 199

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1          COL HAM:  And in addition, ma'am, the

2 family advocacy part is -- I think you went

3 from four to three, and does that bring it

4 back up to four.

5          COL SCHENCK:  Yes, it does bring it

6 to four.

7          COL HAM:  I pulled the -- 

8          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  That

9 was the panel that was here the last time we

10 were together.  

11          COL HAM:  It was domestic violence

12 and intimate partner.

13          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes,

14 they handled the domestic violence cases.

15          COL HAM:  I pulled the DTFSAMS and

16 there was a recommendation to --

17          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  What's

18 DTFSAMS?  I'm sorry.

19          COL HAM:  Defense Task Force for

20 Sexual Assault in the Military Services, the

21 federal advisory committee that issued its

22 report in 2009 on where services were then. 
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1 If you read the recommendations you recognize

2 a lot of things you've learned about exist.  

3          All of these were, nearly all these

4 have been implemented.  General Patton spoke

5 to them on your first public meeting.

6          One of their recommendations was for

7 SAPRO to work with the services to determine

8 the appropriate number of victim advocates

9 based on military population and mission.

10          And my understanding is that's when

11 the -- I think Congress has mandated a victim

12 advocate at every certain level, brigade

13 level.  

14          And the services then, for example,

15 the Army has mandated them at lower levels. 

16 So this assessment has been done.

17          It sounds like what you're saying is

18 because of the addition of other stuff we

19 should -- you want to recommend revisiting it?

20          

21          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Well,

22 and also -- yes -- it's an evaluation of --
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1 across the services it's being done

2 differently.  And I can't really tell you that

3 one's better than the other one.

4          MS. SAUNDERS:  Well, they're so new. 

5 The special victims counsel is so new.

6          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  The

7 special victims counsel is so new, but even,

8 you know, like I said.  Is a GS-9 worse than

9 a GS-11?  I just don't know.

10          MR. CASSARA:  And I don't know that

11 we have the authority to tell the military

12 what pay grade somebody needs to be for any

13 position.

14          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No,

15 but maybe somebody could tell you really the

16 level of experience of a GS-9 is insufficient

17 to do this job.  

18          MR. CASSARA:  I'm saying that's not

19 us.

20          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes,

21 it's not us.

22          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, I think there
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1 is an evaluation of the special victims

2 counsel program that's been mandated.  Isn't

3 that correct?  I mean, that's -- am I wrong? 

4 Maybe it's in one of these bills that's been

5 passed.

6          MS. CARSON:  The Air Force did one

7 and they're all copying.

8          REP. HOLTZMAN:  So I think that

9 that's underway.

10          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

11 don't know if that's underway, actually.

12          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, we should find

13 out.  

14          JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Even if it is it

15 doesn't address the issue of overlap.

16          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

17 Between the SARCS, the VAs and the special

18 victims counsels.

19          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, I would be very

20 concerned about at this point trying to

21 restrict special victims counsel

22 responsibilities.  I think that would be a big
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1 mistake.  And even if they do overlap, so

2 what.  

3          I think the problem is that the only

4 reason they're going to overlap is because

5 those other two, or the other available

6 resources have not connected properly with the

7 victim.  And so the only person that's left is

8 the special victim advocate.  

9          So, the minute we start saying, well,

10 special victim advocate, you shouldn't be

11 making a call to make sure that there are

12 better health services.  I don't want to go

13 there.  I don't think we should be doing that.

14          And I don't think that that's -- I

15 think the real question is to assess whether

16 the other advisory programs are working

17 effectively.  I mean, the victim advocates

18 program and the SAPRO program and the SARCs. 

19          And they probably should be evaluated

20 on a professional basis.  I know that they

21 professionalized one of them, I think the

22 victim advocates.  Now they have to have
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1 training and they have to have some kind of

2 degree or whatever.  That's a good thing.

3          CDR KING:  The civilians have to have

4 the degree or if you're --

5          MS. SAUNDERS:  They have to have a

6 certification.

7          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  They

8 have to be certified.

9          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Who?  Just the

10 civilians?

11          MS. CARSON:  All of them.

12          REP. HOLTZMAN:  All of them.  So now

13 everybody has got to get a certain level of

14 training.  So that's definitely --

15          MS. CARSON:  But the training has

16 been evaluated.  There's been one evaluation

17 by SAPRO of these trainings.

18          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Yes.

19          MS. CARSON:  And these trainings have

20 to be approved by this certification body. 

21          REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay.

22          MS. CARSON:  There's one evaluation
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1 that's been done.  We recently got it.  We've

2 got a chart together looking at those because

3 they are completely different for each

4 service.  The evaluation that was done, the

5 questions that were asked, the things that

6 were evaluated.

7          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  So

8 this is an evaluation to go across services?

9          MS. CARSON:  It is -- I mean, that is

10 each service.

11          REP. HOLTZMAN:  No, no, no.  Uniform. 

12 For all the services.

13          MS. CARSON:  The policy mandates that

14 all this be standardized.  And that was the --

15             CDR KING:  We sent a -- just so

16 you know what we're talking about, these are

17 evaluations we sent out to you.  And we did

18 put them in here.  But we found out, when we

19 were trying to compare them, is it doesn't

20 appear that the same questions or the same

21 standards were used at the --

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 
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1 We're not comparing apples to apples, exactly.

2             CDR KING:  And then like something

3 --

4             (Off microphone discussion)

5             CDR KING:   -- They don't say

6 whether they do them all.  Some of them will

7 say they did great in --

8             (Simultaneous speaking.)

9             CDR KING:  -- and they did poorly

10 in the other ones.

11             (Off microphone discussion)

12             CDR KING:  But they don't say that

13 they all had --

14             MS. CARSON:  But you have no idea

15 how they did it in the rest of the areas. 

16 There's like 25 things that the 6495, 65,

17 whatever, tells you you have to do to train

18 on.

19             CDR KING:   So there's at least

20 been a start to do that, because there's been

21 a requirement to evaluate the programs.  But

22 we had trouble comparing them for you, because
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1 nothing matches up.  They're just an

2 individualized assessment, it appeared to me,

3 of each program, because they just discuss the

4 good and bad things.  And that's where they

5 that discuss some of the laws were wrong, that

6 they were giving them wrong information.

7             They were doing it by Power Point

8 where they should have some more hands on

9 experience in some things.  Some of them they

10 said they don't have subject matter experts

11 like lawyers or law enforcement to talk about

12 those areas of the law or, you know, what a

13 victim would go through as far as the program. 

14             But it doesn't appear that there's

15 like a check list of criteria that everybody's

16 required to do, and then they're evaluated.

17             REP. HOLTZMAN:  And that's for the

18 training program.

19             CDR KING:  Correct.

20             REP. HOLTZMAN:  To get certified. 

21             CDR KING:  To get certified.

22             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Yes.
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1             CDR KING:  Okay.

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  So it's being done

3 differently for each service, is that what

4 you're saying?

5             CDR KING:  Each service does their

6 own.  They have the basic --

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay.

8             CDR KING:  -- overview of what

9 they're supposed to do.

10             REP. HOLTZMAN:  So Colonel Ham,

11 typically, in her brilliance, found that fact

12 that the special victims counsel has been

13 periodically reviewed by the Secretary of

14 Defense.

15             It might be appropriate, if we're

16 getting into this issue of uniformity, to

17 suggest that the Secretary of Defense evaluate

18 them across all services with the same

19 standard, so that they have to meet the same

20 criteria for all services and the same

21 recommendation be made that there be periodic

22 evaluations of these programs that require
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1 them to meet the same criteria for --  that

2 they're evaluated against the same criteria

3 for all services.  I mean, it seems to me

4 absurd that they're not --

5             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

6 also so then for the SARCs and the VA.

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  That's what I'm

8 saying, for the SARCs and the VA, make a

9 recommendation for the Special Victims counsel

10 that it be a uniform criteria across all

11 services.  And then the same should be done

12 for these as well.  And also, in evaluating

13 these to make it, you know, here I think

14 there's a good question about overlap. 

15 Because there's probably not enough.  And how

16 many, maybe we could make sure that these are

17 functioning properly, then I don't think we

18 have to worry about the issue with the special

19 victims counsel.

20             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  My

21 only issue with overlap, and I don't know if

22 this has been seen or not seen, is that you've
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1 got a Special Victims Counsel that's reporting

2 to its own chain of command.  And then you've

3 got the SARCs and VAs, and they're reporting

4 to its own chain of command.  You've got the

5 victim in the middle.  If these guys, if the

6 SARCs and the VA say this is what we should

7 probably be doing with the victim, and the

8 legal counsel says this is what we should be

9 doing for the victim, is there a conflict? 

10 And who resolves that conflict?

11             CDR KING:  My understanding is

12 that I don't think it's supposed to work like

13 that.  I think it's in it that SARC talks to

14 the victim.  They're required to advise the

15 victim about other services available,

16 including the Special Victims Counsel and --

17             MS. CARSON:  The victim-witness

18 liaison too.

19             CDR KING:   And the victim -- yes,

20 everybody's supposed to advise them of the

21 victim legal counsel.

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No. 
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1 But, I mean, are there realms, there are areas

2 of, are their territories so different that

3 they're not going to conflict?  If I'm a

4 Special Victims Counsel, I kind of want to be

5 able to call all the shots on what I think my

6 victims should be getting.  All of a sudden,

7 I've got a SARC that's saying, no, no, no, I'm

8 not going to do that.  Is that an issue that

9 comes up?  Or is it -- are their territories,

10 the things that they're advising the victim

11 on, so completely different that it's never

12 going to be a problem?  That's the only time

13 I see that there's an issue.

14             CDR KING:  I don't know that we've

15 heard any testimony that's there's been the

16 conflict, or seen anything that there's been

17 that conflict.  Maybe the conflict we've heard

18 about is that maybe that SARC did things

19 before the victim legal counsel in that

20 program either --

21             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

22 Well let's go with the young Air Force --
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1             CDR KING:  Right.

2             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  --

3 one, where the VA went off and was trying to

4 get housing and doing whatever and all of a

5 sudden made this an unrestricted case.  I'd be

6 pissed as hell if I was Special Victims

7 Counsel and found out that that happened

8 inadvertently, and there was now nothing I

9 could do, representing my victim, to make it

10 go --

11             CDR KING:  That's what I was

12 saying, is some things happened before the

13 Victim Counsel is on the case.  And that's

14 what I was saying.

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Or

16 even when they got on the case and the

17 discussion, and the VA just kind of said, oh

18 yes, yes, yes, I'll figure this out.  I'll get

19 her new housing and took off without

20 conferring first with the counsel.  Because

21 there's no reason that the VA has to confer

22 first with the counsel.
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1             COL HAM:  You're wondering, your

2 question is who's the boss --

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

4 Yes.

5             COL HAM:  -- it sounds like.

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

7 Yes.

8             COL HAM:  Well, they each an

9 independent privilege right now, the attorney-

10 client privilege and the victim advocate slash

11 victim privilege.  But they don't have a

12 conjoined, my understanding is, they don't

13 have a conjoined privilege, like they're not

14 part of the same team, they can share

15 information without breaching privilege.

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

17 That's interesting that you say that.  Because

18 I was thinking, well, maybe they all kind of

19 get together and they share their information. 

20 But if it's they have conjoint privilege --

21             COL HAM:  They do.  Some get

22 together --
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1             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

2 They have case management.

3             COL HAM:  -- to discuss the

4 services that's provided to the victim.  We

5 ask those questions specifically at Joint Base

6 Lewis McChord where they're trying a multi-

7 disciplinary approach on how do they keep the

8 privileges separate.  Because a Special Victim

9 Counsel, and the victim advocate and some

10 mental health professionals are all in the

11 same place.   So how do you keep all of your

12 privileges separate?

13             And their answer is: we don't

14 discuss what the survivor or victim is telling

15 us.  We discuss the services the victim needs

16 to make sure he or she is receiving all of

17 them.

18             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, is that a

19 legal recommendation that should be made?  Has

20 anyone taken a look at that, at the privilege,

21 whether that should apply to the professionals

22 who are all working on the same matter?



Page 215

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1             COL HAM:  You mean as a team?

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  As a team?

3             COL HAM:  The analogy would be the

4 defense team and you have an expert who joins

5 the team.

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

7 Meg, go ahead.

8             MS. GARVIN:  Right.  It's  - the

9 current structure, not that different from

10 what  happens in the civilian world when

11 there's a lawyer.  And I do think that changes

12 might be recommended.  But right now, multi-

13 disciplinary teams in this building all get

14 together all the time.  And they each have

15 different privileges.  You know, the medical

16 doctor, the prosecutor, the psychologist, the

17 CARES group, you know, the child protection

18 group.

19             There's multi-disciplinary teams

20 and many jurisdictions for different services. 

21 They come together, they do the equivalent of

22 case rounds of non-disclosure, privileged
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1 information.  They make mistakes a lot and

2 privilege gets pierced.  But it happens.  The

3 model that we might want to consider

4 recommending that the military consider is

5 putting a certain level of the advocacy into

6 the same shop as Special Victims Counsel which

7 is how the original model in the civilian

8 system works.

9             There was, at the clinics that

10 were started years ago there was a lawyer and

11 an advocate both assigned to a case, both

12 operational under the attorney privilege, but

13 with different job duties.  Like the advocate

14 had expertise in very different stuff than the

15 lawyer.  They couldn't read both.  And it can

16 be advantageous to have them under the same

17 structure to avoid similar things that Mai has

18 been saying, or to allow for exchange of

19 information in a much more free flowing way

20 and also to streamline things for the victim.

21             That said, I think one of the

22 things we have right now is we have advocates
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1 in the system, we have the victim-witness

2 folks who are not just for sexual assault

3 victims.  So our recommendations really have

4 to be, I think, pretty cautious to make sure

5 that we don't remove any services or make

6 recommendations that have potential for

7 overlap when the services might be being

8 afforded to non-adult sexual assault victims

9 through that office, whatever office it

10 happens to be.

11             COL HAM:  My understanding, Ms.

12 Garvin, is the Marines are trying to co-locate

13 victim/advocate with Special Victim Counsel,

14 although not a shared --

15             MS. GARVIN:  Would they do the

16 same, would they do the same --

17             COL HAM:  Not under the law right

18 now.  But you're talking about --

19             MS. GARVIN:  Yes.

20             COL HAM:  -- almost like the

21 defense team, basically, when they have an

22 expert consultant who joins and then shares a
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1 privilege.  So you'd be establishing a victim

2 team, basically, with a shared privilege.  It

3 sounds like what you're --

4             MS. GARVIN:  Yes.

5             COL HAM:  -- raising?

6             MS. GARVIN:  Yes.

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Is it a shared

8 privilege?  I mean, sometimes when you hire an

9 expert it's a work product privilege.  So it's

10 a different privilege from the lawyer,

11 actually, and the client.  But if the special

12 victims counsel retains all these people, I

13 don't know what that would mean, then in

14 essence they would have a work product on

15 something like that.  I don't know whether

16 that makes any kind of sense.

17             Because that's also, you know,

18 you're importing something else to fit this

19 bill.  But I think it's a really good point,

20 whoever raised it, about trying to make sure

21 that people can work together effectively

22 without breaking a privilege.
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1             COL HAM:  They didn't sound like,

2 understanding your question, those were very

3 specific questions put to both civilian multi-

4 disciplinary teams, site visits and the

5 military.  And they did not view it as an

6 issue, I'll just report to you.

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Okay, good. 

8             COL HAM:  Whether you view it as

9 an issue, they did not view it as hindering

10 them at all.  But they may not have thought of

11 --

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well --

13             REP. HOLTZMAN: There's also. 

14 Right.  And the Special Victims Counsel is

15 probably just getting started here.  So maybe

16 they haven't actually gone into the issue. 

17 When I say here, I mean in the military.

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:

19 Well, I think my issue is slightly different

20 other than privilege.

21             It seems as though the SARCs and

22 the VAs shouldn't take any steps in the case
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1 as far as getting them services or doing

2 anything until the Special Victims Counsel is

3 assigned, to ensure that any of the steps that

4 they're taking isn't in any way damaging the

5 victim's rights.

6             And for the most part, I'm talking

7 about going restrictive versus unrestricted. 

8 They need to confer with the victim's counsel

9 before taking action.  Does that make sense?

10             (Simultaneous speaking.)

11             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

12 Why?

13             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well because, I

14 mean, you'd be interfering with the immediate 

15 provisional services.  I don't know how

16 quickly the Special Victims Counsel's going to

17 get them.

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

19 They're supposed to get them immediately,

20 right?

21             COL HAM:  If requested.

22             REP. HOLTZMAN:  If requested.
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1             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Can

2 everybody put their thing on mute if they're

3 not speaking?

4             JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Tell me how to

5 put it on mute.

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I'm

7 not sure what kind of phone you have.

8             JUDGE MARQUARDT:  I have a

9 Panasonic.

10             (Off microphone discussion.)

11             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

12 We're okay now, Christel.

13             JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Okay.  Well, it

14 wasn't my phone.

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No. 

16             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I think also, the

17 fact that they have to check first with the

18 special victims counsel doesn't mean that

19 they're still not going to make a mistake in

20 the way in which they call.  You're not going

21 to eliminate all of those problems.

22             I mean, whatever mistake that was
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1 made here probably would have been made even

2 if the person got authorization.  They just

3 didn't know how to ask for it.  Or I don't

4 really know exactly what the mistake was.

5             MR. CASSARA:  Well, maybe we're

6 doing an end run around this.  But do we want

7 to look at whether there is a recommendation

8 to be able to un-restrict, or to restrict a

9 previously unrestricted report?  

10             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

11 That might be the way to go.

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Right.

13             MR. CASSARA:  I mean --

14             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

15 That might be the way to go.

16             DEAN ANDERSON:  And I agree with

17 Bill.  Again, Bill.

18             MR. CASSARA:  I'm going to play

19 the lottery tonight.

20             (Laughter.)

21             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Didn't we just

22 decide this?
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1             COL HAM:  I'm sorry, ma'am?

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Didn't we just

3 decide this, about a recommendation on

4 unrestricted, or am I mistaken?

5             MR. CASSARA:  No.  I think that's

6 a different analogy.  I mean, what we're

7 talking about now is if somebody makes an

8 unrestricted report, can they go back and

9 restrict it?

10             COL HAM:  Issues to flag, perhaps. 

11 I know on the --

12             MR. CASSARA:  No.  I mean, I don't

13 know --

14             COL HAM:  I don't want to be a

15 naysayer at all.  And I'm not, I don't want to

16 participate at all, nor should I be the, but

17 issues to consider are the -- what's the right

18 way to put it?  The perception that someone

19 would be trying to talk the victim out of --

20             MR. CASSARA:  That's what --

21             COL HAM:  -- an unrestricted

22 report to a restricted report.  All the issues
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1 you've heard from some experiences that were

2 bad and that were wrong, what Congress seems

3 to be doing and DoD seems to be doing is

4 making it impossible to accuse the chain of

5 command of sweeping it under a rug or the NCO

6 of sweeping it under the rug.  So --

7             (Simultaneous speaking.)

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  --

9 you don't give to commanders.  You give that,

10 that has -- maybe you do it with the advice of

11 Special Victims Counsel.  And then that way

12 you have your own legal representative.

13             MR. CASSARA:  And if the goal is

14 to empower the victim in these sets of

15 circumstances --

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

17 Right.

18             MR. CASSARA:  -- I think it should

19 be victim protocol.

20             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

21 Yes.  You don't give that to the commander.

22             COL HAM:  Should it be
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1 unrestricted to restricted, or just a

2 strengthening or disseminating better the

3 current policy of, even if it's unrestricted

4 and the victim says I'm out, I'm not

5 participating any further, should that somehow

6 be strengthened?  It's still an unrestricted

7 report, but it doesn't stop the investigation.

8             MR. CASSARA:  And this is a dumb

9 question, but, I mean, under the current

10 policy, if somebody has made an unrestricted

11 report, can they then go restrict it?

12             MS. SAUNDERS:  No.

13             MR. CASSARA:  I don't think they

14 can.     

15             MS. SAUNDERS:  No.

16             REP. HOLTZMAN:  It's only if

17 they've told, I think there was a lot of

18 issues, that if they told their friend or

19 their --

20             COL HAM:  Confidante.

21             REP. HOLTZMAN:  -- or confidante

22 it's --
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1             (Simultaneous speaking.)

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  -- that doesn't

3 make it unrestricted.

4             MR. CASSARA:  I'm just saying,

5 maybe I'm naive.  But it just seems to me, you

6 know, that could be decision making power in

7 the place that we want it to be, which is in

8 the hands of the victim.  And here she gets to

9 say, okay, I've decided now that I just want

10 to keep this as a restricted report.

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, but I think

12 Colonel Ham makes a very good point. 

13 Restricted report, after it's public, what is

14 the benefit of making it restricted at that

15 point?  The benefit is that there's no

16 investigation?  What is the benefit at that

17 point?  What are we trying to empower the

18 victim with?

19             So that's what I'm trying to get

20 at is kind of, well, if what we're trying to 

21 do is make sure that there's no investigation,

22 and there's no prosecution, well, the victim
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1 -- I don't know if the victim in the end can

2 control that.  Because suppose they find out,

3 you know, some information and then find

4 evidence outside, as a result of the report

5 they find evidence, and they want to proceed

6 without the victim.  Maybe the victim isn't

7 even necessary for the prosecution any more. 

8 So do we want to stop that?  I mean, what is

9 our objective here?  I'm not saying, I'm not

10 --

11             MR. CASSARA:  No, I understand. 

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  -- asking this in

13 argumentative way --

14             MR. CASSARA:  No, I understand.

15             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I'm just trying to

16 understand what we're trying to accomplish.

17             MR. CASSARA:  I'm thinking back to

18 the gentleman today who said he really, you

19 know, did not want his report to go

20 unrestricted.  And then it did, and then he

21 was like, okay, I can't do anything about it. 

22 And he had reasons why he wanted his to stay
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1 restricted.

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Right.

3             MR. CASSARA:  You know.

4             COL HAM:  But to come up on

5 comparative systems is a -- and I don't know

6 what the recommendation will be, or if they

7 will make one, is the similar notion that

8 there's restriction and un-restriction.  But

9 there's not a kind of third, we want the

10 investigators to know, so if this person is

11 already in the system for something, or he'll

12 be put in the system, in case somebody else

13 also reports him, but they don't want to go

14 any further.  And whether there should be that

15 kind of third option, which maybe is a little

16 bit different than what you're talking about,

17 the same questions come up.  How do you then

18 --

19             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

20 That's almost a prevention asset.  I mean, you

21 would do that in order to, somebody else, hey,

22 I want to stay restricted, but I want to tell
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1 you who did this.  They put the name in the

2 system, and then if it pops up, you know,

3 you've got a serial perpetrator on your hands.

4             COL HAM:  And some of the same

5 issues come up.  How do you ensure them that

6 an investigator is not rightly or wrongly

7 accused of talking the victim out of going

8 forward, because he or she is biased or

9 doesn't believe him or her?

10             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, the answer

11 to that is easy.

12             COL HAM:  What does he know?

13             REP. HOLTZMAN:  You cannot do an

14 unrestricted, you cannot go to restricted

15 without Special Victim Counsel.  Special

16 Victim Counsel,  if that Special Victim

17 Counsel signs off, then you deal with the

18 problem you're talking about, I think.  I

19 mean, I could be wrong, but --

20             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

21 mean you can't go from restricted to

22 unrestricted without conferring first --
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1             REP. HOLTZMAN:  No, the other way. 

2             MR. CASSARA:  No. I think she's

3 saying the --

4             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I said exactly

5 what I meant which is from unrestricted to

6 restricted.  Because what Colonel Ham was

7 concerned about is that there would be an

8 impression that somehow the military police,

9 or the prosecutor is trying to pressure, or

10 the commander, or somebody else.  So you could

11 do it either way, where they go from

12 restricted to unrestricted or unrestricted to

13 restricted.  You could require that they

14 consult with the special victims counsel.  So

15 I think that that's --

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

17 think that's --

18             REP. HOLTZMAN:  So that would

19 probably solve the problem.  But --

20             DEAN ANDERSON:  Well, let me just

21 jump in there and press this question, just

22 for a moment.  As I understand it, these folks
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1 are not encouraging one way or the other.  And

2 for the status quo, as I understand it, the

3 Victim Advocates and the Special Victim

4 Counsel are not encouraging reporting or

5 discouraging reporting.

6             And I guess maybe that remains the

7 appropriate position for the victim counsel,

8 I mean, I just simply want to clarify what are

9 we asking the victim counsel to do if the

10 victim says, you know, I'm really thinking of

11 going from unrestricted to restricted.  Given

12 the pushback I'm getting, given the gossip

13 mill or given any number of things, I'd like

14 to restrict my report.

15             Are we asking the victim counsel,

16 because the victim counsel currently is not

17 supposed to encourage or discourage reporting,

18 as I understand it.  Are we asking the victim

19 counsel, how are we asking the victim counsel

20 to sign off on that position?  Consult --

21             (Simultaneous speaking.)

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 
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1 Advise and consult.

2             MR. CASSARA:  Yes.  I mean,

3 whatever's in the best interest of your

4 client, you know.  And I think you're right.

5 I think we, you know, we leave it as after

6 consulting with their counsel, you know,

7 that's their call.

8             CDR KING:   Are you recommending

9 that there be a time that this occurs?  Or, I

10 mean, how far in, you know, like if there's an

11 investigation --

12             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

13 When there's a decision to go one way or the

14 other, when somebody started off with

15 restricted and then wants to go on to

16 unrestricted, or with unrestricted to

17 restricted, they should, before that decision

18 is made, consult with counsel.

19             REP. HOLTZMAN:  If they have one. 

20 Yes, what happens if they don't have one?

21             MR. CASSARA:  Well, but I think

22 what you were saying --
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1             DEAN ANDERSON:  It sounds a lot,

2 it sounds to me kind of akin to, you know,

3 change of plea, I mean, like the victim's

4 counsel talks to their client about changes of

5 plea, and they advise and they consult.  And

6 then it's the client's decision.

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Right.

8             DEAN ANDERSON:  I guess if we

9 think about it, it's an analogous terms, such

10 as this is a shifting moment of what's going

11 to happen with a case.  But we seem to be

12 having a discussion that it might be good to

13 have the victim have some level of control of

14 who can think about it in those terms.

15             COL HAM:  I guess, control over,

16 what's the recommendation, control over what? 

17 Control over the final decision, the final

18 decision on whether the investigation

19 continues, whether the prosecution continues,

20 both?  So what is the goal of, what are your

21 thoughts on the goal of putting the genie back

22 in the bottle?  What does the subcommittee
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1 want to stop going forward that would be

2 accomplished by going unrestricted to

3 restricted?

4             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, that's a

5 separate question.  What we were just talking

6 about now is we were addressing the concern

7 you raised, which is if you go from

8 unrestricted to restricted that there could be

9 an implication that somebody has coerced you

10 into doing this, okay.

11             And so by requiring a consultation

12 with the Special Victims Counsel, you avoid

13 that implication, so if the rest of the

14 process goes forward, or that nobody's hurt in

15 this, including the victim, but this is all

16 still in the context of kind of changing the

17 way in which you can go about going from

18 unrestricted to restricted.   Because right

19 now you can't really do that.

20             So assuming you can do that,

21 assuming we recommend, and assuming that the

22 military and-or Congress, and-or whoever does
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1 it, then the question is: how do you want that

2 process to be effectuated?  And if we do

3 recommend that you be able to change, then the

4 special victims counsel will be part of that

5 decision making process.  That's all.  I think

6 that's where we are.  Am I wrong?

7             MR. CASSARA:  I agree.

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No. 

9 I agree with that.  But then I -- go ahead. 

10 Was that Michelle?

11             DEAN ANDERSON:  I agree.  Yes.  I

12 just was saying that I agree with Liz's

13 construction.

14             REP. HOLTZMAN:  That's because

15 that's where we are in that, kind of.  We

16 haven't really decided what we're doing.

17             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

18 Colonel Ham then says, how do you get the

19 toothpaste back in the tube, though, if you've

20 gone unrestricted, the investigation is moving

21 forward, do you, say, halt investigation and

22 then go back to restricted?
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1             CDR KING:  But what if you're the

2 day before trial?  I mean, that's --

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No,

4 no.  I mean, that's a fair question.

5             CDR KING:  Right.

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

7 don't have the answer to it.

8             (Telephonic interference.)

9             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.

10             DEAN ANDERSON:  Well, one

11 question, an analog that we could look at in

12 the civilian world that would help us to

13 understand what happens here, I'm thinking,

14 Meg, what do you think about this question?

15             MS. GARVIN:  Well, I just got cut

16 off from the line, so I've been off the line

17 for about a minute.  So I'm not sure what the

18 question is.

19             DEAN ANDERSON:  So --

20             MS. GARVIN:  Well --

21             DEAN ANDERSON:  Go ahead.

22             MS. GARVIN:  If it's about whether 
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1 they should be able to go back to

2 unrestricted, and if so what the ramifications

3 on the investigation are --

4             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:

5 Correct.  Or, Sherry just brought up what do

6 you do if it's the day before trial?

7             MS. GARVIN:  Yes.  I mean, I think

8 there isn't an analog exactly, and this is on

9 my, once law enforcement is investigating,

10 there's almost no control, and, in fact,

11 unfortunately, it's the material witness ones. 

12 But at least you were hoping not to continue

13 in the participation, and the prosecution has

14 decided it should go forward anyhow.  We fight

15 material witness laws in the civilian world to

16 say don't use them in sexual assault or

17 domestic violence cases.  But it happens.

18             So I don't know that the civilian

19 world offers a very victim-centric alternative

20 to look to as something to draw from.  You

21 simply can think about, you know, encouraging,

22 you know, alternative ways of prosecuting that
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1 require victim presence and material witness

2 laws that I'm not sure, I mean, there's just

3 nothing in the civilian world that's any good,

4 I don't think, in this situation.

5             COL HAM:  I guess the big question

6 is what power does the subcommittee believe,

7 we will want to recommend the victim have over

8 things like the investigation, again, right

9 now.  And we have heard, in site visits we

10 have heard some concern from the investigative

11 agencies that they now are required to go

12 forward even if a victim says, I'm not a

13 victim, and I don't want you to investigate

14 this case, if a third party's reported

15 something.

16             So right now there's no power for

17 the victim to stop the investigation, although

18 the power to cooperate is solely the victim's.

19 So the question for the subcommittee is: are

20 you considering, are you recommending an

21 increase in the power the victim has over the

22 investigative process.
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1             And right now they don't have to

2 cooperate in a prosecution.  Although a

3 military victim can always be ordered to

4 testify, I think you heard in your December

5 meeting that the services are not doing that. 

6 So that's the big question, I think.

7             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

8 Meg, what's your thought on this?  I mean --

9             MS. GARVIN:  You know, I think

10 that we have to be careful a little bit here.

11 Here's my two cents on this.  I'm sorry. I'm

12 in a hotel, so I'm trying to stay away from

13 noise.

14             The recommendation from a purely

15 victim centered approach would be to return

16 control over the process to him or her.  The

17 reality is the system is designed to do two

18 things: one, redress individual harm and, two

19 redress societal harm, right, which is the

20 military's been damaged as a whole from these

21 assaults and by leaving perpetrators on active

22 duty.
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1             So, I mean, I think there're two

2 sometimes conflicting goals of any justice

3 system.  And when we make a recommendation

4 that is wholly about one, the other one may be

5 damaged.  And I think that's the situation

6 we're in right now.

7             We can make a recommendation as a

8 subcommittee that is victim-centered and say

9 return more control to the victim.  But if

10 that totally eviscerates the possibility of

11 going after perpetrators, we have to

12 acknowledge that the record reflects the

13 choice that we just made in our

14 recommendation.  I'm not sure I would

15 recommend complete control being left in the

16 hands of survivors because, and my reason is

17 victim-centered, when that perpetrator

18 perpetrates again, that victim is going to

19 have self-blame like crazy.

20             So instead, if we can identify

21 some level of middle ground in just strongly

22 discouraging investigation that drags the
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1 victim back into it, or respects his or her

2 privacy in a more aggressive way, I don't even

3 know what those protections are, but I think

4 we need to consider them and see if there's

5 any middle ground here.

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

7 Okay.  To recap what we're recommending, let's

8 start with the one that seemed easiest at the

9 time, which was the evaluation.  And what

10 we're seeing is we, just like there is for the

11 special victims counsel, there should be

12 periodic evaluation of the SARC and VA with

13 the same standards going across all services. 

14 So we've got that one.

15             The next one was this ability to

16 go restricted/unrestricted, I can't even say

17 it, going back from restricted to

18 unrestricted, that whenever a victim does that

19 they should consult counsel beforehand.

20             MS. GARVIN:  Should be required

21 to?

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I
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1 think so.  And as we said before, it would be

2 advice and consultation.  You're not

3 advocating for one perspective or the other. 

4 You're just saying talk to your counsel before

5 you make this decision, unrestricted to

6 restricted,  both ways.  Both ways.

7             MS. GARVIN:  It's stated as a

8 requirement.

9             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

10 Yes.  It should be stated as -- I think it

11 should be stated as a requirement.  Is there

12 agreement on that?

13             MR. CASSARA:  I agree.

14             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

15 Well if --

16             MS. GARVIN:  What if the victim

17 counsel is not available?  I guess, are we

18 confident that victim counsel is going to be

19 available to all victims who are trying to

20 make this determination?

21             I'm confident that in certain

22 locations, Lackland Air Force Base, any number
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1 of locations that we've reviewed that there

2 would be, but I'm not sure that that's going

3 to be true in deployed situations, or in more

4 remote locations, but maybe I'm wrong about

5 that.

6             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well I don't know

7 if you need to require it, frankly.  I think

8 it depends whether we're going to make any

9 recommendation on, you know, on changing the

10 rules of restriction.

11             If you're not going to make any

12 recommendation on that I don't know that you

13 need to make any -- I don't know that they

14 need to consult.  I don't know, but I share

15 the Dean's concern about this and, you know,

16 maybe the victim doesn't want to talk to

17 Special Victims Counsel about this.  So, I

18 mean I think you should just, maybe before

19 that's done, before that, when someone wants

20 to change it, before they can actually change

21 it, the question is you know you can, maybe

22 they just should be advised that they have the
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1 --

2             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

3 need to provide the opportunity to.

4             REP. HOLTZMAN:  The opportunity,

5 right.  Advise them that they could discuss

6 this if they want with Special Victims

7 Counsel.

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

9 It's a right to consult, and if you choose not

10 to consult that's up to you.

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Right.

12             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Is

13 everybody okay with that language?

14             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes.

15             REP. HOLTZMAN:  What do you think,

16 Lieutenant, I mean, Colonel?  

17             MS. GARVIN:  Yes.

18             COL HAM:  I can't participate in

19 deliberations, so I can't tell you what I

20 think, if I thought anything.

21             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

22 We've got two yeses on the phone.  How about
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1 --

2             MR. CASSARA:  I'm fine with that.

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

4 You're fine with that?

5             MR. CASSARA:  Yes, absolutely.

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I'm

7 fine with that.  Liz?

8             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Yes.  I just -- my

9 only fear here is that if you go and you put

10 in any hindrance in the way of making a

11 restricted report you may make it a little

12 harder, and I think one of the things we're

13 trying to do is encourage more unrestricted

14 reporting.  So that's just my little, nagging,

15 exception about this.

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  My

17 only thought is the poor guy at the end of the

18 table who got unrestricted and didn't want to

19 be, and if a counsel could've been checked

20 into before it went unrestricted that might

21 have stopped that.

22             MS. GARVIN:  I agree with you, and
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1 this is Meg.  I agree with you, Mai.  I mean

2 this is to me akin to -- the victim in the

3 current system has the right to stay

4 restricted, hopefully, if it doesn't land in

5 the chain of command some other way.  And what

6 we're saying is if he or she is going to waive

7 that right to stay restricted it should be

8 known in a voluntary waiver, which happens

9 through counsel, with consultation with

10 counsel.

11             I mean it's the same thing with

12 any right waiver, it's now involuntary, that's

13 what we're saying, if it's knowing involuntary

14 with counsel and it's waived it's fine, if

15 they waive their right to counsel and do it on

16 their own then it's like a pro se defendant. 

17 That's the same idea.

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

19 Yes, but I think I'm going further.  Maybe I'm

20 wrong and this is not what everybody else is

21 thinking.  Is that, at any moment, whether

22 it's done through the victim's actions or not
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1 that it goes from unrestricted, I mean from

2 restricted to unrestricted, that unless the

3 victim has had an opportunity to consult

4 counsel, that shift is not automatically made.

5             REP. HOLTZMAN:  No, I don't agree

6 with that.  I think the person should just --

7 my view is that the person should be advised

8 that they have, the victim should be advised

9 that he or she has the right to seek counsel

10 on this point, but is not obligated to do

11 that.

12             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

13 that doesn't address the inadvertent, the

14 Commander finds out --

15             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Having counsel

16 doesn't address inadvertent because I'll tell

17 you that they can still -- anyone, you know,

18 I go to my lawyer -- I'm a victim I go to the

19 lawyer I say should I make unrestricted?  No,

20 you keep it restricted and I really don't want

21 to change, but I want my victim advocate to do

22 X, Y, Z.  Yes, good idea, call the victim
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1 advocate.  I call the victim advocate, the

2 victim advocate screws up.

3             The lawyer can, I mean, no

4 lawyer's advice is going to prevent someone

5 from making mistakes here.  I'm assuming

6 they're mistakes and inadvertent, but, you

7 know, or malicious.  That's not going to have

8 -- people will still make mistakes.  Then

9 there's a problem.

10             (Simultaneous speaking.)

11             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

12 Okay, then there's a third recommendation, the

13 inadvertent mistake, how do you correct that?

14             REP. HOLTZMAN:  That's right. 

15 That's different from the lawyer.

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

17 Okay.

18             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I don't know that

19 one solves the other, but --

20             DEAN ANDERSON:  Well why not have

21 the Command, when the Command hears of an

22 allegation of sexual assault that the Command
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1 asks the question, is this a restricted or an

2 unrestricted report?  And if it's a restricted

3 report the Command does not have the ability

4 to turn the case over to investigation.  If we

5 provide that, what we're essentially doing is

6 decoupling the automatic nature of once

7 Command finds out it has to go to

8 investigation, and it automatically becomes

9 unrestricted.

10             I think if we decouple that, and

11 we allow the command to ask if it's restricted

12 or unrestricted, and then if it's restricted

13 not to turn the case over, but, again, to seek

14 a queue from the victim one way or the other,

15 or victims counsel, one way or the other,

16 about whether or not this is restricted or

17 unrestricted.  I think that protects the

18 Command from being implicated in the notion

19 that they're trying to bury it, because we

20 have counsel there that is, that the victim

21 has a right to counsel as an intermediary to

22 make the decision about whether to have a
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1 restricted or unrestricted.

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well it's not only

3 Commanders who make the decision about, who

4 are involved in making this restricted or

5 unrestricted.  I mean if this is, I guess if

6 the person goes and tells, I don't know, not

7 a Commander, but somebody who's not a

8 confidant or whatever, just tells somebody,

9 that person could call the police.

10             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes.

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  It doesn't have to

12 tell the Commander, so that process doesn't

13 have to -- Am I wrong here?  The process of

14 disclosure doesn't necessarily implicate the

15 Commander --

16             FEMALE PARTICIPANT:  Correct.

17             REP. HOLTZMAN:  -- once the person

18 tells someone who is not allowed to, you know,

19 that they don't have a privilege to tell.

20             DEAN ANDERSON:  Right.  But as I

21 understood it, Liz, maybe I'm misunderstanding

22 it, but as I understood it, if random person
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1 X finds out about an allegation of sexual

2 assault, she has an obligation to tell her,

3 the authority, that she reports to, and that's

4 how it gets to the Command.  None of that's a

5 problem if the Command does not have the

6 obligation then at that point to turn this

7 over to the investigation, the investigators

8 --

9             REP. HOLTZMAN:  No.

10             DEAN ANDERSON:  -- if this is not

11 an unrestricted report.

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  No.

13             DEAN ANDERSON:  So I think there

14 is --

15             REP. HOLTZMAN:  No, I think that's

16 wrong.  I think that Colonel Ham is saying

17 that that's wrong, that your assumption is not

18 correct.  Do you want to explain?

19             DEAN ANDERSON:  Go ahead.

20             COL HAM:  Yes.  The Commander

21 doesn't have to be the person.  Say Miss Julie

22 Carson comes to me and says, you know, I was
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1 sexually assaulted and she doesn't mean for me

2 to tell anybody, but I'm not a confidant and

3 I'm required to report it.  I don't have to

4 report it to any Commander, I can pick up the

5 phone and dial 9-1-1.  I can pick up the phone

6 and dial CID or OSI.  I'm not required to

7 report to a Commander.

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

9 Okay.  How do we protect the victim from the

10 unintended disclosure?  And that's the issue

11 we need to get to.

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  And that, you go

13 back to the point before about recapturing the

14 privileges and unintended waiver or --

15             (Off microphone discussion)

16             MR. CASSARA: Right?  I'm not sure,

17 I mean maybe we didn't use the same term, I

18 don't know.  When you say an "unintended

19 disclosure," I don't -- I mean that to me

20 almost sounds like it was an accident.  And I

21 didn't hear his testimony as saying it was an

22 accident, I heard him say he was sort of boxed
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1 into a corner at that point because so many

2 things had happened, or did I hear that wrong?

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

4 think the VA was trying to do something for

5 him.

6             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.

7             FEMALE PARTICIPANT:  Right.

8             MR. CASSARA:  And because she

9 spilled the beans then it had to go

10 unrestricted.

11             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

12 Right.

13             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.

14             REP. HOLTZMAN:  He spilled the

15 beans for her.

16             CDR KING:  Well because she didn't

17 want him to get in trouble for not appearing

18 for work the next day.

19             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.

20             CDR KING:  And she wanted him to

21 be able to take care of his incidents --

22             MR. CASSARA:  So she told the
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1 Commander.

2             CDR KING:  -- so she told the

3 Command that he couldn't come to work because

4 of an incident.

5             MR. CASSARA:  Got it, okay.

6             DEAN ANDERSON:  So let's attend to

7 Colonel Ham's scenario, because I think it

8 gets exactly to, I think requiring the Command

9 to ask the question, is this a restricted or

10 an unrestricted report solves some of these

11 inadvertent disclosures.  It seems to me that

12 doing the same thing with the investigative

13 arms and having them say is this a restricted

14 or an unrestricted report might do the same

15 thing.

16             I don't know, but that's at least

17 a possibility that they would be required to

18 ask if this a restricted or an unrestricted

19 report and would not have an obligation, in

20 fact would have an obligation not to go

21 forward if it's an unrestricted report,

22 particularly if the victim has consulted with
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1 counsel beforehand.  Is there a problem with

2 vesting, or actually would there be a problem

3 with requiring both the investigator and the

4 Command to confirm that this is an

5 unrestricted report before proceeding?

6             CDR KING:  Dean Anderson, we're

7 checking the NDAA because it seems like

8 there's a requirement in there that the

9 Commander has to report it when the Commander

10 gets a report, that their hands are tied, at

11 least based on the law.

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Right.

13             FEMALE PARTICIPANT:  It is in the

14 NDAA.

15             CDR KING:  Yes.

16             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I think the better

17 approach to this, rather prohibiting other

18 people from doing whatever it is, is to allow

19 the victim to recapture, if it's at all

20 possible, to reinstate the restricted quality

21 of the report and to whatever is, you know, I

22 don't know that you can stop investigations. 
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1 I just don't -- I mean maybe then the

2 Commander gets alerted so that it doesn't

3 become more public, but, you know, I don't

4 know how much you can, to put the toothpaste

5 back in the tube.

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

7 Okay.  I'm about to punt one more time and I

8 think this is, lets clarify the issue and then

9 I want staff to develop some options for us.

10             MR. CASSARA:  I also think that

11 what we're talking about may, based on what

12 Sherry said, may actually be in violation of

13 the NDAA, so --

14             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

15 Yes, I think that --

16             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, but aren't we

17 making recommendations to change the law?  I

18 mean I don't think that -- I think we should

19 clarify and understand where the NDAA and

20 where other laws are inconsistent with what

21 we're recommending, but that shouldn't impede

22 our ability to make a recommendation to
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1 actually change those laws.

2             MR. CASSARA:  No, I agree.  I

3 agree, I'm just saying that we need to find

4 out, we need to determine if that's actually

5 what we're doing.

6             COL HAM:  It's in --

7             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, I agree.

8             COL HAM:  It's Section 1742 of the

9 NDAA 2014, titled Commanding Officer Action on

10 Reports of Sexual Offenses Involving Members

11 of the Armed Forces.

12             And it just says, a Commanding

13 Officer who receives a report of a sex-related

14 offense involving a member of the Armed Forces

15 and the chain of command of such officer shall

16 act upon the report in accordance with," the

17 next section, "immediately after receipt of

18 the report."

19             The action required is the

20 referral of the report to the Military

21 Criminal Investigative Organization with

22 responsibility for investigating that offense,
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1 or such other investigative service as they

2 are being specified.

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Or

4 maybe there just needs to be something at the

5 very end of there, unless advised by counsel,

6 victim advised by counsel --

7             MR. CASSARA:  Or upon waiving the

8 right to consult with counsel.

9             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

10 Yes, upon waiving the right to consult with

11 counsel, or after or upon waiving decides --

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well what about

13 the delay issues here?  What about the delay

14 issues?  Oh, the commander now has to find

15 Special Victim Counsel, has to make sure that

16 there is a, you know, or can't find Special

17 Victim Counsel, has to find the victim, all of

18 these things could delay and create problems.

19             I mean you want to get -- who

20 knows what forensic evidence you want to get

21 and so forth.  I mean I just -- I'm concerned

22 about interfering with that.
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1             I don't know, I mean, maybe just

2 being a prosecutor is making me nervous about

3 it.  I mean, Meg brought up very good dual

4 objectives here.      

5          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Okay. 

6 I'm going to --

7             DEAN ANDERSON:  You know, I think

8 the issue of delay is one that attends to all

9 of these matters when the -- on the question

10 of victims counsel.

11             But if we are making a

12 recommendation that victim counsel be

13 available to all people who come forward and

14 indicate that they've been sexually

15 victimized, then it shouldn't delay the

16 proceedings unduly for the commanding

17 authority to request, you know, or confirm

18 that this is an unreported, an unrestricted or

19 a restricted report, but for turning the case

20 over for investigation.

21             I agree that there's a potential

22 problem with delay, but I think we're already
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1 recommending that there be no delay in terms

2 of a victim's ability to consult with counsel.

3             REP. HOLTZMAN:  But that doesn't

4 mean the delay isn't going to happen, and that

5 doesn't mean -- I mean, so I'm just concerned

6 about that and I also am concerned about once

7 an investigation gets started, stopping it.

8             MS. SAUNDERS:  Is the concern, you

9 know, once the investigation gets started is

10 the goal to stop the investigation or simply

11 to allow the victim to not participate in the

12 investigation?  Because there is something in

13 place right now that would, that allows the

14 victim to not participate in that by DOD

15 instruction.  Do you want me to read you that

16 or is that --

17             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, I actually

18 thought we had resolved this question.  Maybe

19 we haven't, but I thought that what we said

20 was that once an investigation commences that

21 the victim may choose not to participate but

22 does not have the decisional authority to stop
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1 the investigation.

2             I thought that's where Meg landed. 

3 I was like well there are very important

4 interests on both sides and this is the way

5 the civilian world has cut the question and

6 that that's probably the best take on how the

7 military should cut the question as well so

8 that the victim has the ability not to

9 participate, but does not have the ability to

10 stop the investigation.

11             That's different than the formal

12 question of whether or not the Command has an

13 automatic duty to alert the investigators

14 whenever she hears of an instance of sexual

15 assault.

16             I think where we've landed is that

17 the Commander should clarify whether or not

18 and identify whether or not this is a

19 restricted or an unrestricted report, and if

20 it's a restricted report does not have an

21 obligation and, in fact, has a duty not to

22 report to the investigators.
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1             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

2 Okay, because we've got to move on.

3             CDR KING:  We can try to write

4 something up and maybe --

5             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

6 get the issue.

7             CDR KING:  We get the issue, we'll

8 try to work on it, try to think up options,

9 and then maybe in one of our phone conferences

10 that we're going to discuss we can send it out

11 before that and go over it and we can have a

12 more --

13             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I think that's

14 fine.

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  And

16 I do think that the clear recommendation is

17 that if you go from one to the other there

18 should be the opportunity to confer with

19 counsel.

20             CDR KING:  Right.

21             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

22 That one's easy.
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1             CDR KING:  Yes.

2             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

3 Okay, let's move us on.

4             CDR KING:  Okay.  So can I just

5 clarify for terms of our list that you want to

6 recommend a study be done of SARC's, VA's --

7             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  An

8 evaluation, very detailed study.

9             CDR KING:  -- and evaluations, and

10 so you don't want to make any, or have any

11 discussion or recommendation about the numbers

12 or if they should be uniformed or if uniforms

13 should be full-time, you just want the study

14 at this point?

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

16 want periodic evaluation.

17             CDR KING:  And no other --

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

19 Yes, but hitting these issues.  Across

20 services and uniformly across services, yes.

21             CDR KING:  Okay.  So no other

22 discussion on that?
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1             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No.

2             CDR KING:  Okay.

3             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, if you want

4 to put in what you'd consider, such issues as

5 pay grade or, you know, should they all be

6 uniform, I mean that's fine with me if you

7 want to get --

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

9 Yes.

10             CDR KING:  Well I just wanted to

11 cross them off my list if you don't want to

12 discuss them and they were just options that

13 we were thinking about so it, you know, we can

14 try to work that up in your recommendation

15 also.

16             (Off microphone discussion)

17             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

18 Okay.

19             CDR KING:  I just wanted to

20 clarify if you want them we can just say no,

21 I guess.  Since we were talking about

22 reporting do you have any recommendations or
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1 any discussion before -- on confident

2 reporting as far as making a clear or

3 creating, is there any issues with regard to

4 that?

5             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  To?

6             CDR KING:  In the telling of --

7 remember, I mean we talked about that in

8 different places like Lackland, I think, about

9 when a service member tells a friend who also

10 happens to be in the chain of command and then

11 they report it up and there's not clarity

12 necessarily, or there's not understanding from

13 Service members whether they have to report it

14 to someone else or not.

15             MS. SAUNDERS:  That is the policy

16 right now.

17             CDR KING:  Right.  The policy,

18 depending on who they -- They can tell a

19 friend, but if the friend happens to be in

20 their chain of command, maybe they're a

21 supervisor, you know, maybe they're an E4,

22 their supervisor is an E5 or an E6, that
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1 person is in their chain of command, so it's

2 not -- They are not acting as their friend,

3 they're acting as their boss and then it has

4 to be reported.  Yes.

5             COL HAM:  There seemed to be a lot

6 of confusion --

7             CDR KING:  Right.

8             COL HAM:  -- in the site visits

9 about there seemed to be a belief that no

10 matter who a victim reported to they were

11 required to report the offense.

12             CDR KING:  Especially if it's to

13 another military person, yes.

14             COL HAM:  Whereas, as a result it

15 was a DTAFSAMS recommendation, I'm not --

16 Maybe DOD had come up with it on their own. 

17 Right now there is what's called the Confident

18 Exception, which is if it's a roommate, a

19 family member, or a good friend that the

20 victim reports to, they want to tell somebody.

21             But they don't necessarily want it

22 to be an unrestricted report.  There is this
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1 limited class of people they can do that with,

2 but if that person -- also happens to be in

3 their chain of command --

4             CDR KING:  Which happens because

5 they live in the barracks together or --

6             COL HAM:  They don't do it.

7             CDR KING:  -- hang out, socialize

8 after work together.

9             COL HAM:  So the question is do

10 you believe that's a good idea?  If you

11 believe that's a good idea to continue that,

12 those of you who did the site visits there

13 seemed to be a lot of confusion about whether

14 it existed and what its contours are.

15             MS. SAUNDERS:  It's a very new

16 policy, I think that may be --

17             COL HAM:  That may be it, too.

18             MS. SAUNDERS:  -- a big part of

19 the confusion.

20             COL HAM:  Yes.

21             MS. SAUNDERS:  It was instituted I

22 think in March of 2013 and so by the time it
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1 filters its way down, you know, maybe it may

2 take awhile.

3             COL HAM:  Yes.

4             MS. SAUNDERS:  That may have led

5 to some of the confusion.

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

7 think it is --

8             MS. SAUNDERS:  So it is

9 restricted.

10             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

11 Yes.  I think that if it's in your chain of

12 command it's got to go up, but to leave it as

13 is with maybe a recommendation for more

14 clarity, more training, more instruction

15 around it.  I mean, you see that as a manager

16 all time.  Somebody befriends you, but you're

17 the boss and so now you've got to be the boss.

18             CDR KING:  And that may be just

19 something that they put in the training that

20 they do in sexual assaults and reporting and

21 stuff when they give it to the troops that

22 they could make clear every time.
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1             Most of the discussion points we

2 had thought, or we thought we would talk about

3 were SAPR related and if we don't have any

4 others maybe we want to turn and talk a little

5 bit about mental health issues.

6             Especially since that's a big

7 issue and we've sent out a lot of material on

8 it, and rather than try to synthesize it down,

9 all of it, without having some idea what

10 you're interested in or what you think you

11 would want to look at closer and make

12 recommendations on.

13             I thought maybe you could have a

14 preliminary discussion, at least get a feel of

15 the Subcommittee where you are on it and if

16 there are issues you might want to look at

17 more, maybe you can make recommendations

18 without us doing anything else.

19             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

20 Better?  More?  Sorry, I mean, but that's kind

21 of where it boils down to.

22             (Laughter)
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1             CDR KING:  Right.

2             MR. CASSARA:  You know, I think

3 the point that was made earlier of the

4 military mental health providers for years

5 have been trained in a particular way and

6 that's because that's what they deal with, you

7 know, war trauma, things like that.

8             I think the emphasis clearly

9 either has shifted or needs to shift to them

10 being trained up in this area as well.  But

11 again, the scope of that and how that all

12 plays out I, you know, I'm barely smart enough

13 to know what I do for a living never mind what

14 they do for a living.

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

16 There's no requirement about how much mental

17 health has to be per location.

18             COL HAM:  You heard last time I

19 think, Ms. Fernandez, about -- I think it's

20 the Army who's doing these, this embedded

21 model.

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 
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1 Right, yes.

2             COL HAM:  And I don't know that

3 the other Services are doing that.  The

4 embedded mental health model you also heard

5 the types of treatment, evidence-based

6 treatment programs they were using which

7 included what Ms. PC described -- I forgot my

8 term, I'm escaping me -- but they're telling

9 it over and over and over again as a treatment

10 for PTSD that reflected what the mental health

11 panel discussed, so it is certainly up to you

12 to recommend, you know, if you saw a best

13 practice in that embedding or not, or further

14 study to provide greater access for however

15 the Services want to do it to provide greater

16 and more immediate access.

17             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

18 Greater, more, more frequent -- I mean I think

19 part of it is -- The problem with a therapist

20 is that you walk in there and in one session

21 you get nothing done.

22             And what they were saying is
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1 that's what they got, they got one, maybe two

2 sessions.  And so it's got to be

3 accessibility, frequency, anonymity --

4             MR. CASSARA:  Have we had any

5 testimony as to whether or not a victim's

6 health care provider remains the same health

7 care provider throughout their treatment or is

8 it the usual?

9             I mean, because at most military

10 hospitals, you know, if you've got a headache,

11 you know, or whatever it is, you go in one

12 week and then you go back two weeks later

13 you're going to see a completely different

14 healthcare provider.

15             And I don't know if we have

16 received any, or heard any testimony about

17 whether or not that is the same or different

18 in the sexual assault counseling, mental

19 health counseling arena.

20             You know, again, as somebody who

21 knows nothing at all about this area, I would

22 have to think it's more beneficial for the
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1 victim to have the same healthcare provider

2 where reasonably possible on every visit.  I

3 mean, I would have to think that.

4             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

5 mean the same mental health provider?

6             MR. CASSARA:  Is that not what I

7 said, I'm sorry.

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

9 said healthcare.

10             MR. CASSARA:  No, mental health

11 provider.  I mean I would have to think and,

12 you know, just intuitively that that's going

13 to be more beneficial to the victim.  So, at

14 least something to look at.

15             I don't know the answer.  I don't

16 even know that it's a question, but it just,

17 it strikes me as that's probably -- common

18 sense tells me that that's probably better for

19 them.

20             But I don't know if we've had any

21 testimony about that or not, I just don't

22 remember.  We had the mental health panel up
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1 here and I just don't remember from that panel

2 whether or not that came out.

3             CDR KING:  I don't recall if they

4 specifically discussed it.  If it helps you we

5 can go through and cut out the testimony

6 that's relevant to the issues so it's shorter

7 to read again and do the excerpts so you can

8 skim through them for a discussion.

9             One of the things we're supposed

10 to do, I believe in most of our areas, is

11 compare civilian to the military for best

12 practices.

13             And I don't know if it's a best

14 practice or not, but one of the people, you

15 know, a couple of things we tried to bring in

16 last time were people from like rape crisis

17 centers, or we brought in the lady from, Ms.

18 Haist from the YWCA in Grand Rapids where they

19 have kind of a multi-disciplinary center where

20 the victim can go in for a SANE exam, be in a

21 friendly environment, a comfortable

22 environment, and get short-term counseling
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1 right away, as far as sexual assault

2 counseling like right away at that time.  And

3 then can come back later even after the trial

4 and get some more short-term counseling.

5             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Can

6 we frame this slightly different?  I mean, and

7 I don't know -- If you look at what a victim

8 needs, they need services and that's the SARCs

9 and the VAs, they need legal assistance, and

10 that's your Victim Counsel, and then you need

11 treatment, that could be both healthcare and

12 mental health.

13             And so on some level you have to

14 figure out how you get all four things to

15 every victim because maybe somebody will say

16 I don't need this or I don't need that, but in

17 general all, those four things are what you

18 need in order recover.

19             So I think it's how every victim

20 gets access to all those four things and if we

21 can frame it in that way it's -- and when

22 we're talking, and it's got to be quality on
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1 all those levels.

2             That's why, you know, we've got to

3 look at the SARCs and say is it a GS9 or a

4 GS11, we don't know, but we need to evaluate

5 which one it would be.

6             I think the same is true for

7 mental health.  I don't know if I could sit

8 here even with the testimony that was given

9 and say these are the top model programs that

10 everybody should be educated on, this is the,

11 at least, the minimal number of visits that

12 need to be available, this is how quickly it

13 needs to be accessible.

14             I don't think we've had that

15 testimony, but --

16             MR. CASSARA:  No, and I don't

17 think we're smart enough to make those, to

18 give those answers here, I agree.

19             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

20 those are the four things and it's got to be

21 quality and to the need level of that victim.

22             COL HAM:  Are there two kinds, Ms.
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1 Fernandez, of both healthcare and mental

2 healthcare?  I guess I'm asking is there, in

3 your experience, is there kind of emergency

4 crisis mental healthcare and then the more

5 long-term treatment, is that a correct

6 statement?  Is it two different things?

7             MR. CASSARA:  Yes, probably.

8             COL HAM:  Is it the same thing on

9 a continuum?

10             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I'm

11 not a mental health practitioner, so I,

12 intuitively I'd say yes, but that's that and

13 $5 to get you a cup of coffee at Starbucks.

14             MR. CASSARA:  Is it down to five

15 bucks?

16             (Laughter)

17             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

18 that's -- What do folks on the phone think

19 about that?

20             JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Well, I think

21 offering them a variety of services is

22 important.  That I think practically, you
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1 can't have all of that available at every

2 location.

3             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, I agree with

4 that.

5             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, you know, we

6 living in the 21st century, I know not every

7 Government Agency is firmly in the 21st

8 century, but, you know, we don't always have

9 to have people everywhere.

10             We can move, you know, we can use

11 Skype, we can use video-conferencing, we can

12 use long distance treatments.  I'm not, you

13 know, I don't think we can let the military

14 get off the hook in terms of providing prompt,

15 effective, well-trained mental health services

16 just because they don't have somebody at every

17 single base.

18             COL HAM:  There's the civilian

19 community as well.

20             REP. HOLTZMAN:  What?

21             COL HAM:  The civilian community

22 as well.
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1             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Yes, I'm sorry,

2 and right, there's the civilian community.  So

3 I, you know, I think that the obligations

4 could be very clear about providing well-

5 trained and accessible mental health services

6 to victims of sexual assault properly.

7             MS. GARVIN:  This is Meg.  I was

8 completely echoed out.  I mean I think we even

9 heard some testimony, right, from RAINN,

10 talked about -- Right, didn't the gentleman

11 from RAINN come testify about --

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Yes, he did.

13             MS. GARVIN:  Yes, about in a

14 civilian world how they've tried to deal with

15 this by having, you know, the online services,

16 the remote mental health services, I mean

17 there are models that exist.

18             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Right.  So, yes.

19             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

20 Well, and if you take the young airwoman's

21 example, I mean if she had gotten proper

22 mental health services at the beginning of her
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1 assault, it would've been a whole hell of a

2 lot cheaper than three weeks of  - inpatient

3 treatment.

4             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  --

5 inpatient, which had to be exorbitant.  So, I

6 mean, on the cost benefit you get somebody,

7 you get a counselor on Skype once a week it's

8 going to be a whole hell of a lot cheaper than

9 three weeks of round the clock service.

10             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Or maybe it's

11 everyday, why only limit it to once a week?

12             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

13 don't know, I'm thinking --

14             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I'm just --

15             (Laughter)

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

17 not limiting it.  I'm just trying to move it

18 for you, Liz.

19             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I'm just joking. 

20 But, I mean, I think that that's really

21 important to make sure the military is aware

22 of the variety of ways that it can provide
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1 these services and to make sure that it avails

2 itself of that, on these variety of ways,

3 whether if it's also contracting with civilian

4 services, too.

5             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

6 think that if you put in language of some sort

7 of it has to meet the need out there.  There

8 was obvious need that just is going unmet.

9             CDR KING:  It seems to me that's

10 what you heard last time, at least from DoD,

11 was that they do meet the need in whether

12 they're using -- They do meet the need of

13 victims, I mean, all the needs of victims in

14 a victim-centric manner.

15             MS. CARSON:  Right.  And he said

16 that everyone has access to immediate care.

17             REP. HOLTZMAN:  But that's not

18 what we heard today.

19             MS. CARSON:  I'm just -- that was

20 his testimony.

21             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Hence the

22 difficulty from the written material and the
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1 testimony, especially from, you know, the DoD

2 policy, seems to be that they have these

3 things and that they're working hard to

4 establish them.

5             But then when you hear the on-the-

6 ground stories that doesn't always match what

7 the policy and the written version of what

8 there is available either, or --

9             MR. CASSARA:  That was a couple of

10 years ago.

11             COL HAM:  There was a requirement

12 in the NDAA of this 8-day report, which is a

13 new requirement.

14             MS. CARSON:  It's taken from the

15 Marines.  They have an 8-day --

16             COL HAM:  It's Section 1743.  It's

17 an 8-day incident report that it has to go up

18 to -- It's on every unrestricted report, so

19 that's something to think about.

20             That goes to, I'm looking who it

21 has to go to, the Installation Commander, the

22 First Officer, or an O6, or a General Officer,
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1 flag level.  

2             And one of the things this 8-day

3 report has to -- the purpose of is to detail

4 the actions taken or in progress to provide

5 the necessary care and support to a victim of

6 the assault.  So that should include --

7             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

8 Mental health assessment.

9             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Now who's

10 preparing this report on the mental health

11 side?

12             COL HAM:  Well, it's allowing the

13 services to designate the person who submits

14 these reports, but the purpose is, you know,

15 is it being investigated?  Is the victim being

16 taken care of according to the statute?

17             So one thing you might want to

18 specify be included in this report, I'm

19 looking to see if it included --

20             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

21 get assaulted on a Monday --

22             COL HAM:  Okay.
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1             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  --

2 by the following Tuesday somebody that is

3 designated has to give an 8-day report of what

4 my needs are to my Commander, or to who?

5             COL HAM:  To somebody high up.  In

6 other words there has to -- Somebody higher up

7 in the chain, it has to be formally, and it's

8 probably happening already throughout the

9 Service as now it's a statutory requirement.

10             Somebody high up has got to be

11 told there's been a report, here's what's

12 being done to help the victim, here's what's

13 being done on this investigation.

14             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  But

15 my name is not associated necessarily with

16 that report?

17             COL HAM:  It's an unrestricted,

18 it's only, by statute for unrestricted

19 reports.

20             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Oh,

21 for unrestricted.

22             COL HAM:  So your name would be
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1 associated.

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, why isn't

3 this also being done for restricted reports

4 without the person's name on it?

5             COL HAM:  It could be, but that's

6 not what the statute addresses.

7             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

8 That's our recommendation then.

9             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well maybe then

10 somebody should've had them.

11             COL HAM:  Okay.

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well, we don't

13 know how good these reports are because who is

14 preparing -- I mean if it's somebody who

15 doesn't know about mental health services how

16 is this person going to prepare the report?

17             Is there a doctor that's supposed

18 to prepare the treatment plan?  I mean what

19 does this mean?

20             COL HAM:  It -- Again, it's kind

21 of dog's -- What's that called a dog's brew? 

22 What are required in a Section 1743, for the
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1 record, 8-day incident report where the victim

2 is a member of the Armed Forces.  It's

3 supposed to detail time, location, all that

4 kind of stuff, and post-incident actions

5 including referral to the SARC for referral of

6 services, including the date of the referral,

7 notification to the appropriate military

8 criminal investigation organization, receipt

9 and status of any requested expedited

10 transfer, the issuance of any military

11 protective orders.

12             So it's an additional check to

13 make sure everybody's doing what they should

14 be doing to investigate and take care of the

15 victim and it's giving visibility to a high

16 level Commander.

17             REP. HOLTZMAN:  But this doesn't

18 include health treatment?

19             COL HAM:  Well it says "for

20 referral to services available to members." 

21 If you want to specify that you want that to

22 include --
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1             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well it just says

2 if you -- really?  Yes, so, I mean that you've

3 seen a SARC is fine, but do you have a plan,

4 a healthcare plan?  Where's that in that?

5             COL HAM:  It doesn't require that

6 level of detail.

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Well maybe it

8 should.

9             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

10 think it should.

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  I don't know,

12 maybe it --

13             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

14 Maybe that's where to put it and it should be

15 for restricted and unrestricted and the name

16 just doesn't go up.

17             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Do we know enough

18 about these reports to say anything

19 intelligent about it?

20             COL HAM:  They're brand new. 

21 They're brand new.  It's brand new and it --

22 I'm seeing if it gives them --.
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1             REP. HOLTZMAN:  When did it --

2 Which NDAA?

3             COL HAM:  This is NDAA 2014 and

4 they have 180 days from the date of the

5 enactment of the Act, which we haven't had 180

6 days since -- let's see NDAA 2014 --

7             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Oh, so they're

8 still implementing that?

9             COL HAM:  They're still

10 implementing.

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Oh, so maybe we

12 could say that there would be a mental health

13 plan as part of that --

14             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

15 Yes.

16             REP. HOLTZMAN:  -- or a health

17 plan and a mental health plan.

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

19 Yes, I would say both.

20             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Yes, and also

21 should be available for restricted reports.

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 
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1 Yes, for both.

2             REP. HOLTZMAN:  What's the plan of

3 action for those reports?

4             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  You

5 just shoot up a Jane Doe.

6             REP. HOLTZMAN:  Or a Mai

7 Fernandez.

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  No. 

9 If I'm restricted I'm not going to see it if

10 I'm Mai Fernandez.

11             REP. HOLTZMAN:  No, that's what

12 I'm calling it.

13             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Oh,

14 okay.

15             (Laughter)

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

17 may need the mental health services when I'm

18 done here.

19             CDR KING:  So what was this

20 recommendation?

21             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

22 Want to take a break?
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1             MR. CASSARA:  Yes.  I want to get

2 a coffee.

3             COL HAM:  Yes, let's take a break.

4             MR. CASSARA:  I hear a Keurig

5 machine calling me.

6             (Whereupon, the foregoing matter

7 went off the record at 2:54 p.m. and went back

8 on the record at 3:12 p.m.)

9             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

10 Okay, I think we're going to go straight into

11 process right now.  So we have the calendar

12 for April in front of us and so what are we

13 looking at?

14             CDR KING:  Well, it's marked April

15 and May.

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Oh

17 sorry.  Okay.

18             CDR KING:  Yes, we still have

19 March left.

20             MR. CASSARA:  Oh, I do have April. 

21 I'm sorry, you're right.

22             COL SCHENCK:  I have April and
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1 May.

2             MR. CASSARA:  No, it's two-sided. 

3 April is two-sided.

4             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Oh,

5 there we go.

6             MR. CASSARA:  Stick with me.  I'll

7 help you out.

8             MS. SAUNDERS:  So you're aware of

9 some dates that are kind of hard and fast that

10 we're working toward.  The 5th and 6th of May

11 are the dates that the subcommittees are

12 scheduled to report out to the full panel in

13 a public hearing.

14             So that's the 5th and 6th of May,

15 and that'll be here in D.C.  We're still

16 looking, trying to find a location.

17             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.  And I'm

18 sorry, is that something that we are required,

19 invited?

20             MS. SAUNDERS:  You'll be invited. 

21 I mean, obviously as much participation by the

22 subcommittee members will be great.  And one
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1 thing you will have to decide on as a

2 subcommittee is how you want to do that brief

3 out.  Do you want to have, you know, Ms.

4 Fernandez do it?

5             MR. CASSARA:  Yes.

6             MS. SAUNDERS:  Is that fair, or do

7 you want to have two -- yes.  Do you want to

8 have two or three, how you want to do that

9 brief out to the full panel.

10             Now backing up from the 5th and

11 6th of May, what that really means for the

12 subcommittee is that by the 18th of April we

13 need to have something as near to complete as

14 possible.

15             And what we are doing as we are in

16 the process of hiring both a technical writer

17 and a graphic artist, and they will be working

18 with our product to, you know, obviously it's

19 a very somber topic so it's not going to be a

20 lot of flashy graphics, but, you know, putting

21 it in a standardized form along with the other

22 subcommittee reports.  So that is what we are
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1 looking at is the 18th of May.

2             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  The

3 18th is our drop-dead day?

4             MR. CASSARA:  That's D-Day.

5             MS. SAUNDERS:  Was the 18th --

6             CDR KING:  Yes.

7             MS. SAUNDERS:  Yes, the drop-dead

8 day.

9             CDR KING:  By close of business

10 that day.

11             MS. SAUNDERS:  So 18 May.

12             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  So

13 what do we need to get done in March and when?

14             MS. SAUNDERS:  I'm sorry, the 18th

15 of April.

16             CDR KING:  The 18th of April, yes.

17 So I'm thinking that it would be helpful if we

18 had a meeting at least once a week.  If we

19 sent you out, I don't know how many days ahead

20 of time you need to get it, but if we tried to

21 send you out at least one section of the

22 report or at least did, some of them are like
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1 writing up the discussion about restricted

2 reporting and the things you asked us to look

3 at, and then maybe send it out ahead of time

4 for you to look at and then have a phone

5 discussion.

6             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

7 Sounds good.

8             CDR KING:  Rather than have an in-

9 person discussion.

10             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  And

11 my thought is we're not going to be able to

12 find a time and date for everybody.  We just

13 set a time and whoever can be on, can be on,

14 and who can't be on, can't.

15             MS. SAUNDERS:  And the way it will

16 work under FACA is, you know, Sherry will send

17 it out to all of you, and of course as you

18 know you cannot respond to all.  You will have

19 to respond individually back to Sherry.

20             Of course you'll have your

21 teleconference to kind of iron it out, but

22 then any kind of substantive comments or other
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1 kinds of comments will have to go back to

2 Sherry individually and she will consolidate

3 them all in a document with bubbles on the

4 side, for example, in a Word document, and

5 then that would be the subject of your

6 teleconference, for example, to go through

7 those, discuss what you want to keep, what you

8 don't want to keep.

9             And then for the 18th of April we

10 want to be able to send your report in final

11 form to the main panel so that they can start

12 looking at it and discussing it, or not

13 discussing it, looking at it in preparation of

14 for the meeting on the 5th and 6th of May. 

15             And that can go to them in the

16 not-so-pretty form, and meanwhile the

17 technical writer and --

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  So

19 when do you think that we need to be done,

20 really, internally before we give it to

21 anybody else?  But the 18th is when we send it

22 to the rest of the committee.
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1             CDR KING:  No, the 18th is when we

2 send it --

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  To

4 the rest of the panel, the other panel

5 members.

6             CDR KING:  Well, yes.  That's when

7 they're going to do it with the technical

8 writers so that --

9             MS. SAUNDERS:  But it's happening

10 at the same time.

11             CDR KING:  Right.  That's right. 

12 Yes.

13             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

14 When do we internally need to have a draft

15 done?

16             COL HAM:  I think the 18th.

17             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

18 Okay, so we can keep working until the 18th.

19             COL HAM:  Absolutely.

20             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  And

21 we can snip it until the 20th to send it out. 

22 We want to be able to give the panel members,
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1 you know, a couple weekends to look at

2 everything.

3             Michelle?

4             DEAN ANDERSON:  May I jump in? 

5 Yes, not to panic, however, this is extremely

6 limited amount of time to review what I assume

7 will be a document of at least 100 pages,

8 probably more.  There's so much information

9 that's been assembled even just in the outline

10 that I very much hope that we can, and I find

11 reviewing the outline not, it's not the same

12 thing as reviewing text.  You know, the words

13 matter.  How we shade things, how we frame

14 them, how we envision an overall picture.

15             I think it would be terrific to

16 try to have the volume of text a week before,

17 and then actually deliberate on what is the

18 big picture and how can we structure this so

19 that it does not come across, it's just a

20 morass of facts that proves that we've done a

21 lot of research but that actually highlights

22 the seams, the very few and the important
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1 things that we want to highlight coming out of

2 this subcommittee.

3             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

4 agree.

5             CDR KING:  But I hope we can work

6 on the specific sections and language on each. 

7 I mean, obviously we want to put it all

8 together and then you can make

9 recommendations.  But it would certainly help

10 us a lot to work on maybe different sections,

11 like the rights that we already started

12 writing.

13             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

14 Yes, I don't think Michelle is saying, is not

15 saying that.  I'm just saying to give us a

16 week to then put a more, to really be able to

17 frame this the way we want to frame it.

18             CDR KING:  Right.  Yes, that's

19 good.

20             DEAN ANDERSON:  If it's just

21 chunks of information that are very detailed

22 with specific recommendations under those
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1 chunks of headings it's going to be a morass. 

2 It's going to be very difficult to identify

3 seams and overall the big picture.

4             I don't actually think that we as

5 a committee have crystallized on what that big

6 picture is, and what are the key few findings

7 and recommendations that we want to highlight

8 the most.  We're going to have dozens of minor

9 recommendations.  

10             I think we still have to

11 deliberate on what is the big picture and what

12 are the key things that we think are most

13 important to try to prevent victimization and

14 enhance victim services.

15          SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  Yes, I

16 think we agree with that and I think we need

17 at least a week to be able to use that week

18 for doing just that, Michelle.  But between

19 now and then I think we need to bite off a

20 chunk every week.

21             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, at least.  I

22 mean, you know, like a third of the document
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1 we should see on a weekly basis because we

2 only have three weeks before we need to have

3 the document basically reviewed.

4             And then one week, as I see the

5 calendar, I could be wrong, but it looks like

6 we've got four weeks, maybe five, I'm not

7 sure, until we have to turn this thing in to

8 the response systems panel, in which case we

9 have that minus one week to look at large --

10             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

11 Well, it happens to be that that weekend is

12 Easter, and so it's like the resurrection of

13 the document.  So yes, it's kind of

14 interesting we're doing this over Lent.  It

15 feels like something you would do over Lent.

16             COL SCHENCK:  I'm not doing

17 anything.  I'm considering this to be my --

18             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  It

19 feels like a cross on your back.

20             COL HAM:  Dean Anderson, this is

21 Colonel Ham.  We fully understand your

22 concern, and we're happy to have the five
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1 weeks and that Judge Jones decided to move

2 back the, the full panel meeting was initially

3 scheduled the 8th and 9th of April, so we're

4 very happy that she decided to push it back to

5 give the subcommittees additional time to

6 work.

7             DEAN ANDERSON:  That's great.

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

9 Okay, what date do we want to designate as our

10 time and meeting date?  Starting in March. 

11 Today is --

12             MR. CASSARA:  Are we talking about

13 all telephonic from here on in?

14             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

15 Yes.

16             MR. CASSARA:  Okay.  And I have us

17 on, correct me if I'm wrong, have we changed

18 this?  I have us having a phone conference on

19 the 27th at 1430.  Is that correct?

20             CDR KING:  We had the 27th

21 scheduled, I mean, earlier, so if everybody's

22 still got that available.
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1             MS. SAUNDERS:  What about --

2             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

3 Yes, why don't we do one on the 20th?

4             CDR KING:  Right.  Well, we can do

5 that.  So do you want to do it every Thursday?

6             MR. CASSARA:  I can do Thursdays. 

7 Thursdays are good.

8             CDR KING:  I mean, if that works

9 for everybody.  That's why I wanted to

10 hopefully get together and do this, so we can

11 know what we're preparing for and --

12             REP. HOLTZMAN:  And what time

13 would that be?  2:30?

14             MR. CASSARA:  2:30 works for me.

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  On

16 the 20th?

17             MR. CASSARA:  Yes, ma'am.

18             REP. HOLTZMAN:  And when would we

19 be finished?  5:00?

20             MR. CASSARA:  I would certainly

21 hope so.

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I



Page 303

202-234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com
Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

1 would try to, I mean we're going to die if we

2 do two and a half hours on a conference call.

3             CDR KING:  Yes, right.

4             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

5 would try to keep these to an hour and a half.

6             CDR KING:  Okay.

7             JUDGE MARQUARDT:  Well, some of us

8 have been on the call all day, so --

9             MR. CASSARA:  You have no

10 sympathy, right?

11             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

12 Let's try the first one at an hour and a half. 

13 If that's way too short then we'll start

14 scheduling them longer from there on in.

15             CDR KING:  So 2:30 on the 20th?

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

17 Then 2:30 on the 27th.

18             CDR KING:  Are you people on the

19 phone, members on the phone okay with that?

20             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes.

21             MS. GARVIN:  Yes.

22             MR. CASSARA:  I'm with you, yes. 
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1 My phone does not operate that quickly.

2             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

3 It's going to be easy.  Why don't we just do

4 2:30 on Thursdays from here on in?  And like

5 I said, whoever can't be there, can't be

6 there, but try to get your comments to one of

7 the staff people beforehand so that your

8 comments can be made.

9             MR. CASSARA:  Okay, so that's the

10 20th, the 27th, the 3rd.

11             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  And

12 then the last one will be the 10th.

13             MS. GARVIN:  Well, the 10th and

14 the 17th is the final review of what we've

15 got.

16             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

17 That week of the Holy Week, 13th, 14th, 15th,

18 16th, 17th, I think we need to plan more time. 

19 But I want to wait before we, well, we could

20 plan out the dates, the times, now for that

21 week.

22             REP. HOLTZMAN:  The 3rd, and
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1 what's the next one?

2             COL HAM:  The 10th, ma'am.  And

3 ma'am, you can certainly add more if you need

4 them.  Our prior experience with the

5 subcommittee that's already issued some

6 assessments was that they were able to put

7 together a teleconference in, you know, 48

8 hours if they felt they needed, or less.

9             REP. HOLTZMAN:  The 3rd, the 10th

10 and the 18th?

11             DEAN ANDERSON:  The 17th.

12             COL HAM:  You have a lot of --

13             DEAN ANDERSON:  Well, then Mai I

14 think we'll know more as we proceed.  I mean,

15 if we're trucking right through this stuff on

16 a weekly basis then we'll know more about that

17 last week, and if it turns out that we need

18 some more substantial time for deliberations

19 we can shift the schedule.  But for right now,

20 Thursdays from 2:30 to 4:00 for the next five

21 weeks.

22             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 
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1 Yes.

2             CDR KING:  And the first one might

3 be a little bit of an experiment, but we'll

4 probably start on something that you've

5 already maybe made some recommendations, like

6 on victim rights or something, so that we can

7 figure out how you want to work it.

8             Since we already have some things

9 written, we can kind of put those things in

10 there with the recommendations you made and

11 then start working on the next one.  Because

12 that way it'll give us a better feel for how

13 we're going to do it and how we're going to

14 take what you've said as far as your

15 recommendations to stick them in there and how

16 the writing is going to go.

17             Some of the recommendations are

18 probably going to need more clarification, you

19 know, or the findings that you made may not be

20 as clear as you want them to be when you see

21 how they came out.  So it would help us the

22 first time to kind of get a better feel for
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1 how that works for all of us, I think.

2             DEAN ANDERSON:  So I think it

3 would be helpful for us to have a completed

4 document to us at least two days in advance.

5             CDR KING:  Yes, okay.  That would

6 be really good to then start on the one we

7 already started on the writing for.  So by

8 Tuesday, right?

9             DEAN ANDERSON:  And what

10 percentage of the full document is that?

11             CDR KING:  The victim rights?

12             DEAN ANDERSON:  Yes, I guess I'm

13 just thinking that if, I mean, you know --

14             MS. GARVIN:  What section?

15             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ: 

16 Victim rights.

17             DEAN ANDERSON:  That's fine.  As

18 long as it's a substantial chunk, I think

19 we've got to make headway in each instance. 

20 And so, you know, I think you're right,

21 Commander King, to want to start on the area

22 that we've probably deliberated the most on.
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1             CDR KING:  Right.

2             DEAN ANDERSON:  So sounds good.

3             CDR KING:  That will at least give

4 us a better feel for how to do it and what to

5 prepare for you and how your remarks go and

6 how specific, you know, we need to be in the

7 other recommendations.

8             SUBCOMMITTEE CHAIR FERNANDEZ:  I

9 think we've got our marching orders, folks. 

10 So I decided to leave at 3:30.  Mr. Sprance,

11 do your magical words.

12             MR. SPRANCE:  The meeting is now

13 closed.

14             (Whereupon, the foregoing matter

15 went off the record at 3:27 p.m.)

16

17

18

19

20

21

22
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